
Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451 • (775) 832-1100 • EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 

 
 

 
 

The Special Meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District Board of Trustees will be held starting at 4:30 PM on 
January 31, 2024 in the Boardroom, 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada. 
 
 Public comment is allowed and the public is welcome to make their public comment via telephone at (877)853-5247 (the webinar ID 
will be posted to our website on the day of the meeting). The meeting will be available for viewing at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/3411104. 

 
  
A.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE*    
    

 

B.  ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES*    
    

 

C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Unless otherwise determined, the time limit shall be three (3) minutes for each person wishing to 
make a public comment. Unless otherwise permitted by the Chair, no person shall be allowed to speak more than once on any single agenda item. 
Not to include comments on General Business items with scheduled public comment. The Board of Trustees may address matters brought up during 
public comment at the conclusion of the comment period but may not deliberate on any non-agendized item.   

    
 

    
 

E.  GENERAL MANAGER SELECTION - Interview of Candidates to begin at 4:30 or soon thereafter.    
    

 

   

 1.  SUBJECT: Discussion and possible action to consider the following applicants, Mitchell 
Dion, Robert Field and Beverli Marshall for the vacant Incline Village General 
Improvement District, General Manager position, to include interview of candidates, 
possible selection of the General Manager position and/or a possible alternative choice, 
and possible direction to staff to proceed with negotiations of employment contract. 
(Requesting Staff Member: Director of Human Resources Erin Feore) – pages 4 - 26 

      
 

      
 A.  PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in 

duration. 
 

      
 

F.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD - Reports are intended to inform the Board and/or the public.    
    

 

   
 1.  SUBJECT: Treasurers Report - December 2023 Activities District Treasury Report. 

(Requesting Trustee: Raymond Tulloch) – pages 27 - 45 
      

 

   
 2.  SUBJECT: Verbal Report and Update on the Director of Golf Recruitment, by the Director 

of Human Resources, Erin Feore. – pages 46 - 61 
      

 

   
 3.  SUBJECT: Verbal Report and Update on the Contract Review Processes, provided by 

Board Chair, Trustee Sara Schmitz. – pages 62 - 65 
 

      
 

G.  CONSENT CALENDAR (for possible action)     
    

 

    1.  SUBJECT: Approval of the Meeting Minutes for January 10, 2024 – pages 66 - 145 
 

    
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

Page 1 of 202

mailto:info@ivgid.org


 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of January 31, 2024 - Page 2 

 

 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

H.  GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action)     
    

 

   

 1.  SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING (not earlier than 6:00 P.M. and as soon thereafter as 
practicable) - Fiscal Year 2023/24 Midyear Budget Augmentation 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees: 
Adopt a Resolution Augmenting Budget and Appropriating General Fund Reserves in the 
amount of $1,512,949 and Recreational Services Reserves, Beach Utility Reserves, Internal 
Services Reserves in the cumulative amount of $3,956,700. – pages 146 - 155 

 
    

 

   

 2.  SUBJECT: Receive a report and update on the Finance Active and Special Project List. 
(Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of Finance Bobby Magee) – pages 156 - 160 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees: 
Discuss the Updated Finance Active and Special Project List and Provide Further Direction 
as Appropriate.   

 
    

 

   

 3.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Approve the Scope of Work and Related Contract 
Pricing for Forensic Due Diligence Auditing Services and Direct the General Manager to 
Execute the Agreement with RubinBrown (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Finance 
Manager Bobby Magee) – pages 161 - 180 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees: 

1. Discuss the Contract, Related Scope of Work, and Related Pricing for Forensic Auditing 
Services and Provide Further Direction to Staff as Appropriate; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to execute the contract with RubinBrown.     
 

   

 4.  SUBJECT: Authorize General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment Increasing the 
Baker Tilly Contract by $100,000 for Additional Accounting Resources Required to 
Support Continued Work on Daily Operational Activities and Special Projects as 
Previously Prioritized by the Board (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Finance Director 
Bobby Magee) – pages  181 - 184 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a motion to: 
1. Direct Staff to Increase the Baker Tilly Contract by $100,000 for Additional 

Accounting Resources Required to Support Continued Work on Daily Operational 
Activities and Special Projects as Previously Prioritized by the Board, Contingent 
Upon Approval of the Budget Augmentation Request. 

2. Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Contract Amendment. 
 

    
 

   
 5.  SUBJECT: Review, discuss and identify the board’s goals for 2024. (Requesting Trustee: 

Chair Sara Schmitz) - – pages 185 - 192 
 
 

Page 2 of 202



 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of January 31, 2024 - Page 3 

 

 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

 
    

 

   

 6.  SUBJECT: Review, discuss and possibly approve the agreement for FlashVote Services 
not to exceed the amount of $7,900.00.  (Requesting Trustee: Matthew Dent)  
– pages 193 - 202 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a motion to approve the 
Flashvote Services agreement, not to exceed the amount of $7,900.00. 

 
    

 

I.  REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS (for possible action)    
    

 

J.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR    
    

 

K.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE    
    

 

L.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in duration.    
    

 

M.  ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)     
    

 

 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA 
I hereby certify that on or before 9:00 a.m. on Friday, January 26, 2024, a copy of this agenda (IVGID Board of Trustees Session of January 31, 2024) was delivered to 
the post office addressed to the people who have requested to receive copies of IVGID’s agendas; copies were e-mailed to those people who have requested; and a copy 
was posted, physically or electronically, at the following locations in accordance with Assembly Bill 213: 

1. IVGID Anne Vorderbruggen Building (893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada; Administrative Offices) 
2. IVGID’s website (www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/meetings-and-agendas) 
3. State of Nevada public noticing website (https://notice.nv.gov/) 
4. IVGID's Recreation Center (980 Incline Way, Incline Village, Nevada) 

 
Persons may request copies of all agenda materials by contacting the District Clerk or by visiting the Administrative Offices at the address listed above. 
 /s/ Heidi H. White  

Heidi H. White  
District Clerk (e-mail: hhw@ivgid.org/phone # 775-832-1268) 

 

IVGID Board of Trustees: Sara Schmitz - Chair, Matthew Dent - Vice Chair, Michaela Tonking - Secretary, Raymond Tulloch - Treasurer, and David Noble 
Notes: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to the agenda of another meeting; moved to or 
from the Consent Calendar section; or may be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard 
later. Those items followed by an asterisk (*) are items on the agenda upon which the Board of Trustees will take no action. Members of the public who are disabled 
and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to call IVGID at 832-1100 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. IVGID'S agenda 
packets are available at IVGID's website, www.yourtahoeplace.com; go to "Board Meetings and Agendas”. 
 
 

Page 3 of 202

https://www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/meetings-and-agendas
https://notice.nv.gov/


  Item E.1. 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
TO:   Board of Trustees 
 
THROUGH:  Mike Bandelin 
   Interim General Manager 
 
FROM:  Erin Feore, Director of Human Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible action to consider the following 

applicants, Mitchell Dion, Robert Field and Beverli Marshall for 
the vacant IVGID General Manager position, to include 
interview of candidates, possible selection of the General 
Manager position and/or a possible alternative choice, and 
possible direction to staff to proceed with negotiations of 
employment contract. 

  
RELATED STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVE(S):  Long Range Principal #4 – Workforce 

Comply with applicable Federal, State, County and governmental 
regulations and all District policies  

 
RELATED DISTRICT POLICY, PRACTICES, RESOLUTIONS or 
ORDINANCES:  N/A 
 
DATE:  January 24, 2024 
 
 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Following the interview process with the General Manager candidates, the Board 
makes a motion to: 

1. Designate selected candidate and, possibly, designate second choice; and 
2. Direct staff and/or legal counsel to complete the negotiation of the 

employment contract for newly hired General Manager. 
 
II. BACKGROUND 
 
On August 30, 2023, the Board of Trustees selected the executive search firm of 
Bob Hall and Associates and authorized the Director of Human Resources and 
Interim General Manager to engage in services with said agency. 
 

Page 4 of 202



GM Recruitment, Candidate Selection, and 
Employment Contract Designation 
Special Meeting Date Request -2- January 24, 2024 
 
 
On January 9, 2024, Bob Hall and Associates proposed four candidates for 
District Board of Trustees’ consideration for the position of General Manager.  
Prior to the date of this memo, one of the candidates rescinded their interest for 
personal reasons.  A panel assessment of these proposed candidates was 
conducted on January 9, 2024.  The panel consisted of the Interim General 
Manager, Mike Bandelin; Interim Director of Finance, Bobby Magee; Director of 
Human Resources, Erin Feore and Talent Acquisition Specialist, Lisa Hoopes. 
 
The following candidates were selected to be considered by the Board of 
Trustees for hire: 
 Mitchell Dion 
 Robert Field 
 Beverli Marshall 
 
IVGD staff recommends the following procedure for conducting candidate 
interviews: 
 
Candidate resumes, cover letters and supplemental information (if provided) are 
included in this Board packet for review.  Following a brief introductory 
presentation (not to exceed five minutes) in which each candidate will highlight 
their experience and background, the Trustees will each take turns (as 
coordinated by the Board Chair) to ask questions of each candidates.  It is 
recommended that candidate interviews do not exceed 50 minutes. 
 
Following the last candidate’s interview, the Board Chair may allow for public 
comment. 
 
After public comment, the Board will proceed to nominate their top candidate for 
the General Manager position.  The District Clerk will read aloud each Trustee’s 
selection to identify the top two candidates. 

• If there is a unanimous selection, the Board Chair will proceed as noted 
below.   

• If there is not a unanimous selection, the Board Chair will call for a second 
vote in which case all Trustees will be directed to select their top candidate 
from the top two identified candidates from the previous nomination round. 

• The District Clerk will again read aloud each Trustee’s selection to identify 
the top candidate. 

 
The Board Chair will ask for a motion to select the top candidate for the position.  
Once the motion is passed and the top candidate is formally announced, the 
Board Chair may provide direction to IVGID staff and/or legal counsel to 

Page 5 of 202



GM Recruitment, Candidate Selection, and 
Employment Contract Designation 
Special Meeting Date Request -3- January 24, 2024 
 
 
negotiate the new employment contract for the new General Manager and the 
Director of Human Resources will coordinate with appropriate staff to bring back 
for future consideration the proposed contract for review and possible 
consideration. 
 
III. BID RESULTS 
 
Not Applicable 
 
IV. ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board may choose to not select any of the proposed candidates and give 
further direction to IVGID staff regarding the General Manager recruitment 
process: 

• Direct staff to review and select for proposal a new Executive Search Firm; 
or 

• Direct staff to engage with previously identified second choice Executive 
Search Firm (Koff and Associates) for services not to exceed $50,000*; or 

• Direct staff to discontinue search process until further notice. 
 
*Rate noted is previously approved spending authority maximum for professional 
services with Bob Hall and Associates.  Additionally, any proposed contract would 
require further Board approval; as such, the IVGID staff would return to the Board for 
direct approval before formally engaging with selected executive search firm. 
 
V. ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Candidate Resumes 
2. General Manager Job Description 

 
 
VI. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 

Selection of top candidate for the General Manager position. Direction to 
proceed to employment contract negotiations. 

Page 6 of 202



 
Re:  General Manager, Incline Village General Improvement District, NV 

 

 
Mitchell S. Dion 

 

Page 7 of 202



Mitchell S. Dion                                                                                                                                                                                        (760) 535-7137 

Mitchell S. Dion                                                                                       
    Innovative, politically astute, and agile executive with extensive leadership experience embracing fiscally sound, 

measured and responsible solutions.   
 
 
 

Vision & Innovation 
Optimize Business and Engineering Systems 

Fiscal Acumen 

Legislative & Strategic Affairs 
Employee Relations & Development 

State and Regional Leadership
 

General Manager, Kingsbury General Improvement District                                                                                     8/21 to cur 
Led small and highly responsive agency providing water, wastewater, roads, snow removal and drainage services 
navigating the complexity of the Tahoe Basin.  Provide mentorship and employee development for district. 

 Organized and led coalition of GIDs for representation and mutual support in County and State Issues 
 Secured $2.5 million grant for consolidation of small failing system 
 Implemented capital planning process for water, wastewater and stormwater while driving robust waterline and road 

improvement program 
 Revised business and maintenance management process 
 Led revisions to the development review and approval process 
 Successfully led labor negotiations consistent with Board priorities 

Assistant General Manager, Pasadena Water & Power, CA                                                                                              11/17 to 8/21 
Oversee complex utility operations and services for City.  Provide technical and administrative direction to executives and 
managers.  Coordinate legal, risk management and regulatory issues.  Represent City on numerous local, regional and state 
wide boards and stakeholder groups.  Conduct analysis and provide recommendations to City Council on legislative and 
policy issues.  Awarded Champion of Change by Outward Bound Adventures for inclusion and diversity in the Outdoors. 
   

 Developed watershed stewardship program academy for High School students in disadvantaged community 
 Served on labor negotiations team, recommending and meeting policy objectives of City Council 
 Led realignment of management team using analytical decision tools to improve service delivery and accountability 
 Mapped and implemented relationship building with diverse public stakeholder groups to embrace resources plan 
 Restructured CIP delivery improving results and reduced costs provided focus on resiliency and long term reliability 
 Spearheaded regional groundwater replenishment program and negotiated regional water transfers 

 

Consultant (Sacramento and San Diego)                                                                   06/14 to 11/17 
      Adjunct senior executive providing technical veracity and applying quantification decision tools for a variety of service 

areas.  Supervising teams, provided technical program management, administrative support and development services 
for communities up to 300,000 people.  Manage CIP, special projects and diverse portfolio of water and energy assets, 
oversee projects and analysis of legislative and planning proposals while enhancing strategic affairs. Conduct 
performance audit and cost of service study to address rates. Participate and led regional teams addressing; SGMA, 
discharge permitting, conjunctive use, aquifer storage and recovery, solid waste and energy management. 

 

 Drafted Voluntary Settlement provisions used by Sacramento Area Agencies 
 Introduced Regional Groundwater Bank and provided financial framework to implement groundwater transfer and conjunctive 

use to enhance resiliency 
 Enhanced local relationships and managed dialogue de-conflicting agencies 
 Transformed masterplan using analytics and risk based decision tools for business case decisions on asset management 
 Saved 15% on overhead, focused on design and enhanced delivery of the CIP with award winning results 
 Integrated technical services, AMI, CMMS and GIS for improved customer service and resource management 
 Initiated policy vision enabling adaptive practices for climate, regulatory response and sustainability in masterplan 

 

General Manager, Calaveras County Water District, CA                                                                                    12/12 to 06/14 
Led diverse agency including all aspects of resource management; 1100 square mile service area with 13 wastewater and 
10 drinking water improvement districts, three hydroelectric plants (2 FERC projects 276mw), ag water, wholesale water 
and recreation facilities from the crest of the Sierras to Central Valley (110 FTE). 
 

 Successfully eliminated 10% in overhead expenses while improving efficiencies 
 Initiated FERC relicense and branding strategies fostering water rights alignment for broad benefits 
 Effectively pursued legislation enabling storage to facilitate water transfers  
 Successfully obtained State and Federal funding for disadvantaged communities and response to disaster recovery 
 Resolved lingering litigation and related compliance requirements and addressed festering labor issues 
 Engaged state & federal water and land agencies providing framework of state priority for resiliency in headwaters  

  

 

Page 8 of 202



Mitchell S. Dion                                                                                                                                                                              (760) 535-7137 
 

General Manager, Rincon del Diablo M.W.D., San Diego County, CA                                                                  03/07 to 01/13 

Led Water & Recycled Water and Fire Protection District, responsible to implement the policies of the Board of Directors, 
provided leadership, and managed restructuring the district reducing personnel and costs.  Provided technical expertise 
in complex utility programs, steered; Community and Professional organizations leading policy and regulatory initiatives.   
 

 Recognized leader and innovator successfully leveraged resources for water quality, reliability and infrastructure 
 Achieved over 35% offset of potable use by recycled water within 3 years 
 Led innovative Strategic Planning process producing unique monitoring and communications tool 
 Modernized district information systems, including, AMI deployment and Business System and Process reforms 
 Enhanced the customer experience based upon Analytics Business Intelligence (ABI) and integration of GIS tools 
 Award winning communications program including Rincon 24/7  
 Cofounder CSU San Marcos Utility Executive Certificate Program providing post-grad education to Utility professionals 

Director of Community Development (Public Works and Planning), Douglas County, NV                         07/06 to 03/07* 

Manage diverse department consisting of Planning, Engineering, Building Official, Roads, and Utilities Divisions providing 
general government and municipal services for the County.  Responsible to coordinate the public services delivery and 
champion economic development initiatives balancing the distinctive challenges of rural Nevada while addressing 
services in rapidly urbanizing areas, including the Casino core and tourism for Lake Tahoe.  Oversee and administer the 
National Flood Insurance program and address flood map impacts to the community.  * position eliminated in recession 

 Oversaw seven independent water utilities, two wastewater utilities and a regional wastewater plant with recycled water with 
unique challenges of managing utilities within the Tahoe Basin including California Lahontan RWQCB. 

 Led multiple agencies (including tribes) in regional cooperation on water, stormwater, solid waste and land-use  
 Implemented a significant capital program for utilities; extensive groundwater monitoring and modeling program 
 Resolved a contentious slow growth controversy with a series of community meeting and small working groups 
 Raised the quality of services and the quality of development occurring in the community by fostering an environment which 

professional and technical staff were empowered to make decisions 
General Manager/Production Director, American Water Western Region                                                      07/03 to 08/06  

Oversaw regulated and non-regulated water and wastewater facilities in several western states providing water, sewer and 
reclaimed water services for over 2 million people through several of the company’s largest and most sophisticated 
treatment facilities.  Develop, implement and monitor performance matrices of several managers and executives (340 FTE). 

 Effectively negotiated and managed O&M contracted water & wastewater services for several mid-sized and large cities; 
including Seattle, Phoenix, Stockton and Houston   

 Optimized processes, provided guidance and policy as necessary across all functional areas to plan, organize and execute the 
business and operational objectives achieving fiscal goals 

 Led technical assessments and develop system operations plans for treatment, distribution and collection systems 
 Engaged with elected officials and public agency personnel enhancing planning and service delivery 
 Elected as Chairman Sacramento Groundwater Authority and Executive Board for the Regional Water Authority 
 Improved rapport with other major water agencies, pursuing collaborative enhancements to the water supply  
 Addressed complex regulatory and litigation issues resulted from contaminated ground water supplies 
 Successful in rate case prepared for the California Public Utility Commission requiring keen attention to detail 

Deputy Director of Public Works, City of Woodland, CA                                                                                    08/00 to 07/03  
Managed Utilities and Public Works O&M activities for City of Woodland.  Oversaw planning and implementation of 
Water, Wastewater, and Stormwater, as well as, Street, Fleet & Facilities, Trees and Solidwaste/recycling programs. 
Coordinate all aspects for the Water and Wastewater utilities.  

 Led two community advisory groups; to modernize solid waste & green waste collection 
 Favorably negotiated with regulatory agencies, ensuring compliance for drinking water and wastewater utilities 
 Participated on RWQCB committee for Basin Plan amendments to facilitate the use of recycled water and conjunctive use of 

the groundwater basin 
 Initiated petition of new surface water rights successfully guiding effort to become the Woodland/Davis Treatment Plant 
 Modernized solid waste and green waste collection 

Utility Manager, City of Lacey, WA                                                                                                                                           09/95 to 09/00  
Oversaw and managed community Utilities (20,000 water/ww connections). Provided strategic planning, perform 
technical analysis, coordinate compliance and environmental regulation, direct project design & construction, manage 
public outreach & education programs, develop & recommend policy for elected officials.  

 “First in nation” zero runoff ordnance for fully mitigated developments 
 Developed and implemented analytical performance criteria on specific programs for water quality monitoring, wetland 

protection, and drinking water source development 
 Distinguished recognition by the USEPA for communications and community engagement during water contamination 

emergency  

Page 9 of 202



Mitchell S. Dion                                                                                                                                                                              (760) 535-7137 
 

Engineer Officer United States Marine Corps key assignments include: 

Marine Corps Liaison to the State of California  
Conduct analysis and communicate USMC perspective to legislature and regulatory agencies while engaging on 
proposed legislation, enforcement and implementation of programs, particularly Resource Planning, Water & 
Energy, Land use, Air Quality, Water Quality (NPDES), Watersheds, ESA, NEPA/CEQA, Transportation Planning 
and Affordable Housing.  

 A unique portal into the State and opportunity to engage and influence officials and nongovernmental groups at all levels 
 Awarded for  innovative work with State Agencies and as staff member to California Defense Retention Council (BRAC) 
 Generated handbook to guide communities and base planning efforts for Governor’s Office of Planning and Research  
 Introduced integrated strategy for several western states to leverage verse compete for mission (retaining bases) 

Director of Facilities, Marine Corps Mountain Warfare Training Center, Bridgeport CA  
Managed infrastructure and services for an isolated, self-contained community. Uniquely challenged base and 
airfield operations: high altitude, environmentally sensitive setting near Yosemite National Park in National 
Forest. Developed and implemented a comprehensive environmental compliance program. 

 Led Master planning process providing for the coordination with applicable Federal, State, and Local agencies  
 Acquired in-depth knowledge and practical experience in California and Federal environmental regulatory programs  
 Successful collaborative approach working with NGO and other stakeholder groups  
 Successful within California Legislature to modify the proposed designation for the Walker River to Wild and Recreation 

mitigating impacts to military training and base operations 
 Negotiated favorable permit conditions with Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

Deputy Director, Facilities Management Dept, Marine Corps Air Bases, Western Area, El Toro, CA  
Successfully provided leadership for traditionally structured municipal Public Works organization managing over 
425 personnel with operational budget of $55M and capital program of $350M. Oversaw the public works 
operations and services for these large, complex communities.  

 Implemented a cutting edge private venture capital project to provide additional military housing 
 Led development of a competitive bid for service functions in the Commercial Activities (A-76) program 
 Managed several large environmental remediation projects and implemented a reclaimed water project for aircraft 

hangar deluge system and golf course irrigation  
Facilities Officer, Marine Corps Base, Camp Pendleton, CA 
Lead department providing routine and emergency maintenance, construction and service contracting, energy 
and utilities services, solid waste programs including recycling and landfill operations. 

 Closed two landfill sites and addressed numerous legacy issues including methane recovery 
 Initiated long term water supply negotiation resolving contested water rights with adjacent agency 

Professional Development: 
M.S. Systems Management- R&D, School of Engineering 
University of Southern California, Los Angeles 
 

B.A. Environment Studies, California State University 
Sacramento 
 

A.A. General Ed/Science 
American River College, Sacramento 
 
Professional level military schools:  
U.S. Army; Advanced Engineer Officer Course  
(M.S. Construction Management):  
U.S. Marine Corps; Engineer Officer, Utility Officer Courses:  
U.S. Navy; Civil Engineer Officer School;  
Public Works Management, Construction Contract 
Administration, Planning, Energy and Service Contract 
Programs: 
U.S. Navy; Environmental Law 
FEMA Emergency Management Institute, Floodplain Mgmt; 
NIMS 
 

Memberships: 
Active in CMUA, ACWA, and AMWA 

Member AWWA, APWA, CWEA, AWRA, GRA, CASA 
Member Delta Nutrients State Advisory Committee 
Former Board Member: San Diego County Water Authority 
(Chairman Water Supply Planning Committee) 
Former Board Member: North County Econ Development Council 
Former Board member: Carson Area Metropolitan Planning Org. 
Former Director Sacramento Regional Water Authority 
Former Chairman Sacramento Groundwater Authority 
Former President Council of Water Utilities, San Diego 
Certification:   
WA WDM 3   
CA/NV Cross Connection Specialist 
CA WDO 2 
 

Volunteer: 
San Juan School District, Env. Ed, Camp Winthers, Soda Springs 
Sacramento Creek week 
San Diego – I love a Clean San Diego Beach and Creek clean-up  

Page 10 of 202



Page 11 of 202



Page 12 of 202



Page 13 of 202



Page 14 of 202



Page 15 of 202



Page 16 of 202



Page 17 of 202



Page 18 of 202



Page 19 of 202



Page 20 of 202



Page 21 of 202



Page 22 of 202



Page 23 of 202



Page 24 of 202



Page 25 of 202



Page 26 of 202



Item F.1.

Page 27 of 202



Page 28 of 202



Page 29 of 202



Page 30 of 202



Page 31 of 202



Page 32 of 202



Page 33 of 202



Page 34 of 202



Page 35 of 202



Page 36 of 202



Page 37 of 202



Page 38 of 202



Page 39 of 202



Page 40 of 202



Page 41 of 202



Page 42 of 202



Page 43 of 202



Page 44 of 202



Page 45 of 202



Director of Golf/Comm Svcs
Community Services

FTYRB

District Merchandiser
Golf

FTYRB

Grounds Superintendant
Golf

FTYRB

Asst Superintendent-Mtn Ops
Mountain Golf

FTYRB

Maintenance Crew Foreman
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Asst Superintendent - Champ Course
Golf

FTYRB

Champ Grounds Staff
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Irrigation Tech 
Champ/Mtn Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Sr Head Golf Professional
Golf

FTYRB

Assistant Professional/
Tournament Director

Golf
SM-B

Golf Shop Lead Mtn Course
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Golf Shop Staff
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Outside Supervisor Mtn Course
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Outside Staff
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Starters/Rangers Mtn
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Outside Supervisor
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Outside Staff
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

First Assistant Professional
Golf

FTYRB

Golf Shop Lead
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Golf Shop Staff
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Starters/Rangers
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Marketing Manager
Community Services

FTYRB

Marketing Coordinator
Community Services

FTYRB

Videographer
Ski

PT/YR-NB

Mountain Grounds Staff
Golf

Seasonal FT/PT - NB

Sales & Events Coordinator
Facilities
FTYRB

Front Desk Receptionist
Facilities

PT/YR-NB

Events Coordinator
Facilities
FTYRB

Captains / Servers
Facilities
On-Call

Facilities Operations
Facilities
On-Call

Facilities Ops Lead
Facilities
FTYRB

Banquet Bar Captain
Facilities
On-Call

Golf

IVGID
02/28/23

Ite

Item F.2.m 

Page 46 of 202



3101A-Director-of-Golf- 11/02/23   Page 1 of 4 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Job Description 

 
Job Title:  Director of Golf  
Job Number: 3101A 
Salary Grade: 38 
Department:  Golf 
Reports To:  General Manager   
FLSA Status:  Exempt - Executive 
Prepared By:  M. Bandelin/E. Feore 
Prepared Date:  1/08/19 Revised 11/02/23 
Approved By:  M. Bandelin 
Approved Date:  11/02/2023 
  
SUMMARY  
This position is responsible for the leadership and management of The Golf Courses at Incline Village to include the 
Championship and Mountain Courses. This includes Golf, Facilities & Events on a year round basis, and Marketing, 
Food & Beverage operations on a seasonal basis. Provides direction, supervision, coaching and support of staff and 
management of resources consistent with the general administrative direction of the General Manager. The incumbent 
performs high level administrative, technical and professional work, while overseeing the development of activities and 
operations of a comprehensive golf program and associated projects. The Director ensures all services meet or exceed 
resident and general public expectations by performing the following duties personally or through subordinate staff. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES, not necessarily in order of priority, include the following.  
Assigned job tasks/duties are not limited to the essential functions. 
 
1. Provides excellent customer service to internal and external customers and business partners. 
 
2. Assumes full leadership and management responsibility and is accountable for golf operations including, Pro Shop 
and Merchandising, customer ‘retention’ service and staffing levels, driving range operations, golf instructions, 
tournament organization, Point of Sale system, reservations, starter/ranger, outside services, course conditions and 
administrative processes at both courses. 
 
3. Provides staff leadership, direction and coaching to ensure efficient and effective delivery of programs and services; 
anticipates the need for and plans for changes within all areas of responsibility. Directs and manages the seasonal 
operations of Food & Beverage, and year round operations of Golf and Facilities & Events. Works closely with 
management staff on the development, implementation and maintenance of golf course grounds related projects; and 
review of their departmental budgets, goals and objectives.    
 
4.  Collaborates with the marketing and communications divisions in the development of Golf related marketing 
collateral. Promotes the Division’s programs and responds to community inquiries and/or complaints by investigating 
issues as necessary and overseeing or handling requests for service. 
 
5. Oversees, leads and directs the Head Golf Professional, Grounds Superintendent and support staff in daily 
operations for two 18-hole golf courses; selects, develops and evaluates staff and training designed to enhance and 
improve the delivery of services; responds to and resolves staff concerns and complaints; advises on appropriate 
disciplinary or corrective measures due to performance and/or behavior issues throughout the District. 
 
6. Oversees and organizes common interest groups; ensuring that department programs serve the needs of the 
communities, and the needs and interest of the public remain paramount. 

 
7. Leads and manages the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies and priorities for Golf, 
Facilities & Events, and, on a seasonal basis, Marketing and Food & Beverage to provide the optimum delivery of 
services and operations; directs the establishment of standard operating procedures for all work related activity.  
 
8. Develops, evaluates and implements a Golf Strategic Management and Business Plan, including related policies and 
procedures to meet the District’s goals and objectives. Performs long-range strategic planning for current and new  

Page 47 of 202



3101A-Director-of-Golf- 11/02/23   Page 2 of 4 

 
facilities and programs to generate new revenue and improve operations; schedules regular maintenance of current 
facilities; prepares planning documents including facility planning, management operation costs and site locations. 
Collaborates daily with staff in food & beverage, grounds, building maintenance, marketing, and accounting divisions to 
communicate activities and events taking place to ensure integration of necessary services to meet customer 
expectations. 

 
9. Serves as liaison to community and advisory groups, county, government and non-profit agencies and others 
concerned with Golf division programs and activities. 

 
10. Collaborates with venue management to prepare and administer the golf annual operating budget and capital 
improvement budget; monitors and controls budgets using computerized financial accounting and point of sale systems 
to ensure compliance; accounts for variances between projected and actual expenditures. Plans, develops and 
implements new methods and procedures designed to improve operations, minimize operating costs, and effect greater 
utilization of labor and materials. 
 
11. Responds to and resolves inquires, questions and sensitive complaints from residents, non-residents and employees.  
 
12. Analyzes golf course utilization by residents and non-residents for use in future policy and budget development and 
recommendations. Develops and administers resident and non-resident tee time allocations and access, merchandising 
policies and practices, speed of play programs, etc. 

 
13. Serves as a member of the Senior Management Team; participates in formulating and administering District policies 
and developing long-range goals and objectives. 
 
14. Prepares and makes oral and written presentations to the Board of Trustees and to other public and private groups; 
provides information to the news media and the community regarding the District’s golf courses; represents the District 
with other government agencies and in meeting with the community; prepares a variety of reports, statistics, studies and 
related information for decision making purposes. 
 
15. Plays golf at the Championship and Mountain Golf Courses for the purpose of promoting customer relations, 
observing course playability, and making recommendations to maintenance staff on course conditions, and operating 
methods. 
 
16.  Inputs and/or monitors employee time & pay records using an automated system. Ensures records are accurate each 
month.  
 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES  
Selects, and manages year-round and seasonal subordinate supervisors, who supervise seasonal and part-time staff in 
multiple divisions; develops and implements training programs to enhance staff capability and improve the delivery of 
services through mentoring, and motivation. Carries out supervisory responsibilities in accordance with the District 
policies and applicable laws. Responsibilities include interviewing, hiring, and training employees; planning, assigning, 
and directing work; appraising performance; rewarding and disciplining employees; addressing complaints and 
resolving problems. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS  To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty 
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE  
Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university and ten years’ increasingly responsible experience in golf 
course operations or related customer retention service environment, with seven years in a management position; or 
equivalent combination of education and experience. 
 
KNOWLEDGE 
Knowledge of current principles and practices of leadership, management and supervision; all aspects of golf course 
management; principles of financial/budgeting preparation and administration; thorough knowledge of methods and 
 

Page 48 of 202



3101A-Director-of-Golf- 11/02/23   Page 3 of 4 

  
techniques of data collection, analysis and report preparation; word processing, spreadsheets, database, and presentation 
computer applications; knowledge and understanding of all aspects of golf course management all USGA rules and 
regulations; current technological development/trends in golf course design, maintenance and equipment; 
merchandising and competitive courses.  
 
COMPREHENSION/COMMUNICATION SKILLS 
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret technical journals, financial reports, and legal documents. Ability to respond to 
inquiries or complaints from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the community. Ability to write articles for 
publication that conform to prescribed style and format. Ability to effectively present information to employees, 
management, customers, suppliers, public groups, and the Board of Trustees. Effectively present information, findings, 
recommendations and policies to individuals and groups in an understandable and persuasive manner; effectively 
respond to inquires, concerns, or complaints from employees, customers, regulatory agencies or member of the 
community. The duties and responsibilities of this position necessitate the use of a cellular phone and the use of social 
media for District business reasons. 
 
MATHEMATICAL SKILLS  
Ability to apply advanced mathematical concepts to develop formulas for resident/non-resident access and allocations, 
revenue projections, expense analyses; apply mathematical operations to such tasks as frequency distribution, variance 
analysis, and factor analysis associated with golf course utilization, cost of goods, margin and merchandise inventory. 
 
REASONING ABILITY  
Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions. Ability to interpret an extensive 
variety of technical instructions and deal with several abstract and concrete variables. Analyze complex administrative, 
operational and organizational problems, evaluate alternatives, project consequences of actions and decisions, and 
select, and/or recommend and implement appropriate solutions 
 
CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS 
Valid Driver’s License. Class A PGA/LPGA Professional. Ability to obtain Washoe County Sheriff’s Work Permit  
equaling Liquor within one week from date of employment; with application made concurrent with date of employment. 
Ability to pass Alcohol Awareness Training and receive Alcohol Awareness card within 30 days of date of hire. 
Successful completion State of Nevada/Federal background check through fingerprinting because position has 
unsupervised access to children, the elderly or individuals with disabilities and/or has access to their records. Pursuant 
to National Child Protection Act (NCPA) of 1993 as amended by the Volunteers for Children Act (VCA). It is the 
employee’s responsibility to maintain all required certifications and licenses and to report any changes to the supervisor. 
 
OTHER SKILLS OR ABILITIES 
Ability to develop policies, goals, and services consistent with areas of responsibilities; work effectively under pressure 
of deadlines and conflicting demands; organize work and set priorities to meet critical deadlines; track status of on-
going projects; establish, foster and maintain effective working relationships with all levels of employees, elected 
officials and community members; gain cooperation through discussion and persuasion; effectively deal with conflict; 
use initiative and independent judgment within areas of responsibility. Excellent organizational, administrative, 
analytical and customer service skills; strong computer skills in Microsoft Office, financial accounting, point of sale and 
other golf related applications; ability to play the game of golf and to instruct at all levels (beginner to advanced); ability 
to plan, organize, coordinate and facilitate major golf events; a skilled visionary leader for supervising, training, 
mentoring, motivating, communicating, coaching, counseling and advising on disciplinary matter/actions; and ability to 
work a schedule which includes weekends and holidays 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS  The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. In compliance with applicable disability laws, 
reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualified individuals with a disability who require and request such 
accommodations. Applicants and incumbents are encouraged to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands to finger, handle, or feel and 
talk or hear. The employee frequently is required to sit, reach with hands and arms, twist and swing arms and torso. The 
employee is occasionally required to stand; walk; climb or balance; and stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl. The employee 
must regularly lift and/or move up to 10 pounds and occasionally lift and/or move up to 50 pounds. Specific vision  
 

Page 49 of 202



3101A-Director-of-Golf- 11/02/23   Page 4 of 4 

 
abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and ability to 
adjust focus.  
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT  The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an 
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently exposed to fumes or airborne particles, outside 
weather conditions and risk of radiation from the sun. The employee is occasionally exposed to toxic or caustic 
chemicals, wet and humid conditions and risk of electrical shock. The noise level in the work environment is moderate. 
 
I have read and understand this explanation and job description. 
 
Employee Signature: __________________________________   Date:  __________  __ 
 
Employee Name:     

Page 50 of 202



SAMPLE

 DIRECTOR OF GOLF JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Concept: As a member of the Golf Management Team, the Director of Golf will oversee the total golf 
operation and services offered including the golf shop, golf range, golf services areas and golf car operation 
including supervision of the head golf professional. The position will promote an exceptional "golf experience," 
and provide excellent services and programs for all patrons. 

Supervised By: _______________________________

The Position Supervises: (check those that apply)

          □ Head Professional                    □ Player Development Manager        □ Tournament Director
          □ Assistant Professionals              □ Merchandise Manager                           □ Beverage Cart Attendant
          □ Golf Shop Service Staff                □ Club Fitter/Club Repair Staff                □ Locker Room Staff
          □ Teaching Professionals               □ Outside Service Staff                             □ Cart Mechanic
                    □ Other _______________                                                                                                                          

Prioritized Keys to Successful Performance
#1 _________________________________________            #4 ________________________________________
#2 _________________________________________            #5 ________________________________________
#3 _________________________________________            #6 ________________________________________

Specific Responsibilities  - include but are not limited to:

• Oversee the management and performance of all golf shop and applicable department operations and services; 
assure high standards and total customer satisfaction 

• Establish golf shop operations personnel policies and ensure proper hiring, training, supervising, personal 
development and corrective action in accordance with fair labor standards, safety and established policy 

• Oversee the development of operating procedures and training manuals for the golf operation
• Oversee and manage the Head Golf Professional(s) and all golf department staff
• Schedules and chairs regular staff meetings focused on customers, operations, revenue growth, cost 

containment and continuous improvement
• Attends as invited committee/staff/public meetings representing the facility
• Develop/coordinate the development of annual business plans for the golf operation 
• Coordinate and ensure all written correspondence, reporting, newsletters, and communications for the golf 

operation
• Coordinate plans with the Food and Beverage Manager for all food and beverage needs, on-course food and 

beverage needs, banquets, outside events, and catering for all golf functions
• Meet, greet, and welcome prospective customers/patrons
• Enforce all rules and regulations governing golf course usage 
• Develop and oversee an innovative tournament schedule and golf activities program that services all customer 

segments
• Develop and oversee golf instruction, clinics, golf schools, and player development programs for all customer 

segments 
• Develop and oversee a profitable merchandise concession that is consistent with customer/patron 

demographics and needs
• Oversee golf marketing initiatives including all promotional materials, play recruitment, yield management, 

golf packages, and outside events plus the promotion of new golf memberships (where applicable)
• Oversee all fiscal areas and performance for the golf operations including planning, budgeting, forecasting, 

monitoring, and correction
• Establish sales goals and forecasts for all golf programs and services; generate, monitor and analyze reports
• Maintain a close working relationship with the Golf Course Superintendent and other department heads
• Play golf with customers/patrons of all skill levels as time and duties permit

Page 51 of 202



Director of Golf Sample Job Description, page 2

• Oversee and enforce golf shop operations policies, procedures, controls, and fee structures to ensure the 
safekeeping of assets, inventory and resources

• Where applicable, supervise the Membership Sales Director in the promotion of new member leads, interaction 
with prospective members and orientation of new members

Knowledge, Skills and Traits

• Maintain PGA of America membership in good standing in an active classification
• Actively pursue PGA membership (if a PGA Apprentice) in a timely manner through the PGA Professional 

Golf Management (PGA PGM) program
• Fundamental knowledge of the game of golf, rules of golf, golf facility operations and tournament operations
• Fundamental supervisory practices and principles
• Act as a role model for all employees by demonstrating the behavior and work ethic expected of all employees
• Strong organizational, planning and prioritization skills
• Self-motivated with desire to promote and market
• Service and customer focused attitude
• Experienced in written and oral business communications
• Remain up-to-date on customer relationship management tactics and strategies 
• Utilize the resources of PGA player development programs such as Get Golf Ready, PGA Sports Academy, 

Tee it Forward and others
• Experienced computer user including; Microsoft Word and Excel. Proficient in other applications, i.e. email, 

internet, tournament and database
• Maintain and promote a positive professional image within the community
• Attend conferences, workshops, meetings, and trade shows to keep abreast of marketing and business trends
• Maintain a credible golf game and remain current on teaching innovations

Notice:  Employers may consider adding the following optional components to this document

• Work experience and/or education requirements 
• Qualifications/Certifications/Licensures
• Working  conditions
• Typical physical demands
• Equipment operated
• Exemption classification – Exempt or Non-Exempt Classification
• Confidential data available to employee
• Compensation information

Page 52 of 202



EXAMPLES OF GOLF GENERAL MANAGER JOB DESCRIPTIONS 

General Manager Responsibilities include but are not limited to the 
following:

• Prepares and monitors annual budget, revenue goals and expenses as well 
as generating various (weekly, monthly, etc.) business volume forecasts.

• Monitors monthly and other financial reports/statements on a daily, 
weekly and monthly basis for the facility and takes effective corrective 
action when necessary.

• Establishes basic personnel policy, initiates and establishes basic 
personnel policy, initiates and monitors policies relating to personnel 
actions and training along with professional development programs.

• Ensures all Human Resources procedures and policies are followed by 
management staff.

• Develops, maintains and administers a sound organizational plan and 
initiates improvements as necessary.

• Maintains membership with the PGA and CMAA and other professional 
associations. Attends workshops and meetings to keep abreast of current 
information and developments.

• Oversees the care and maintenance of all the facility’s physical assets and 
each individual facility.

• Coordinates marketing programs to promote the facility’s services to 
potential customers.

• Ensures the highest standards for food and beverage service on property.
• Implements policies and procedures for multiple departments, including 

compliance of all company standards relating to quality of products and 
services.

• Responsible for interviewing, hiring, training, planning, assigning, and 
directing work, evaluating performance, rewarding, and disciplining 
associates; addressing complaints and resolving problems.

• Directly manages department members that may include, but is not limited 
to: Head Professional(s), Golf Course Superintendent(s), Tournament 
Coordinator, Director of Instruction, Food and Beverage Manager, etc.

• Assures that effective orientation and training are given to each new 
associate. Develops ongoing training programs.

Education / Experience Required:

Page 53 of 202



• Bachelor’s degree (BA) from four-year college or university; or one to two 
years related experience and/or training; or equivalent combination of 
education and experience.

• PGA or CMAA affiliation preferred, but not required.
• Experience in or extensive knowledge of Food and Beverage operations 

required.

Page 54 of 202



Key Responsibilities of the General Manager:

• Prepares and monitors annual budget, revenue goals and expenses as well 
as generating various (weekly, monthly, etc.) business volume forecasts.

• Monitors monthly and other financial reports/statements on a daily, 
weekly and monthly basis for the facility and takes effective corrective 
action when necessary.

• Maintains and increases membership sales as necessary
• Establishes and implements Troon personnel policy, initiates and monitors 

policies relating to personnel actions and training along with professional 
development programs.

• Ensures all Human Resources procedures and policies are followed by 
management staff.

• Develops, maintains and administers a sound organizational plan and 
initiates improvements as necessary.

• Maintains membership with the PGA and CMAA and other professional 
associations. Attends workshops and meetings to keep abreast of current 
information and developments.

• Oversees the care and maintenance of all the facility’s physical assets and 
each individual facility.

• Coordinates marketing programs to promote the facility’s services to 
potential customers.

• Ensures the highest standards for food and beverage service on property.
• Implements policies and procedures for multiple departments, including 

compliance of all company standards relating to quality of products and 
services.

• Responsible for interviewing, hiring, training, planning, assigning, and 
directing work, evaluating performance, rewarding, and disciplining 
associates; addressing complaints and resolving problems.

• Directly manages department members that may include, but is not limited 
to: Head Professional(s), Golf Course Superintendent(s), Membership 
Director, Food and Beverage Director, Tournament Coordinator, Director, 
Instruction, etc.

• Assures that effective orientation and training are given to each new 
associate. Develops ongoing training programs.

Page 55 of 202



Minimum Qualifications for the General Manager:

• Bachelor’s Degree; 5-10 years’ experience and/or the equivalent in 
experience and training in a private, member-owned club/space.

• Previous work experience as a senior operations manager of a full service 
daily fee or resort golf facility

Page 56 of 202



Full Job Description

Position Purpose

• The General Manager is responsible for the overall management of the golf 
course facility encompassing golf operations, food and beverage 
operations (including the refreshment areas and refreshment cars), and 
general administration. He/she should work closely with the 
Superintendent and course maintenance staff on a daily basis.

General Description of Duties and Responsibilities:

• Responsible for the day to day leadership of the facility providing clear 
direction to all department heads.

• Communicate and monitor the comprehensive objectives of the operation 
and be available, approachable and display leadership by example to 
others.

• Responsible for achieving the highest possible service standards on a daily 
basis to ensure consistency, product quality, and promote customer 
confidence and loyalty.

• Work closely with the marketing staff in the development and 
implementation of the annual marketing plan and initiates necessary 
adjustments throughout the year to maximize the benefit of the 
marketing efforts.

• Shall oversee the development, completion and implementation of the 
annual operating budget for each department.

• Responsible for ensuring the best possible financial performance of the 
facility by monitoring daily operations and the total revenues and 
expenses of each department.

• Shall at all times enforce and ensure policies and procedures of the facility 
are applied in an equal and fair manner for all employees and guests, in 
all departments.

• Recommend and/or establish policy and procedural changes as 
appropriate to support the goals of the operation, ownership and 
management.

• Establish methods of interdepartmental communication to include weekly 
staff meetings of the department heads and or an appropriate 
representative of each department.

Page 57 of 202



• Responsible for ensuring all new employees complete new hire orientation 
and receive departmental training specific to their related job function.

• Promote safety awareness for all departments through continual training 
to ensure a safe and productive work environment.

• Shall ensure that the general upkeep of the building structures and other 
assets of the facility are in good repair and arrange for all necessary 
repair work or preventative maintenance to be performed as appropriate 
in an expeditious manner.

• Ensure the overall cleanliness of the facility at the highest possible level.
• Ensure that all permits, licenses, fees, taxes, assessments, and/or 

regulations of a governmental agency of jurisdiction are in compliance 
with the federal, state and local requirements.

• Represent the facility and Troon Golf in various community functions in a 
way that supports the overall objectives of the ownership group.

Skills

• Able to communicate effectively and professionally in both verbal and 
written formats.

• Able to delegate responsibilities.
• Able to develop, lead and manage a team.
• Computer literate in MS Office products to include Excel, Word, Outlook 

and PowerPoint.
• Able to perform arithmetic computations for budgeting and cost analysis.

Experience / Education / Certification Requirements

• Some college education or its equivalent.
• PGA member.
• Continuing education training through PGA or CMAA.
• Prior management experience in golf industry required.
• Experience as general manager preferred.

Physical Requirements:

• Must be able to lift up to 40 lbs. to waist height.
• Some repetitive motion required including typing and data entry.
• Frequent bending, turning, kneeling and stooping may be required.

Page 58 of 202



JOB SUMMARY

Functions as the strategic business leader of golf operations. Responsible for guest and employee 
satisfaction, sales and revenue management and the financial performance of the department. 
Leads the leadership team in the development and implementation of property-wide strategies. 
Verifies implementation of the brand service strategy and brand initiatives with the objective of 
meeting or exceeding guest expectations. In addition, the General Manager builds relationships 
with key customers.

CANDIDATE PROFILE

Education and Experience

• High school diploma or GED; 2 years experience in the golf/course management; 
Professional Golfers Association (PGA) member.

OR

• 2-year degree from an accredited university in Business Administration or related 
major; no work experience required; Professional Golfers Association (PGA) 
member.

CORE WORK ACTIVITIES

Leading Property Golf Operations

• Assumes responsibility for financial goal achievement, analysis and reporting.

• Leads management team to develop and execute a business plan that achieves 
brand's and owner's financial goal achievement, analysis and reporting.

• Supports recruiting, development, training and mentoring of golf employees.

• Develops/manages operating budget, capital expenditures, food and beverage and 
marketing plan with the leadership team.

Page 59 of 202



• Verifies all units areas are maintaining compliance with corporate and brand 
standards.

• Monitors day-to-day operating of total property.

• Drives guest service and employee satisfaction.

• Maintains active membership in PGA or LPGA by fulfilling annual certification 
requirements.

• Develops a mutually beneficial relationship with all aspects of the owner's 
organization.

Managing Golf Operations

• Monitors the playing time of golfers to verify optimal speed of play on the course.

• Conducts regular tours of the course to evaluate course conditions.

• Develops the Golf department’s Operating Strategy and leads its execution.

• Reviews and manages controllable expenses such as, labor, quality and quantity of 
grass seed, lawn chemicals, inventory levels, uniforms, utilities etc.

• Works with Grounds Superintendent to verify course is maintained in accordance 
with brand specific Golf Standards and sound agronomic practices.

Managing Golf Revenue Management Goals

• Makes decisions or recommendations regarding rates per round, retail pricing and 
services offered to enhance the sales performance of the department.

• Manages financial performance of the golf department to achieve or exceed budget 
expectations.

• Adjusts services to meet customer demand and budget expectations.

• Monitors the booking of tee times to verify maximum yield.

Ensuring Exceptional Customer Service

Page 60 of 202



• Displays leadership in guest hospitality, exemplifying excellent customer service, 
and creating a positive atmosphere for guest relations.

• Empowers employees to provide excellent customer service.

• Strives to improve service performance.

• Establishes guidelines so employees understand expectations and parameters.

Conducting Human Resources Activities

• Reviews findings from guest feedback with employees to develop appropriate 
corrective action.

• Incorporates guest satisfaction as a component of departmental meetings with a focus 
on continuous improvement.

• Hires Golf team members with the appropriate skills and in a timely manner to meet 
the business needs of the operation.

• Creates appropriate developmental plans and developing team members based on 
their individual strengths, development needs, career aspirations, and abilities.

• Sets goals and expectations for direct reports using the performance appraisal 
process and holding staff accountable for successful performance; coaching team by 
providing specific feedback to improve performance.

• Conducts annual performance appraisal with direct reports according to Standard 
Operating Procedures.

• Verifies employees are treated fairly and equitably.

• Celebrates successes and publicly recognizing the contributions of team member.

Page 61 of 202



CONTRACTS REVIEWED BY TRUSTEE SCHMITZ PER POLICY 3.1
Date of 

Requested 

Review Vendor SOW Type

Date of 

Contract

Date of 

Vendor 

Signature Amount Status

1/24/2024 HDR

same as 

below see below 1/5/2024 not signed $14,815

3 weeks lapsed between the 

original review request and this 

one, the contract date is now 

backdated, one of the 

deliverable due dates was on 

1/10, prior to this contract 

having been reviewed by DOF, 

GM and myself approved. 

1/4/2024 HDR

Expansion of 

the SOW for 

the Utility 

Master Plan Addendum 1/5/2024 not signed $14,815

rework requested as the Exhibt 

with payment terms and time 

to be charged were not correct. 

I noticed, Ms. Nelson could not 

explain and the vendor was 

required to revise the exhibit. 

12/1/2023 CC Cleaning Service  Cleaning 

services at 

Diamond 

Peak

New No date 

inserted as 

of review

not signed $44,850 Accounting needs to be added 

as another email address for 

invoicing.

11/29/2023 Lumos Addendum 

to PO for 

water 

modeling at 

947 Tahoe 

Blvd. for a 

change in 

pipe size.

Addendum No date 

inserted as 

of review

not signed $5,000 The contract completion date is 

12/1. In inquiring about this 

completion date when the 

review is only 2 days prior, I 

was informed the vendor 

began the work without the 

contract. Not a best practice.

11/15/2023 Odyssey  survey of 

Snowflake 

Lodge area 

for future 

potential 

work

New 11/16/2023 not signed $3,600 OK, inquired about lack of 

vendor signature.

11/14/2023 Lumos Addendum 

to a PO 

PO ‐ 12‐28‐21 added 

scope for 947 project 

‐ additional water 

modeling 

12/28/2021 none since the 

addendum 

required 

rework

$5000 to 

be paid by 

developer

Required rework. Legal counsel 

had directed staff to change 

the language of the addendum 

to an amendment to a PO, 

however this change wasn't 

incorporated and it was 

presented as an addendum to a 

"consultant agreement" and 

none exists. Approved without 

corrections by DOF and GM. 

11/2/2023 DOWL Project 

Management

, design and 

bid 

documents ‐ 

Alder Ave. 

water line 

replacement

New 11/2/2023 No Date $70,580 OK

Item F.3.

Page 62 of 202



10/17/2023 Mann Built Construction SPS#8 new ‐ T&M ‐ charged 

to NDOT ROW 

realignment

10/17/2023 No Date $8,000 Appears to have the same error 

‐ section 3.2 references Exhibit 

B as 'plans and specification', 

yet Exhibit B is Requirements 

for Construction Manual. Same 

error as prior Mann 

Construction contract reviewed 

on 10/12; Additionally, 3.7.1 b 

incorrectly refers to Exhibit B as 

the rate schedule which is 

Exhibit C.

10/12/2023 Resource Concepts extend terms 

to 

12/13/2023 

amendment 10/3/2023 The amendment had a date 

that was backdated as a 

reference because the original 

contract was backdated. The 

orginal contract reads 

12/14/2022. but was 

backdated to 12/5/2022

10/12/2023 Resource Concepts extended 

terms 

through 

10/31/2023

amendment 10/3/2023 The amendment had a date 

that was backdated as a 

reference because the original 

contract was backdated. The 

orginal contract was on 

12/14/2022 but was backdated 

to 12/5/2022

10/12/2023 Mann Built Construction Burnt Cedar 

RFID 

earthwork

new 10/10/2023 10/11/2023 $10,500 There was an error and a 

reference to Exhibit B as plans 

and specs, but was the fee 

schedule.

10/12/2023 E‐Z‐Go Textron routine 

maintenance 

of 58 golf 

carts

PO 10/10/2023 $11,160 Fleet no longer does this 

maintenance

10/10/2023 Frontier Advisors Nolan Umana 

services ‐ 

MD&A for 

ACFR

new ‐ T&M 10/10/2023 0/10/2023 $6,000 the exhibit referred to the 

MD&A for CAFR, was changed 

to ACFR. Dates also required 

changes.

9/27/2023 GSO3 Services, LLC annual 

service and 

calibration of 

ozone 

analyzer

PO NO DATE on 

PO

9/22/2023 $15,850 PO has amount for travel and a 

blanket $4500 for parts. * on 

page not defined but upon 

question an email was received 

to state it meant receipts 

would be provided

9/26/2023 Kodiak Roofing repair of 

Mountain 

Course Roof ‐ 

covered by 

insurance

new NO DATES none provided $80,125 Who had signing authority? 

Who tracks insurance 

payment?

9/26/2023 DOWL, LLC surveying 

serv ices, 

Alder Ave.

new 9/25/2023 9/26/2023 $12,881 OK

9/25/2023 DOWL,LLC SPS#1 project amendment 1 ‐ code 

issues with electrical 

originAL DATED 

6/29/23

8/31/2023 9/21/2023 $17,250 Is this another backdating? The 

original contract was for $33K 

so what was the budget?

Page 63 of 202



9/13/2023 LA Perks DP work for 

diesel use

PO ‐ No Date on PO No Date No Date $16,404 OK other than no dates

9/13/2023 Armac pavement 

maintenance

new No Date $17,635 OK

9/1/2023 Lumos Tahoe Resort 

‐ capacity 

analysis

amendment 1  8/31/2023 9/1/2023 $5,000 fees to be reimbursed by 

developer

9/1/2023 Lumos Tahoe Resort 

‐ sewer 

evaluation

amendment 2 8/31/2023 9/1/2023 $21,300 The amendement was 

incorrectly referred to as 

Amendment 1 (corrected). No 

fee schedule included in the 

contract with Task #4 being 

T&M. Fees to be reimbursed by 

developer

8/30 (BOT), 

then again 

upon request 

to sign, 9/11 

and 9/12

TechnoAlpin DP 

Snowmaking 

Equipment 

purchase

$413,169.22  9/12/2023 8/9/2023 $413,169 This contract had many errors 

that were discovered to be 

introduced when converting to 

a .pdf. NOTE Noble AND the 

Vendor and Legal Counsel 

signed PRIOR to the finaal 

contract indicating the 

SIGNATURE PAGE WAS 

SWAPPED.

7/31/2023 Tobey Consulting Group structural 

engineering 

work for 

Mountain 

Course Roof 

at entry 

repair

NEW ‐ template used 7/31/2023 not signed $11,600 Required rework. Exhibit B was 

referenced, but not included. 

The reference to Exhibit B was 

removed.

7/31/2023 Walsh Odyssey Engineering

survey for 

Reservior 3‐1 NEW ‐ template used 7/31/2023 not signed $3,600 Good ‐ Exhibit A called out

7/31/2023 Walsh Odyssey Engineering

survey for 

skate park NEW ‐ template used 7/31/2023 not signed $4,300 Good ‐ Exhibit A called out

7/31/2023 Black Eagle Consulting

GeoTechnical 

Investigation 

for Reservior 

3‐1 NEW ‐ template used 7/31/2023 not signed $6,400

Good ‐ exhibits called out 

7/18/2023 Q & D Construction

IVGID utility 

relocation in 

NDOT ROW NEW ‐ template used 7/17/2023 7/17/2023 $36,500

Contract required modication 

to the Scope of Work to call out 

Exhibit A, the costs for the 

work. 

5/15/2023 FW Carson replace 

lateral water 

main prior to 

NDOT curb 

work 

beginning on 

5/18/2023

NEW 5/15/2023 none provided ######### Work Complete

Page 64 of 202



5/13/2023 HERO Environmental Hazardous 

Materials 

Collection 

services 

New ‐ Renewed 4/11/2023 ‐ 

11/15/2023

4/4/2023 ######### Approved after adding language 

to the agreement and the 

confidentiality agreement for 

assigined employees to include 

reference to IVGID's 

whistleblower policy and 

process

4/27/2023 Jacobs Engineering On‐Call 

Engineering 

Services

UPDATED contract 

form from CH2M 

from 2009

Not Included none provided Not to 

exceed 

$20,000

This was my request to have the 

contract form brought up to 

date.

3/23/2023 Diamond Peak Reciprocal 

Agreement

Form for use 

between 

resorts

2023‐24 season 2023‐24 ski 

season ‐ 

form

3/3/2023 CH2M, Inc. technical 

services from 

1‐31‐2023 

through 12‐

31‐2023 ‐ see 

attached 

SOW

On‐Call Professional 

Services Agreement 

Task Order 27, dated 

July 31, 2009, and as 

amended by Task 

Order 27.1 dated 

February 10, 2020 

and Amendment 2 

dated February 16, 

2022

3‐Mar‐23 N/A using 

unused 

funds of 

$18,141.25 

from prior 

contract 

Awaiting answers as to why this 

is back dated and the review of 

the orignal 2009 and 2/2022 

contracts for which funds are 

being used for this effort. Legal 

counsel was asked why this 

contract hasn't been convered 

to the new template.

2/16/2023 DOWL pond project 

field survey

NEW 2/14/2023 none provided $3,160 approved with SOW language  

change from 'effluent export 

line' to  'effluent export storage 

tank'

1/30/2023 LSC Traffic Study NEW 1/9/2023 1/17/2023 $39,550 approved with budget 

verification

1/30/2023 Brown & Read Engineering Change of 

completion 

to May 30, 

2023 ‐ 

Replacement 

of WRRF 

Amendment 1/5/2022 1/26/2023 No Charge approved

1/30/2023 Farr Engineering Undefined 

additional 

work

Amendment 10/13/2022 1/23/2023 $10,000 not approved ‐ advised staff to 

make use of specific change 

orders for clarity and defined 

scope

1/30/2023 Jacobs Engineering Extend 

completion 

date to 

7/1/2023 for 

the 100% 

design of 

pond lining 

project 

completion

Amendment 6/9/2021 1/13/2023 No Charge approved

Page 65 of 202



   INCLINE VILLAGE  
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING  
PUBLIC MEETING 

Live and Via Zoom 

Held at the Boardroom 
893 Southwood Boulevard 
Incline Village, Nevada 

Wednesday, January 10, 2024 

Reported by:  Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
Job Number:   IVGID 17 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 2
A P P E A R A N C E S 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
MATTHEW DENT, CHAIR 

MICHAELA TONKING, SECRETARY 
RAY TULLOCH, TREASURER 

DAVE NOBLE, MEMBER 

ALSO PRESENT 
SERGIO RUDIN, LEGAL COUNSEL (via Zoom) 
HEIDI WHITE, DISTRICT CLERK (via Zoom) 

-o0o-

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 3
I N D E X 

PAGE 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 4 
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES 4 
C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 4 
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 8

E. REPORTS TO THE BOARD
E 1.  General Manager's Monthly Report 9
E 2.  Public Records Request Portal 19
E 3.  Capital Projects Status 29
E 4.  Utility Master Plan 43
E 5.  IVGID Magazine Survey Results 44
E 6.  Treasurer's Report 59

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 65

G. GENERAL BUSINESS
G 1.  Appointment of Mike Lefrancois 67
G 2.  District-wide Budget Calendar/ 70

2024-2025
G 3.  Purchasing and Contract 77

Administrator Position
G 4.  Recruitment Process/GM 85
G 5.  HDR Engineering 112
G 6.  Best, Best, and Krieger LLP 119
G 7.  Board Liaisons 131

I. LONG RANGE CALENDAR 135

J. BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE 141

K. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 141

L. ADJOURNMENT 144
-o0o-

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 4
Incline Village, Nevada - 1/10/2024 - 6:00 P.M. 

-o0o-

CHAIR DENT:  All right.  It is 6:00 P.M. I
want to call the regular meeting of Incline Village
General Improvement District to order.  We are
located at 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village,
Nevada and via Zoom.  Today's January 10th, 2024.
We'll start with Item A.
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIR DENT:  Thank you for that.  Moving

on to Item B.
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Here.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Here.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Here.
CHAIR DENT:  Chair Schmitz let us know she

would not be present tonight.  I'm Trustee Dent.  We
have four out of our five trustees present.  We do
have a quorum.  

Moving on to Item C.
C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS

MR. KATZ:  Good evening, Aaron Katz,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Item G.1.

Page 66 of 202



   5
Incline Village.  I have several written statements
to be incorporated into the minutes of the meeting
I've given to Ms. Tonking.

I'm just looking at the ever-increasing
wasteful spending.  It just seems to be going on and
on.  We have a court reporter for our minutes, and
we end up spending $4,000 or more per month for this
kind of service.  Now we have an attorney that's
going to be charged nearly $300 an hour -- and for
what? -- at the board meetings.  We have a director
of admin services who is paid in excess of $160,000
a year plus benefits, and for what?  We have a new
assistant finance director we're looking for at over
$200,000 annually, plus an increase in salary for
our finance director, if we ever find one, and the
controller we got.  And a new finance position to
assist the controller.  And now a new purchasing and
contract manager at Susan Herron's old pay grade.
And let's move Ronnie Rector at Public Works to
finance.  She's the current purchasing person.  And
we still don't have a director of food and beverage
or a golf director or a community services director
or a public works director.  

Last year Central Services transfers
exploded to over $3 million annually.  And at this

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   6
rate, I'm anticipating this year's number will be
over $4 million.  So, where's the money going to
come from?

I'm concerned it can only come from two
sources: the rec fee and the beach fee.  

Even though those expenses that I've
outlined have zero to do with making recreation and
the beach facilities available for local property
owners' use.  So where's the money going to come
from?  I just don't see where we're cutting it, and
I don't like the future as I see it
financially-wise.  Hopefully, you'll address it with
the budget in the next weeks.  

Thank you.
CHAIR DENT:  Seeing no other public

comment in the room, we'll move to Zoom.
MS. CARS:  This is Linda Cars, 625 Lariat

Circle.  
We do now finally have a very strong

statistical analysis of the Washoe County signature
verification for the recall.  There were
catastrophic invalidation errors as outline that I'm
going to tell you now.  

For Matthew Dent, there were -- we needed
1,801 signatures, 1725 were approved.  We were 76

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   7
short, 165 signatures were found that pending other
issues should be valid.  165 for Matthew Dent.  

For Sara Schmitz, we were -- needed 1,801
signatures, 1687 were approved.  We were only short
114.  153 signatures for Matthew Dent were found
pending other issue that should be valid.  There
appears to be enough signatures for both trustees to
have an immediate recall election.  

So it's important to note that the
analysis doesn't include people who signed the
petitions but were invalided because they forgot to
put a date on them.  And it also includes people who
were invalidated because the petition they signed
mistakenly wasn't submitted in the proper time
period.  

So here's a summary:  There were curable
inconsistencies, 42 for Dent, 28 for Sara.  This is
where individual, signed petitions for both
trustees, but there was valid for Schmitz but
invalid for Dent for various reasons.  Curable.  Ten
inconsistencies for Dent and 17 for Sara.  These are
where it was deemed a person's signature was coded
incurable for Dent but curable for Schmitz.  How
does that happen?  27 signatures for Dent and 36
signatures for Sara, they weren't counted.  The

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   8
signatures were received by Washoe County, but not
input into the database for Dent or Sara.  And this
is not included in the numbers.  

26 signatures for Dent and 22 for Schmitz
were incorrectly invalidated with a code that deemed
incurable.  Our careful study of these signatures
shows that many of these should not have been
invalided and should have been curable.  These
people signed properly.  

There were an additional 15 people for
Schmitz and 14 -- no.  14 for Schmitz and 15 for
Dent where their name was listed in the voter
registration role that we used, given to us by the
county, but the county invalided them.  

And, finally, for Dent there were 45
signatures and for Schmitz there were 46 that were
curable, but the people --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
CHAIR DENT:  Any other Zoom comments?  
MATT:  There is not.
CHAIR DENT:  Great.  All right.  That will

close out initial public comment for tonight.
Moving on to item D.  
D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

CHAIR DENT:  Any concerns or changes to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 67 of 202



   9
the agenda?  Seeing none, we'll consider the agenda
approved.  Moving on to item E.  
E.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

E 1.  General Manager's Report 
CHAIR DENT:  Can be found on page 5

through 18 of your board packet.
MR. BANDELIN:  As noted, the general

manager report begins on page 5 of your packet this
evening.  Just wanted to report on a couple
highlights that are actually in the report.  

We didn't provide a report with a
narrative on the progress of the Tyler
implementation project.  

Staff provided a personnel recruitment
update within the HR status report.

I'll touch a little bit on informing the
Board that the media access gate at the Burt Cedar
Beach, the actual mechanism, the gate, has been
installed.  We're awaiting an actuator device that
connects to the actual media reader before testing
can begin on the gate.  Staff will continue to
update the Board of Trustees on the project as we
progress.  Continue working on that project, just I
have a little bit of a holdup at this particular
time.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  10
I do want that kind of touch of one of the

items in the Public Works report was that we want to
encourage the community to complete the domestic
water pipe, lead, and copper rule survey to assist
with the inventory of the project.  

Staff will also note that the NV Energy
has now executed the signing and return of the
Amended and Restated Diamond Peak Site Use License
Agreement for NV Energy and the District, and staff
and counsel will prepare the document to be released
to the community when asked.  We'll be working on
that over the next couple of days, which I would
imagine would be available through public records
requests.  We can make sure to get that out, as
people wanted it also.  

Also wanted to inform the Board that I
was -- I told the Board that I would include a
facility's and food and beverage status report in
this particular report, and I did not.  I'll be
working with the folks from the facilities venue and
food and beverage to provide a report, and maybe
could use a little bit of comment on what the Board
would like to see in that report.  

Then I'm open for questions.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have two questions and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  11
a statement.  I want to thank you for putting the
time logged on the public records requests.  

On page 8 in the update from the interim
Director of Finance Bobby Magee, I was hoping I
could get a copy of the Amazon purchasing policy
that has just been updated.  

The other question I have is around the
forensic audit.  I hear the price of that has
drastically increased by almost two times, and I was
hoping we could speak more to that and how come the
Board wasn't aware of it.

MR. BANDELIN:  Is it okay if I ask
Mr. Magee to comment on the question?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Of course.
MR. MAGEE:  We did go back and look at the

direction that was provided by the Board on November
8th.  This question came up a couple of times.  On
November 8th, we made a recommendation to the Board
that Trustee Tulloch be authorized to negotiate
final terms and conditions along the related
contract pricing.  And as part of that, the Board
specifically asked me to send over a final scope of
work once that contract had been completed.  

In accordance with the Board direction, I
did work with Trustee Tulloch and the chair of the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  12
Audit Committee, the item was ultimately agreed upon
with Rubin Brown, the forensic auditors, and then
the chair of the Audit Committee made the
recommendation on the pricing to Treasurer Tulloch;
that was ultimately accepted.  And in accordance
with the Board direction, we have now presented the
contract to the General Manager for his final
signature.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What is the new price of
that contract?

MR. MAGEE:  The price is a not-to-exceed
amount of $350,000.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  And it was originally at
160,000; is that correct?

MR. MAGEE:  Rubin Brown has proposed,
based on the scope of work in the RFP, a range of
approximately 110,000 for a three-year look back or
up to 160 for a basic five-year look back.  And then
as we -- they were significantly lower than some of
the other firms, I will say, and when we started
getting in and discussing what that scope of work
would look like, that price did increase, yes.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What was the
next-closest bidder's price?

MR. MAGEE:  I don't have that information

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 68 of 202



  13
handy, but I can certainly see if I can find it real
quick.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  My fear is that we're
also in violation of NRS, because we are now
exceeding -- we were taking a low bid at 160, that
was the only one that was presented to us, and now
we've increased the bid by almost $200,000, and I'm
a little bit concerned on -- my understanding -- and
I reread the notes a couple of times, my
understanding is that we would understand the scope
and the new price, and I'm just a little concerned
that I don't know if I feel that us going behind the
public and spending an additional $200,000 that
wasn't publicly discussed is the correct choice.  

And, Sergio, let me know if I'm off topic,
because this isn't actually agendized.  And if we
need to agendize it, that's fine too.

MR. RUDIN:  Yeah, I would suggest if you
need to revisit the contract, you -- or the terms or
its approval, that we put it back on the agenda.  

But the question about what the District
has budgeted for this contract is definitely
something that I think is relevant to the verbal
presentation here.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  So in the notes I read

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  14
from November 8th, it says that they have the
160,000 in the budget.  Nowhere does it say that we
can go up to that amount.  And so my understanding
is that's where we were.  So I'm just really
concerned about this.  

And Trustee Tulloch, feel free to explain
more as to how we got here.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Absolutely.  Since I'm
not just looking for sound bites, I'll put some
logic behind it.  

If you read the contract, it's a
not-to-exceed sum, it's not a case of if we can
spend 350,000.  There's a very good reason for doing
things like that in this contract.  It's because we
do not want to find we're half way through and find
there's a whole lot more issues than even the ones
that we've already identified.  I find we would then
have to stop the investigation and slow down the
preparation of our other budget as well coming back
for approval.

We were given approval to move forward
with this.  Just because the contract is not to
exceed, it does not mean that we can just go ahead
and spend up to 350,000.  There will be oversight
and there will be monitoring of it there.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  15
This was run past me by Finance Director

Magee, and I signed off on it.  So if you have
issues, it's not General Manager Bandelin, it's not
Finance Director Magee, it's myself.  

We've been pushing this -- agreed on
performing this.  The bids were indicative --
because of the nature of the RFP, the bids could not
be precise.  The bids were going to depend on the
agreed scope of work.  We went through the agreed
scope of work.  Again, there's no point in spending
100,000 to get a quarter of a job.  Want to get the
proper job done as agreed by the Board.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I would just like this
item re-agendized so we can talk about it.  

And I do not appreciate the comments you
made at the beginning of your statement.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Yeah.  I don't know how
you get from a range of 110 to 160 to a
not-to-exceed 350 and not bring that back to the
Board.  And this Board has been very adamant about
costs -- being cost-conscious, and this doesn't even
seem reasonable to me.

So, unless there's a good explanation,
we're getting so far -- it's -- if you go by the 110
for three years, we're 240,000 over.  If we do the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  16
five years, we're 190,000 over what they bid in at.
So unless there's -- and I understand that you don't
want to have to come back later, and I appreciate
that, but a not-to-exceed 350, that just doesn't --
I don't even see that in the realm of reasonableness
at this point.  And I certainly hope that the
contract doesn't get signed with that not-to-exceed
350.

Maybe need to go back and look at the
scope of work and bring it back to what was
originally put out in the RFP.  Because it's more
than creep with regards to the scope of work if
we're at 350, or we've been hoodwinked by these
folks into them getting in, being selected, and then
jacking up the price on us, unless there's another
explanation.  I haven't heard one that seems
reasonable to me.

CHAIR DENT:  I would just say too that the
price is quite a bit higher, so it was surprising.

I'll ask this of Sergio or Bobby, is
this -- is there something, potentially, as it
relates to this that we should be discussing in a
nonmeeting legal meeting rather than in this
meeting?  I'm curious if that's where this
conversation should you go, given the sensitivity

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 69 of 202



  17
associated with this, and not at a public board
meeting.

MR. RUDIN:  Yeah, I mean, given the issues
with respect to the budget for the contract, I would
recommend the contract come back to the Board for
approval.

CHAIR DENT:  I understand that component
of it.  I'm just talking about the details
associated with where this went.  I think -- it's
sounds -- it seems like this could be something that
we could clear up in a nonmeeting legal meeting,
potentially, and then bring the contract back for
approval, or not have any concerns and it moves
forward as is.

MR. RUDIN:  And Vice Chair Dent, let's
talk about that offline.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I just -- I don't like

the phrase being hoodwinked.  It's -- again, it
makes good sound bites.  There's nobody being
hoodwinked in this process.  

The RFP that went out had an approximate
scope of work.  Having done some of the preliminary
work, we found out what the real scope of work
needed to be.  Again, it's case of if we're going to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  18
do this job, it needs to be done properly.  

Again, I would point out it's not spending
350k; it's a not-to-exceed 350k.  I expect it to
come in at significantly less than that.  Again, it
depends what is found during the audit.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Trustee Tulloch, it's a
transparency issues.  All of us Board members
shouldn't be sitting in a meeting and surprised by
it.  It's what I'm saying.  

Also, Sergio, can you look into for me for
that legal nonmeeting about RFP processes and what
we, as a government, are -- have to hold to if we
change scope after RFPs, and if we change the price
drastically for an RFP, like the process we accept.
And I can talk to you offline about what I'm looking
for, but I just want to make sure we're in
compliance with NRS.

MR. RUDIN:  Yep.  No problem.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would simply support

Trustee Dent's suggestion that to the extent that we
can deal with this in a legal nonlegal meeting,
given that we want to move forward as quickly as
possible.  And I feel that there are legal issues
surrounding this contract, both the subject matter
and just the mechanics of it, to the extent that we

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  19
can do that in a legal nonlegal, I would strongly
recommend that.

MR. MAGEE:  If I may, the question was
asked:  What were the other bids that were received?  

And as I had presented to the Board on
November 8th, we did initially have a concern that
Rubin Brown had underbid this contract a little bit.
The second lowest bid that was received was 368,000,
and the high bid that received as part of the RFP
process was 750,000.  

So I just wanted to answer Trustee
Tonking's question.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Thank you.
CHAIR DENT:  Any further discussion on

this item?  
Moving on, report number 2.  

E 2.  Public Record Request Portal 
CHAIR DENT:  Receive a report

presentation/demonstration of the new public records
request portal.  Director of IT, Mr. Gove.  This can
be found -- no pages.  Presentation only.

MR. GOVE:  Thank you for the opportunity
to use this time for a quick presentation on the
District's new public request portal, offered by
NextRequest.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  20
In the District's continued efforts to

improve transparency and engagement with community
members, staff sought out possible improvements to
the District's current public records request
process.  During this time, NextRequest was
discovered and vetted.  NextRequest is a
feature-focused service used to service public
records requests from submittal through delivery, as
well as a central hosting location that is easily
accessible to all community members.  

The public portal is pretty simple, with
the ability to make a request and submit it
electronically online.  That request is then sent to
staff through a system where it is hosted and
tracked.  Staff can then use the portal on their end
to respond to the request for documents, and
response information can be directly uploaded to the
system.  

These requests can then be made publicly
available to all users who access the portal.
Accessing the portal is possible through several
manners, either directly by going to
IVGID.NextRequest.com, or by going through the
District's website.  I'll pull that up now and
quickly walk through submitting a request.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 70 of 202



  21
Quick note:  I will not be submitting a

request as I don't want to add a false request to
the system.  I'm not going to actually push the
submit button or type any information in, but it
should be pretty easy to glean what the process is.

For the record, I have tried to get my
staff and the communication coordinator for the
District to put this link for a NextRequest anywhere
public records are referenced on the District's
websites.  It's referenced in a few places.  I hope
moving forward, this will be part of the
improvements that come from the new website.

From the main page, yourtahoeplace.com,
you can just jump into IVGID, about IVGID is right
here.  We've added a link directly to NextRequest,
which you can see.  Also if you go to the old page,
public records requests where the PDF form was
located, we've added a link there.  As well as
keeping live the old process.  I don't know how long
we'll keep that live, but we do intend to work these
two in tandem for a little while so folks that are
used to the old process can still utilize it.  It
would be our goal to encourage community members to
utilize the new system.  

I'm going to jump into it.  Clinking on

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  22
the link will take you over to the District's
request page.  It's super simple.  You can click
here to search through requests.  I'd like to make a
quick note:  Any requests that were submitted after
the first of the year have been uploaded into the
system, and our intent will be to respond to those
through the system if folks were able to put their
email address on the request.  

Obviously a digital system, the best way
to communicate through this is via email, and that
would be our preference.  

Clicking on search, you can see these are
the requests so far for '24 that have been responded
to and been made available to the public.  We've
only got one because we've only responded to that
one.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Are we going to bring
any historic data across?  

MR. GOVE:  We could do that.  There's a
potential to do that.  We could if we decide to.
It's a manual process that the clerk has to go
through to do that.  We've talked about it several
times at the senior team meetings about how this
could be utilized to host documentation that's
requested frequently.  For example, budgets and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  23
financial reports from past years, those large items
that are hit on a lot.  Yes, there's potential for
it.  

We could go through all of the old
records, it is a service that NextRequest provides,
it's a billable service, and they will upload all of
the public records that we responded to.

CHAIR DENT:  Piggybacking on that, I think
it would be -- staff could probably come up with a
list of ten topics or ten items where it would be
beneficial to go back that grab -- I mean, Dillon's
Rule would be one that's come across several times
since I've been on the Board.  There are several
other like that where those type of requests would
be helpful to have that historical data, have it
readily available, so people aren't asking us to go
find it again.

MR. GOVE:  Totally agree.  
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Do we know a cost, an

approximate cost for each year's worth of public
records or cost per hundreds to bring them across?

MR. GOVE:  I have not requested a quote.
I can do that.  I would ask that you work with the
clerk to request what records you want to have
published or get an idea of that, and then she can

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  24
work with me to get a quote.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'd like to understand.
I'd like to get just a ballpark so the Board can
decide whether -- how much we should bring across.
Otherwise, it devalues it.

MR. GOVE:  Understood.  Let me work on
that and get an answer back.  

I'll finish my demo and answer questions
at the end.  I do want to turn this into video at
some point and have it readily available.  

Making a request, very simple.  You'll
come in here, put your request information here.  If
you did have any files that you chose to upload as
part of your request for your documentation side,
you're welcome to do so here.  

We do ask that you select a department.
You can use your best guess on what your department
is.  We talked about the potential for having an
"other" here.  If there is a need for an other, we'd
ask that you just stick it with general governance
for now, and then the District Clerk can make the
decision on where to route the request to.  

This system's really built specifically
for public records requests, so when a department is
selected, the request -- the clerk gets a note that

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 71 of 202



  25
there's been a request submitted by her email and
the manager of that department, or the director,
gets the request.  Any interactions from staff from
that point on are all tracked through the system.
We have the ability to track time.  We also have the
ability for senior management to report on open
requests and timelines and timeliness of requests.
Really neat data specifically surrounding public
records requests can be gleaned from this system.  

Once you've added your information -- we
would really appreciate to use email as a
communication forum here.  Throw your email in
there, you'll hit "make a request."  You will get a
response from the system as a community member
making the request.  It will fire out an email
automatically that will tell you your request number
and also give you your timeline on the expected
response.

That's really my presentation.  That's the
gist of system.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Just two questions.
Great system.  My first question is people can still
make public records requests the same way they have
as well?

MR. GOVE:  Yes.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  26
TRUSTEE TONKING:  And if they don't put

their email in, how do you get the information back
to them?

MR. GOVE:  We haven't had that.  I was
going to add to this, it is a little bit of a
learning experience to start using a new system like
this.  We're completely open to constructive
feedback from anybody that wants to provide it.  Ask
them to provide their feedback via info@ivgid.org.
If anybody has any issues with it, please feel free
to reach out to us.  We want this to be an
enhancement to the engagement on this process for
community members.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  You're going to put all
of the public records requests as they come in up on
here going on forward?

MR. GOVE:  They can be published.  If --
yes.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  So, for example, I had a
request as a board member, so I don't get anything
redacted and that's on the list of public requests,
that probably should not be posted up here?  

MR. GOVE:  Yeah.  That's why I said "can
be."  It'll be a decision of legal counsel to say
what gets made public or not.  Not all records and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  27
requests are public.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Are the emails hidden of
the requester?

MR. GOVE:  Yes.  Obviously, there's an
innate -- it's a public records request to -- your
information is public, but it's not part of the
record when it's responded to.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  So somebody can't just
troll through and pull out all of the junk mailings
and things from a security perspective?

MR. GOVE:  Yes.  I understand your
question.  Yes.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  In terms of is there --
when you say it's directed to a department, how do
you know who is taking action on it?  Is there a
reminder of things?

MR. GOVE:  Yes.  It's a full workflow
management surrounding the records requests.  The
records request comes in, it's in the system, the
time is tracked at that point, and then it tracks
every interaction on the staff side after that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  So there's
reminders to managers?

MR. GOVE:  Yes.  I'm already getting them
for -- there's a few that have been uploaded that

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  28
are -- would be past due because they haven't been
able to get updated in the system yet.  We wanted to
talk about this first before we started blasting
folks with emails.  

Unfortunately, there were a couple of
records that were put in with folks' emails and the
system took it upon itself to start tracking and
sending emails on it.  We didn't have it live.  So I
do apologize to those two folks that got premature
emails from the system.  It's been made live as of
yesterday.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  So it sends an update to
the requester as well?

MR. GOVE:  The way that it'll work is any
communications around the records request and the
process and the timeline will be sent to the
requester.  

For example, if you made a request and I,
as the provider of the information, knew that I was
going to have to -- if it was going to be a
seven-day timeline, I put that timeline in there.
I'll say:  This is my expected due date.  

You would get a communication email on
your expected due date or expected delivery date
that your records request has been updated.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 72 of 202



  29
And all of that is tracked, maintained,

it's kept in the one system, which is really the
true benefits of it, centrally located.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Somebody has a dashboard
as an administrator?

MR. GOVE:  Yes.
CHAIR DENT:  That closes out item E 2.

Moving on to Item E 3.  
E 3.  Capital Projects Status 

CHAIR DENT:  Review and report on capital
project status.  Found on pages 19 through 23 of
your board packet.  Interim Director of Public Works
Kate Nelson, and then we will also roll into item E
4, verbal report, update on the utility master plan.
That will also be interim Public Works Director Kate
Nelson.

MR. BANDELIN:  Just wanted to note for the
community that we have uploaded -- I would call them
"supplemental," but replacement pages to the board
packet.  Those would be pages 21, 22, and 23.  And
the Board of Trustees will note that those are on
your desk, and we also have copies within the
boardroom itself.  Wanted to make sure that we noted
that.

MS. NELSON:  We actually had our

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  30
engineering meeting this morning, and that's why we
received the updated project tracking sheet.  This
is basically what we use to make sure that we are
working toward moving things along.  I think that
for purpose of the board meeting, I know that the
Incline Beach House is very important to the Board,
so I'd like to just provide some further details on
that project.  

We released the request for qualification
on November 16th.  The requests were due on
December 19th.  We received a total of four
proposals.  The selection committee ranked the four
proposals and the firms were notified yesterday.  We
shortlisted a total of three firms.  

The next phase of the project is preparing
the technical proposal and interviews for these
three selected teams.  That is happening between
February 6th and 8th.

The design-build team selection will occur
in about February 15th, and then we will get back in
front of the Board on February 28th to request
approval of design-build team to move forward with
the 30 percent schematic designs.

The other priority project we have is the
skate park enhancement project.  The RFP will be

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  31
released this Friday.  The proposals will be due
mid-February, and the selection committee will
select the design-build firm on or around February
23rd.  We look to be in front of the Board on
March 13th to award the design-build for that
project.

If there are any other specific projects
you want an update on, just let me know.  I'm here
to answer any questions.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Quick question, maybe
it's directed to Trustee Tulloch.  How do we decide
which things go to the CIC committee and which ones
don't?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Excellent point, Trustee
Tonking, and it's something we've had some
discussions about.  And for the avoidance of
confusion, because when I saw the initial document
and the packet, I was upset, as if somehow the CIC
was holding up progress.  

The CIC doesn't have a crystal ball.  The
CIC had not received any information that somebody
was waiting to present a proposal to CIC.  It's also
not the purpose of the CIC to start usurping the
function of the Board in terms of RFQs and scoping
of projects; the purpose of the CIC is to do a

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  32
more-rigorous analysis of the final proposals before
they go to the Board.  The CIC is not somehow an
elected body that's going to completely change scope
and decide on priorities in terms of that.  The CIC
will review it.  

So, yes, I was somewhat disturbed to see
the original note in the board packet.  I'm assuming
there's been action taken.  I'm glad so say there's
some action been taken on that, but it's not the CIC
holding up.  

If there's priority projects that need a
quick response from the CIC, we'll always be happy
to look at them, but we need to be told about them.
We can't -- like I say, we don't have a crystal
ball.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  My question, though, is
can you give me an example of how things move
through the CIC so I can understand it better.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Well, let's suppose when
the Beach House design project, when they come up
with a proposal, that should go to CIC first prior
to going to the Board to make sure it's complete, so
we don't have a situation where it goes to the
Board, it gets bounced back because of things
missing, there's questions not been answered.  The

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 73 of 202



  33
CIC should be able to do a more-rigorous analysis
before so when it comes to the Board, it should
become -- it's either a yes or no.  It's not
something that should be delayed further.

CHAIR DENT:  That kind of hits on our
training from lost month too, just those basic
questions should be vetted through in the CIC.  I
like that idea good.  

Good questions, Trustee Tonking.  
Any additional questions, concerns?
MR. BANDELIN:  What we want to do here was

kind of like open up -- what I'm going to do is I'm
going to direct staff to -- we want to be able to
come back to the Board as a start at each meeting,
and we want to have discussions about the capital
projects or capital maintenance projects to be able
to be completely transparent and make sure that the
Board of Trustees know what the projects are.  We
intend to work -- we intend, staff intends to work
with the finance department.  

I think at your next meeting, I'd like to
bring the entire list of the 2024 approved capital
projects that you saw in year one with the dollar
amount, and then we would begin to tell -- or report
to the Board where we're at with those projects.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  34
This template, with maybe some discussion

or assistance from the trustees or the community,
we'd like to be able to start to build this out so
we have a really nice report that we report on for
capital projects and capital maintenance projects.  

I think it would be really important,
especially as we start to get into our budget
process, looking at capital projects and maintenance
projects to be able to at least come up with some
sort of really analytical-type report so the
community and the Board of Trustees have a good
understanding of the progress on our capital
projects and funding portion and where we're at with
the actual progress of the project.  

There was some talk that we could include,
if the Board wishes to, we can bring these GANT
reports in, that we have a GANT report started for
that Incline Beach House.  That might be something
that the Board suggested that we bring for
particular projects so you can kind of see the whole
-- where we never do a good job as we bring it to
the Board, okay, here's what we're working on, this
is when this is due, this is when this is due, and
here's the progress portion of it.

The intent of this report this evening was

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  35
really to start to open up discussion and work with
the District staff to be able to present really good
capital project and capital maintenance reports.

CHAIR DENT:  You brought up a couple of
ideas through what you were just saying.  But one
thing I forgot to ask about, the project plans that
we usually get through the budget process and all of
those, very detailed as to where we're at, where are
we at in revising each of those for the budget
process?  The data sheets.

MS. NELSON:  So the previous software used
to create those data sheets is no longer being
supported.  We are moving to a more standard, if I
can say, data sheet that will be included with
the year one budget.  And it's not -- it's a manual
process, so we will have to create them for each
project.  

But we brought to the Capital Investment
Committee, we got good feedback on it.  It has a
little bit more detail on the budget where we can
actually break it down by phase and be a little bit
more accurate in the way we're budgeting.

CHAIR DENT:  The new report does, is what
you're saying?

MS. NELSON:  Yes.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  36
MR. BANDELIN:  If I could just expand on

that a little bit.  What you will see is -- I was in
our Assistant Director of Finance office the other
day, and he showed me this template that we will be
building and bringing.  

Each capital project, whether it be a
project or maintenance, will have what we used to
call a "data sheet," there will be a new name for
it, but you'll actually see a picture of the actual
project in the corner of the report so when you
thumb through your packet and your notebook, you'll
be able to see what the actual project is; whether
it's realigning manholes or replacing MCCs at a
sewer pump station or new pumps or a new snowcat or
new roof on the Mountain Golf Course Club House or
something to that affect, it will have the dollar
amount associated with it and then numbers
associated with the project.  

So when we finally get around to being
able to present the budget, we'll be able to go
through -- the capital plan, I should say, we'll be
able to go through, and you'll have a sheet for each
project to be able to reference in discussion.

CHAIR DENT:  Great.  Thank you for that.
That gives us a little bit better understanding of

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 74 of 202



  37
what to expect.

One other thing that you made me think of
is a project closure report for the first phase.  Is
that something that's coming back at the next
meeting?  We've been done with that first phase for
a while.

MS. NELSON:  First phase of the pipeline?  
CHAIR DENT:  Yeah.
MS. NELSON:  Yeah.  So we will be

providing the closeout for the GMP1 project, as well
as the Diamond Peak kitchen.

CHAIR DENT:  At that 31st meeting?  
MS. NELSON:  Yes.
MR. BANDELIN:  Is there a particular wants

and needs that we should bring for a closeout
report?  That might be worth a quick discussion from
the Board, as we want to be able to bring the actual
items to -- on a closeout report, if that's actually
that name for it, when the -- and what level of a
project would require a detailed analysis of a
closeout?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  I can respond to
the second part of the question, what level of
project.  I think that's something I think my
colleagues can chime in on.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  38
What I would like to see in the project

closeout report is what the final costs has been,
what the original estimate has been, whether there's
been any updated estimates mid-progress and
reauthorizations, what's -- how the completion date
ties in with the originally projected timeline,
what's happened assuming that, hopefully, every
project will come in under budget and before time,
and what budget the unspent money has gone back to.  

I would hate to see more of these where,
well, we've done this for a 100,000 less than we're
going to, let's spend it on furniture or something.
That money should go back in so it can be
re-prioritized, it should always be there.  

That's what I would expect to see in the
closeout.

CHAIR DENT:  I would agree with that.  And
I'd say, maybe, a little bit more granular.  It
would reference all the numbers you brought to us
for approval, what date or what packet or whatever
that is in so if someone wants to go digging into
those details, they can, and you're just doing a
side-by-side comparison.

I think we hear a lot of things, and
sometimes we have to have additional approvals on a

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  39
project.  Maybe one of these has two or
three call-ons, but then you get your totals.  

Yeah, it would be very helpful because we
lose track of it, and we're just like, What are we
doing again?

MR. BANDELIN:  Agreed.  So, essentially, a
financial closeout report.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  A financial and
technical.  

I think there's another very important
part, and I've talked about it before in some of the
proposals presented here.  When we get proposals
saying, well, if we do this, we'll save so much
money.  

Any of these proposals should identify
what the tracking mechanism is going to be, how
we're going to establish that we have actually saved
the money that we're talking about, because
typically it's either ongoing operating costs or
something there.  

There's no use in us approving a
million-dollar project that we're told is going to
save us a $100,000 a year if we don't see where that
$100,000 is then coming back to the District to be
used on something other, more appropriate.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  40
The follow-up post-project for any of

these is supposed to deliver savings or customer
service improvements, there should be a mechanism
for tracking that.

CHAIR DENT:  And to the technical piece
that Trustee Tulloch spoke to, what did we -- what
was the positive take away from the project or what
did we learn?  Because you learn something and
there's sometimes little wins or huge wins on
projects.  

I think celebrating those learning
experiences and wins are huge.  And it's good for us
to understand what that's at because at some point
all of that information becomes trackable, and you
look back at the last ten and it's like, why is this
our result over the last ten?  We gotta change this
pattern.  Right?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  You took mine, lesson's
learn, so I like these.  Thank you.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I see item C in the list
here, the Recreation Center, HVAC.  At the November
meeting, Director Leijon came and informed us there
was going to be a whole long list of projects, major
projects required at the Rec Center, and I requested
that she start looking and bringing them as a whole

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 75 of 202



  41
because we don't want to be spending a million here,
half a million there, and then another quarter of
a million somewhere else and then finding that we
just need to knock the place down and start again.

I'd asked at that time that Director
Leijon put together a comprehensive list of what
these things are going to be so we could actually
make a better, more informed judgment of what it is,
rather than just -- if I recall correctly, the HVAC
change or something, about 1.2 million sticks in my
mind, so I think we need to understand what the
ongoing capital requirement is so we can actually
make a better assessment of the requirement.

CHAIR DENT:  One last thing and I'll leave
this alone.  When we see a long project list, huge
list right here, and then we experience several
projects that we thought were going to be kicked off
last year that have -- several of them, that have
just kind of been kicked down the road.

So as we move into the budget cycle, I
just stressed this a lot last year, I'll say it
again:  I just want to make sure we're planning
to -- putting things in the budget and planing to
hit targets of things, planning to move projects
along and not just budgeting to put something in

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  42
there because said we can do it.  If we can't do it,
let's not put in the budget, because then we're
collecting money from the community that we don't
need, and that's been a problem forever -- right? --
and that's why we were able to decrease the rec fee
last year and still have reserves.  And none of the
projects we planned to do last year got done, so we
still have the money sitting there again.  

Bandwidth is huge and if it's something
where we need to get you reference in your report
that there's two engineering staff members, but if
there's something we need to do to do it
differently, bold ideas are great.  It's budget
season, let's hear them.  

If we need to have someone dedicated to
project management and solely in all of our
nonpublic works projects, maybe that's something we
need to look at.  

That's my two cents on the topic.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  Can I put in the

last, last request on this?  
I think this is a good start.  This is

actually a helpful document to see this.  Would
there be a way of actually segregating into
financial bands, say, 500,000, 250 to 500, and below

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  43
a hundred grand or something like that?  We can work
out some bands, that would make it much easier to
see whether some of these projects are material or
whether they're almost just run-of-mill projects
that we don't need to be concerned about.  I think
that would be very helpful.

CHAIR DENT:  I think you're heard from us.
Do you need any further direction on this item? 

MS. NELSON:  (Non-verbal response.)
CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  That will closeout

item E 3.  Let's move on to item E 4.
E 4. Utility Master Plan  

MS. NELSON:  I have a verbal update on the
utility master plan.  Staff received the 90 percent
plan for both the water and the waste water on
December 22nd.  We've been reviewing those plans,
and our comments are due back to the consultant on
Friday.  

The master plan -- the final master plan
for both water and waste water is planned to be due
February 23rd, and the Board of Trustees meeting on
April 10th, you will have the consultant providing a
presentation to the Board on summarizing the plan
and just kind of giving you a cliff note version of
what's in the master plan.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  44
CHAIR DENT:  Any questions or comments?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think until we get an

initial brief on it, it's hard to do anything.  I
think the utility master plan could potentially be a
shocker for the Board.  We could well be facing a
capital cliff on the water utility side, and that
would be reflective of most of the rest of the
industry across the country, where a lot of
infrastructure is going in at the same time.  

I warn my fellow Board colleagues and the
community, it could be another shocker.

CHAIR DENT:  That will closeout item E 4.
Moving on to item E 5.

E 5.  IVGID Magazine Survey Results 
CHAIR DENT:  Receive a report and an

update regarding the IVGID Magazine reader survey
results.  Marketing Manager Paul Raymore.  Can be
found on page 24 through 83 of your board packet.  

MR. RAYMORE:  On pages 24 through 83 of
your board packet is a report on the IVGID Magazine
reader survey that was conducted during the summer
of 2023, along with some background information on
the IVGID Magazine, and our publishing agreement
with CC Media for this publication.

In the survey, in total we received 1,013

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 76 of 202



  45
survey results, 731 one of those were complete, and
282 were partial, so folks who only complete part of
survey before quitting.  

As mentioned in the executive summary you
have in your packet, the purpose of the reader
survey was kind of twofold.  First, we wanted to
solicit reader feedback on editorial content in the
magazine, and, second, we wanted to solicit reader
feedback on the value they get from the magazine.

The survey results attached are the
unfiltered results, but should you ever want to see
filtered results based on how respondents answered
certain questions within the survey, you can slice
and dice the data however you wish to see it.

With that, I'll be happy to answer any
questions you may have.

CHAIR DENT:  Any questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Perhaps you could

clarify for me, who and what the IVGID Magazine is
aimed at?  I started reading through it, and half it
seems like an internal staff magazine, half if it
seems like a realtor's advertising slot, half of it
seems just repeating stuff that's already on the
website and probably, many cases, is out of date by
the time the magazine hits the streets.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  46
Perhaps you can clarify, what is the

editorial direction, what is the intended direction
and focus of this?  It must have some sort of
purpose behind it, rather than just being a mishmash
of collected stuff and anecdotes.

MR. RAYMORE:  As mentioned in kind of the
history and overview section, the magazine evolved
out of what was formerly kind of the Parks and
Recreation activity guide.  I would say that
publication was simply a listing of all the programs
and activities available in the Parks and Recreation
departments.  

The magazine continues with a lot of that
information, as that has always been information
that a number of our -- many members of our
community would like to receive, and we've gotten
feedback that they like to see it in print and
having a print option for that.  

In addition, the magazine is definitely
targeted at our local residents, providing them as
much information about activities, programs, venues,
upcoming events, and other newsworthy items that we
feel would be of interest to them.  

As you mentioned, it is not a daily
newspaper and it's not even weekly or a monthly

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  47
magazine, and so we do try to stay away from timely
updates.  A lot of the information needs to be what
we call "evergreen," something that's not going to
be out of date as soon as it's printed because we
are putting all this information together a month in
advanced and by the time it gets mailed out and
delivered to people's doors, it's not necessarily
something that's super timely anymore.  

So it's often a look ahead at upcoming
programs and events, as well as, sometimes, look
back on the some of the big, fun events that we've
had, something like the trailer treats and the photo
recap.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Perhaps I was unclear,
perhaps I should repeat my question:  What is the
objective of the magazine, what is the vision of the
magazine?  Because, again, it just seems a random
collection of different things to fill space.

MR. RAYMORE:  This is one component of our
overall District communications plan to keep our
residents informed on the venues, the activities,
the programs that are available to them.  

There are other components of that.  We do
newsletters, we maintain a website.  But in the
communications game, it pays to have multiple

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  48
different channels because people consume
information in different ways.  Some people would
prefer to get everything that they want to know
about the District and the District's venues from
the website, a lot of people do.  Other people want
to get email newsletters about that kind of
information and that's good enough for some people.
And then some people enjoy reading it in a print
publication, and so we hope that this magazine helps
for those folks that do.

CHAIR DENT:  Trustee Tulloch brings up a
really good point.  And if the Board isn't giving
you direction on what would be in the magazine --
this is not pointed at you Paul, but staff -- then,
you know, staff's really taking what was there and
kind of filling a void and finding things to put in
there.  

We have talked about this before, and it
might have been something to do with this, but we
spoke to it, and I think there's item that needs to
come back to the Board so the Board can decide what
should be, at least some bare bones to what should
be included in the magazine, I think it would be
very important.  

Then, also -- I think we did talk about

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 77 of 202



  49
this at a board meeting, but who should be speaking
on behalf of the District in the magazine?  And
whether it's the General Manager, whether it's the
Chair, whether it's another trustee or another
department head.  But we should -- it seems like you
would want to have certain people be your
spokesperson, and there should be -- in a way, this
follows your strategic plan or some sort of strategy
behind it, which is what I think Trustee Tulloch was
getting to.  

I would love to see an item that comes
back to the Board that allows us to give you some
general input as to what information we would like
to see included as a bear bones in the magazine.

I have a question, and it's relating to
all the comments at the end of the very final
question, number 19, and it's:  Provide your
feedback or tell us something else.

Is there a Wordle that goes along with all
of these comments?  As I flip through the pages, I
see:  Three to four times is enough.  I see:  Email
is fine.  

And it would be nice to see which of those
words show up the most so we know really what the
concerns are.  I flip through these pages and I need

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  50
to do some sort of statistical analysis to try and
even begin to figure out what it is.  But if there
was a Wordle that could be used with all these
comments, you could quickly understand that, hey,
the biggest thing people are saying is once a year.
The biggest thing people are saying is email or
whatever it is.  It will quickly help you decipher
that information.  

Maybe I missed it, and it was already in
there, but just general question regarding number
19.

MR. RAYMORE:  I'm assuming the Wordle
you're talking about is one of those word cloud
visualizations of the day?  

CHAIR DENT:  Yeah.  Just trying to make
some sort of a sense of what it is.  I can look at
every page, I see "email," "waste of money," and you
see on every single page so you know it's a theme.
I didn't get into some of the more-wordy ones, and
some of those are very brutal.  So read one that was
a paragraph and just seemed like a lot.  

I guess trying to understand what's the
big takeaway from that last section?

MR. RAYMORE:  I would say it's difficult,
because that last section, the question was:  Please

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  51
let us know any final thoughts you have that IVGID
can best communicate updates on what's happening
within the District to you.

And so people interpreted that question in
many different ways.  You obviously read through
some of the responses.  It's everything from actual
commentary on the magazine to random topics that are
just of interest within the District.

I don't -- I guess what I would caution is
putting too much -- allowing question 19 to override
what you see in some of the more specific questions
focused on this magazine earlier, where we're truly
asking about the content that people want to see in
the magazine, the questions right before that, where
people were giving star ratings to the different
types of --

CHAIR DENT:  I understand.  I don't want
you try and filibuster that question.  It seems like
there's a lot there and a way to try to understand
what's there would be helpful is all I was getting
at.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Looking at information
that was provided by Mr. Raymore, looking at page
45, more than 70 percent of the respondents had
found at least some value from the magazine.  So I

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  52
think that's a pretty good indicator that at least
the information that's in there is at least in the
right ballpark.  There might be some tweaks and some
other information that might be helpful, but if 70
percent of respondents find it at least somewhat
valuable and it goes up from there, I think that's a
really good indicator.  

Regarding whether or not to print copies
or online -- and I would just point out on page 25,
there's a opt-out option, and out of the 6,900
parcel owners that receive the magazine, only eight
have chosen to only receive the emailed version.

Again, words are one thing, but actions
are another.  I take from that that folks do like to
get the hard copy.

And I do appreciate all work that went
into putting this together.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I had a similar concern
with you on question 19, so I went through and
highlighted whether people wanted it to be printed,
not printed, and if they liked it or not like it or
if they were neutral.  It was pretty much aligned
with all the answers that you see here, so that felt
like that the data was aligned to question 19.  

On question 14, I also just thought it was

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 78 of 202



  53
interesting that if it was an online only
publication, we see only 27 percent of the
respondents say that they'd read it much less.  The
highest amount, 34, said they'd read it the same
amount.  

So one of my questions was instead of
doing an opt out, maybe we do an opt in.  That kind
of deals with this 27 percent, and kind of like they
will probably opt in and we'll see what happens with
that high number.  That was just a thought.

I really appreciate this data, it was
really helpful, and a good way to look at it.  I
really appreciated that there was a lot of different
methods in which people were asked to take the
survey, so it wasn't just people who received the
newsletter, it was also through emails, social media
postings, and all that kind of stuff.

CHAIR DENT:  I agree with the opt in
comment.  That's great.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think to Trustee
Noble's point, I think we need look at the numbers.
This goes out to 6,900 parcels, plus various other
ones, and we've got 743 completed requests, that's
about ten percent.  I think we need to be careful
reading if 50 percent of ten percent want to keep a

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  54
printed copy and think that there is value to it,
that's five percent.  

So I think we need to put these in
perspective.  Again, just the way the question's
worded, it's so open, there's penalty for saying,
well, there's no evaluation, it's just a case of
would you like this?  Oh, yes, this is good.  

It's about like saying, do you think your
taxes -- do you think the government should pay for
these things?  Yes.  Yes.  Do you think your taxes
are too high?  Oh, yes.  Yes.  Yes.  

You need to rationalize the answers.  But
if I move on to something else, there's much play of
the magazine only costs $25,000, and so the $25,000
instead of the $20,000 to mail it.  I have yet to
see any costs for the hours associated with
producing it.  That's your time, Paul.  Your time's
not free.  If you're doing that, you're not
addressing -- obviously it's taken up some of your
time.  

Can you give us an idea of what the actual
staff time consumed is and what the costs is
associated with that and what budget that gets
charged to?

MR. RAYMORE:  We've done -- each one

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  55
varies in terms of content and the workload on
different departments.  On average, I would say it
probably takes about 40 hour of staff time per
edition.  That's spread across a wide swath of --
certainly the biggest burden falls on the marketing
team, myself.  The communications coordinator and
our marketing coordinator do a lot of editing work
and wrangling of data.  But every department that
contributes, obviously, there's some staff time
involved, so it's difficult to put true numbers on
how much time that is.  

A lot of this information comes from the
information that would go on the website anyway.  I
don't think it's necessarily staff time solely to
this magazine.  A lot of it is really just to
summarize what the capital improvement projects that
are coming up in the next three months are for the
magazine, which is something that they're taking
content that they would probably produce for you
guys, as well as for the District website, and
editing it down to a more readable format for the
magazine.  

But if you want to, we can spend -- try
for this next edition to have everybody track their
time and report back to you precise hours on how

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  56
much that takes to put one together.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That would be very
helpful before we put out something saying the
magazine only costs us $25,000, which is a 20
percent increase from the $20,000 estimated
originally.  I think once we start tracking time and
see what the realistic costs of it is, then it
becomes a much more important item.  It's a case of
what -- where are the resources best concentrated?
If this is just part of a scatter gun marketing
approach, let's just throw this out there and see
there.  

I'm actually not quite sure what it
actually markets.  It's, perhaps, communication, but
certainly not sure what it's marketing apart from
realtors from looking at the magazine.  I mean, I
think it's important to understand what is involved
in this.  If you're saying it's only 40 hours of
time to do this between yourself and your
communications coordinator, that's something -- I
suspect it's rather than more than that, having
done -- seen the work involved in many of these
things.  

Let's just be realistic about it and not
just downplay what it is, because it's more than

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 79 of 202



  57
just postage.

CHAIR DENT:  One add to that is just
really what's the problem we're trying to solve or
who is our target, what's our strategy?  What kind
of bigger questions.  

I do want to thank you and your team for
what you guys do.  I see all the posts, especially
Diamond Peak, all the ski stuff this time of year to
get people out there, so appreciate that.  

But I would love to have you guys come
back so you can give a little bit of a guidance
around what the magazine should be.

MR. RAYMORE:  If I may, if we can do that
here, I would love to hear some of that feedback
from the Board or happy to come back at any further
time.

CHAIR DENT:  We would be getting off topic
with that just because this is IVGID Magazine survey
results, I think, diving into what should be
included and not included.  Let's just put in on an
agenda item for another time.

MR. RAYMORE:  Okay.  Keep in mind that the
reader survey, the primary goal was to figure out
what our readers think the magazine should be.  What
content they want to see, and we're going to use

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  58
their answers in those latter questions about
specific content that they want to see more of and
how value specific content in the magazine to make
some of those editorial decisions moving forward.  

I'd love to have your input as well, and,
obviously, this evolves as the District sees fit.
The marketing team is definitely not overly invested
in the magazine at all.  If you guys do not want to
do it, then we would be happy to move on to other
things.  

But if you were to look, just show me
question 3, what is your age, and tell me that
you're asking me as a marketer to come up with a way
to distribute information to the Incline Village
community and looking at the age ranges represented
there, I would say that a print publication is a
really good way to target that group.  Obviously it
doesn't work for everybody, but we're, as we know,
it's a little bit older, a lot of folks like to read
an actual print publication.  

Let me know when you want to bring back an
item to actually get feedback from the Board on
content.  We'd love that.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  We'll work with the
General Manager to bring something back next month.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  59
MR. RAYMORE:  Okay.  And then if I may,

just one more quick thing.  Hopefully at that
meeting, we can get some direction because we are
coming up, our contract with CC Media for the
publishing agreement goes this calendar year.  Their
advertising contracts, if we want to continue with
it, typically go about a year out.  They are going
to be looking to renegotiate that contract for 2025
and beyond very soon here.

If we can start that process sooner rather
than later, I'd appreciate it.  And maybe appoint,
if possible, we can appoint a board liaison to help
me with that negotiation, that would be great.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  And I would just say
maybe the item you bring back next month includes
both topics.

MR. RAYMORE:  Okay.
CHAIR DENT:  Any other questions,

comments?
All right that closes out item E 5.

Moving on to item E 6.  
E 6.  Treasurer's Report 

CHAIR DENT:  December 2023 activities.
Treasurer's report.  Found on page 84 through 102 of
your board packet.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  60
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll call on Finance

Direct Magee come to the mic as well.  As you'll
see, we've been continuing to refine the treasurer's
report, trying to make it actually meaningful and
readable information.  We've got rid of the
six-point print font that used to be.  Hopefully, we
still have further work to do, but now we can get a
pretty quick visual assessment of where we are on
that expenditure and various different areas.  We
still need to do further drill downs on that, staff
is still working on that.  I think they've done a
very good job so far.  

If you look at page 88, that's still a
work in progress with some more subdivisions
required there.  I think it's certainly starting to
shape up.  It gives us a quick and easy way now of
looking through it.  I welcome more feedback from
the Board on how we can further refine it, also from
the community as well.  

Hopefully, it's starting to answer the
questions, and should hopefully start reaching some
of the PRR requests as well.  

You'll see this month we've also added the
procurement card transactions, starting on page 99
and 100, and just actually publishing that,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 80 of 202



  61
highlighted a few things.  We found a case of a card
for an employee that had left several months ago
still been used to make transactions, so we -- it's
not been wasted.  I think we can add further to this
because there's still insufficient identification on
some of these procurement card transactions, and
that's the feedback we've been getting.  

I think it's -- we're now getting to a
manageable and intelligible report here, I believe.
I'd welcome feedback from the rest of the Board.

MR. MAGEE:  One thing I will point out to
your point is that by looking through these things,
we have identified a number of transactions that --
I shared with the treasurer that I typically try to
pick a few transactions every month to let staff
know that I'm going to spot-check something.  We go
in and spot-check and just grab a few random items.  

By pulling this P card report, we did
notice that these transactions were made on the card
of a former employee, and the treasurer had asked me
to briefly look into that one and address that one
tonight.  

What I discovered was there was a previous
practice that was leftover from a former
administration where if an employee were to separate

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  62
from the District, that card would actually be given
to another individual to use until such time as they
received their own card.  And what I had found was
that in the case of this card, there were recurring
charges that were hitting it, and so that practice
had just continued without my knowledge.  As soon as
I found that out, I immediately directed staff to
cancel that card and to make other payment
arrangements with that vendor.  

So these are the types of things that I
think are starting to come to light, and when we
find them and discover them, we immediately correct
and make course corrections and identify what best
practices need to be put in place.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Just one suggestion.  I
think, Trustee Tulloch, you had mentioned this, but
with regard to Appendix C and the P card
transactions, under the description, having
something that is meaningful, doesn't have to be a
narrative or anything, but just a quick blurb that
explains what it's for.

There's a few that are missing and some
that are several thousand dollars, and so it would
be helpful to know what those were for.  And then
obviously I would think, Mr. Magee, if you're

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  63
spot-checking, ones that have no description might
be ones in particular that would be worthwhile to
spot-check.  Not all of them, but at least some, so
that helps encourage staff put better descriptions
down or at least some description so that it --
there's at least an idea that it matches with what
the dollar figure is.

MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  Thank you, Trustee
Noble.  

Just to let you know, and I should have
mentioned that, I was remiss in not mentioning that,
I did ask staff to look into each one of those
transactions to make sure that, even though the
description did not hit this report, that there was
proper documentation in the system which supported
the charge.  

We're currently going through that
process.  And I further directed staff to bring any
of those that do not have descriptions in our
financial system in the future to my attention
immediately, and we'll make sure to start getting
those addressed in the future so they do not hit
this report without a description on it.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yes, I fully agree,
doing that.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  64
The other thing I've asked Mr. Magee to

look is identify which department and which part of
the business these charges are being incurred by,
rather than just being lumped into general.  Some
cases we know it, we can see it from the user of
what it's for, but I think it would be helpful to
understand where the largest use of it and things
are is as well, if need be, we can modify the
policies, but I think that's a great suggestion.  

Thank you.
CHAIR DENT:  Follow-up question:  This

report, the procurement card report, the check
register and then the visuals, how much time is
spent doing this?  How much of this, I guess, is
automated?  How much of this is manual?  Just trying
to gauge.  

I like the visuals.  I feel like we're
offering a lot of information, and it's helpful at
our level, as well as the community level to see
this, but just like a little understanding of how
much time is involved in this.

MR. MAGEE:  As we revise this process, the
amount of time going into actually pulling this
information has gone down significantly.  

Now, when we first presented the very,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 81 of 202



  65
very draft of the new treasurer's report to the
treasurer, that took us several hours to figure out
ways to pull the data, present the data, and get his
feedback, go back and forth several times.  And then
as we've moved through this report through
several months now, we're really starting to narrow
this down where it's taking a couple hours of staff
time every month.  

We're getting pretty efficient with it,
and we anticipate that we'll continue to see
incremental gains as we narrow these things down,
what the actual staff time is.

CHAIR DENT:  I appreciate that.  Thank
your team for putting this together, along with
Trustee Tulloch.

Anyone else have any questions or
comments?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I wanted to thank you
for creating Appendix A.  Thank you.

CHAIR DENT:  That will close out item E 6.
Moving on to item F.  
F.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

CHAIR DENT:  Is there a motion to accept
the consent calendar?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have question on it,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  66
and I messed up at the agenda.  Can I ask a
question?  Is that allowed or do we have to pull it?

CHAIR DENT:  I think if we're going to ask
a question regarding an item on the consent
calendar, then we'd have to make a motion to approve
the items you don't have questions about, and then
we'll move the one that doesn't get approved on
consent to general business.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think it will be a
fast question, so I apologize for this.  

I move that we approve consent calendar
item F 1 and F 3.

CHAIR DENT:  F 1 and F 3.  Okay.  Motion's
been.  Is there a second?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm sorry.  And F 4.
CHAIR DENT:  And F 4.
Motion's been made and amended to be items

F 1, 3, and 4.  Is there a second?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded to approve the consent calendar.  All those
in favor, state aye.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  67
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.
Opposed?  Motion passes, 4/0.
Given that consent calendar item number F

2 was not approved, Sergio, we're going to now make
that item G 1.  Is that all right?  

MR. RUDIN:  Yeah.  Absolutely.
CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  Thank you.  
Item F 2 will now become item G 1.  Item F

2 -- formerly F 2, now G 1.  
G.  GENERAL BUSINESS  

G 1.  Appointment of Mike Lefrancois/CIC 
CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and possibly

approve the appointment of Mike Lefrancois to fill
at-large vacancy for the CIC committee.  Requesting
trustee, Trustee Tulloch.  Can be found on page 131
of your board packet.  

Trustee Tulloch, you can have the floor.
Or Trustee Tonking, given that you pulled the item
for question.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm totally okay with
him being on the committee.  My only question is if
this sets a precedent that we aren't going to open
vacancies back out.  So like when we do Audit
Committee vacancies in the past, as the only-other
previous board, we've always put them back out, and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  68
I understand there's only one meeting.  I just want
to make sure we're not setting a precedent to do
this going forward.  That is my only concern.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I can respond to that.
It's a very good question, and we shouldn't set a
precedent.  

The fact was here this was the first
runner-up in that the position he's replacing was
never actually filled, the appointment was never
actually made, and that's why we did it this way
this time.  The replacement never attended -- failed
to attend the first meeting and stepped down before
that, and that's why we felt it was the easiest way
to do it.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Then I'm okay with it.
I just wanted to clarify that one point.

CHAIR DENT:  I want to add one other thing
to that.  We had done this exact same thing with
appointing a trustee to the Board.  We have done --
we have reached out to Audit Committee candidates,
when we've had Audit Committee members resign, and
say, Hey, do you want to be on that committee?
You're already been vetted, we had someone resign.  

So I feel like as long as it's a runner-up
or someone within that group, given how close this

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 82 of 202



  69
was to the actual appointment, I feel like it was
relevant.  I feel like our approval has lagged by
many months from when I -- I spoke with Mike four or
five months ago when he was here.  

But I understand your concern with it,
Trustee Tonking.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I just wanted to clarify
it, that's all.  

I move that the Board approve the
appointment of Michael Lefrancois to fill the
at-large vacancy on the Capital Investment
Committee.

CHAIR DENT:  Motions's been made.  Is
there a second?  

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Any further discussion by the Board?  All
those in favor, state aye.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.  
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I should apologize to

Mr. Lefrancois.  I was tardy in actually putting
this motion forward.  Entirely by fault.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  70
CHAIR DENT:  Congratulations, Mike.  We

look forward to your addition to the committee.
We're going to take a five-minute break.

We will resume at 7:30.
(Recess from 7:26 P.M. to 7:33 P.M.) 
CHAIR DENT:  We are back.  We just closed

out item G 1, formerly F 2.  Moving on to item G 2.
G 2.  District-wide Budget Calendar/2024-2025 

CHAIR DENT:  Approval of the District-wide
budget calendar for physical year 2024-'25.  Can be
found on pages 258 through 264 of your board packet,
and requesting staff member, interim Director of
Finance Bobby Magee.

MR. MAGEE:  This item is essentially
presenting what we see as the proposed budget
development timeline on significant events that
would be of interest to the Board.

And so this is very draft form.  It is
intended to have a little bit of flexibility within
the process so that as things happen, which they
always do during a budget season, that we have a
little bit of flexibility that we can report back to
the Board if any of these dates need to move for any
reasons at all.  

What we're asking the Board to do tonight

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  71
is a couple of items, which I know you all have an
opportunity to take a look at what the proposed
calendar is, and we would be happy to receive any
feedback or comments that you may have on that.  But
we ask that you do not approve the calendar, that
you received and file the draft budget calendar so
that it gives us a little bit of flexibility within
the process.

And then item number 3 of recommendations,
I did have a conversation with Board Chair this
week, and she had suggested to me that she was
interested in placing the FlashVote priority survey
onto the Board's agenda as well.  After we talked
about it, we decided to combine this into this
particular board item, and we are seeking some
direction from the Board on when you would like to
see that FlashVote priority survey brought back.  

And so a couple of options that we see the
Board may wish to consider is if you will note on
page 262 of 317 is the budget calendar, about half
way down the page there, you'll see that the Board
of Trustees special meeting for a strategic budget
planning retreat would be sometime during the week
of February 12th.  

And so with respect to the FlashVote

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  72
survey, the options would really be:  Would the
Board like to see that advance of that special
budget meeting?  In theory, have that presentation
sometime in January, and then have the finance
department come back with the strategic budget
planning retreat at a later date.  Or would the
Board prefer to agendize both items on the same day
as one special meeting sometime during the week of
February 12th?  We could, in theory, have the
FlashVote survey presented first, and then we would
move on later into the strategic budget planning
retreat, which I would anticipate will take
several hours during that special meeting.  

And so with that, that I'm available for
any questions and would be happy to receive the
Board's feedback.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  To answer your first
question, I think we should probably do the
FlashVote part in January, and then move into the
planning retreat.  

Is there any chance we can either do the
week before or the week after?  My week that week, I
was going on to say on long range, I won't be at the
14th meeting either.  I have some prior commitments.

MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  Absolutely.  If we were

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 83 of 202



  73
to move that meeting, my suggestion would be to push
it back one week, just as we're trying to map out
our internal processes.  I think moving up a week
would put a lot of additional pressure on the budget
team right now.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  That's totally fine.
That would be great.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Don't quite go with that
yet, Bobby.  I need to check my calendar.  I think
the next week becomes problematic for me, but I'll
check that and get back to you as well.  I think I'm
supposed to be out of state that week, but I shall
check.  That'll depend on snow as well.  

With regard to the FlashVote survey, if we
go back to the -- we haven't yet made any progress
on the Moss Adams, the primary Moss Adams'
recommendation that the Board should be reviewing,
and we should be regenerating the strategic plan.  I
think we need to make sure that we combine that with
this, rather than just say, okay, we've got
FlashVote survey, so we'll just move ahead on that
basis.  I think the FlashVote survey gives us good
guidance on that, but I think we need to be looking
at the strategic plan as whole because that's what
really plays into the five-year budget as well.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  74
Certainly, the FlashVote survey gives us

some guidance, but I think we need more than just a
presentation; I think we need some real Board
discussion and things on that.  

MR. MAGEE:  Understood.  And I'm just
looking at the calendar here.  I think that if we
had one trustee unavailable the week of February
12th, another trustee unavailable the following
week, if we were to push that special meeting back
by two weeks, we could still make that work.  

We'll just do some of our additional prep
work in advance, and we'll continue to move forward
with everything that we can that we know may be of
interest to the Board.  And we could make that work.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Carry on, Bobby.  I'll
just check and see.

CHAIR DENT:  Before we go on, Trustee
Tulloch, are you good with moving forward with the
presentation from FlashVote in January?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think that's useful.
Ideally, I think that's -- I'd keep them fairly
close together so we've not forgotten the results of
the FlashVotes as well.  To me, that becomes part of
the input to the strategic plans process.

CHAIR DENT:  Just so you guys know, Chair

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  75
Schmitz asked me to follow up with Mr. Lyons.  And
then also she's out of town, so it would be anywhere
from like the 24th through the 7th -- or I guess
24th through the end of month, if we're talking
January, 24th through the end of the month that
Mr. Lyons could potentially be available.

Just a heads-up on that.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  With regard to schedule,

if we have that meeting the week of February 19th,
I'll have to call in remotely because I won't be in
state.

CHAIR DENT:  Are you okay with the January
review of the FlashVote?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Yes.
CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  Awesome.
We're looking for a motion, or Trustee

Tulloch was going to look at his calendar and then
we would be entertaining a motion for the calendar,
this draft calendar, and if we can't come to a date
for that meeting, at least we know it's somewhere
towards the end of February.  We can all do that
offline, along with -- we can have Heidi coordinate
with us on what will work with Mr. Lyons.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  The week of the 12th is
bad for me as well.  Probably the week of the 19th

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  76
is better.  I've got a fairly crowded race calendar
here.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I move that the Board of
Trustees accept the draft budget calendar with the
discussed date changes, and working with Heidi to
figure out the exact dates that work for all
trustees.  

And then to have a special Board of
Trustees meeting for Kevin Lyons of Government
Science, Inc., to review and discuss the results of
the FlashVote priority survey as part of the Board's
strategic budget planning retreat and capital
improvement five-year plan sometime by the end of
January.

CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made.  Is there
a second?  

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Any further discussion by the Board?  
Seeing none, I'll call for question.  All

those in favor, state aye.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 84 of 202



  77
Motion passes, 4/0.  That will close out

item G 2.  Moving on to item G 3, formerly G 2.  
G 3.  Purchasing and Contract Administrator 

Position 
CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and possibly

authorize the Human Resource Director to recruit and
fill a vacant District purchasing and contract
administrator position and approve the necessary
related funding.  Requesting staff member, Director
of Human Resources Erin Feore and interim Finance
Director Bobby Magee.  Can be found on pages 265
through 270 of your board packet.

MR. MAGEE:  This item is really a
continuation of previous board actions to establish
what is essentially known as the District purchasing
and contractor administrator position from a couple
of years ago.  That position was ultimately left
unfilled and unfunded.  

As we have continued to move through this
process of evaluating the fiance department, one of
the things that the Board had directed me to do at
-- we had several meetings throughout August and
September where the Board had directed me to
continue to evaluate overall staffing needs of the
finance department.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  78
As we've continued to move through a

number of challenges related to procurements and to
contract administration, we've realized that we're
asking staff District wide to be experts on
processes that they only do a handful of times each
year, as opposed to having one individual that is an
expert on this, that stays current with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations, and best
practices.  

And so that was kind of the thought
process behind the original recommendation.  And
then we started working with the General Manager and
the Director of HR on what that would look like if
we brought this recommendation back to the Board.  

Ultimately, what we thought would be the
most logical recommendation for staff to make would
be to convert this position from a District
purchasing and contract administrator position to a
purchasing and contracts manager.  And as part of
that, we would establish what is essentially a
purchasing and contracts division within the
department of finance.  

As part of that, the Public Works contract
administrator, who is only providing services right
now, in theory, to the Public Works department would

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  79
begin to provide services on a District-wide basis.
And that's why we're asking for that position to be
transferred over as well.

So as you'll note on here, if this item is
approved, we are recommending the salary range for
the purchasing and contracts manager be a Grade 33.
Erin and I have worked on that quite a bit, that is
commensurate with what other managers are making
within the finance department, as well as some of
the salaries that we've seen out in the public for
these types of position.  

And then we're also asking that if this
item is approved, to direct finance staff to add
this to the overall budget augmentation that we are
anticipating bringing back to the Board on
February 14th currently.  

Whether contracts administrator position
is -- the funding for that position is transferred
at this item or not is still under evaluation.  I
just want to be clear about that.  We're -- the
theory would be to hire the manager position and
then to move to contract administrator position
over -- I'm sorry -- the Public Works contracts
administrator position over.  It would take us a few
months to recruit and have an individual on board.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  80
I know there's been some discussion about

whether the funding should follow that Public Works
position or not at this time.  It's still under
evaluation, and so I just want to be clear with the
Board that we would finalize that recommendation if
these actions are approved tonight and bring that
back on February 14th, whatever that decision would
ultimately be.  

With that, I'm happy to answer any
question the Board may have.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can I say can I have a
halleluiah?  I've been pushing for this position for
over two years.  I think it's an absolutely critical
position.  I'm glad to see it's been retitled.  In
terms of the job description, we need to be a bit
more comprehensive on it as well.  It's not just an
administrator position.  I would expect this to be a
hands-on procurement professional that's going to
drive that and drive strategic sourcing for the
District.  Somebody that actually understands
contracts and how to negotiate.  I think it's there.

Some of the things we need to think of, we
should -- there should be savings -- the job
description should include setting savings targets,
we expect this person to be, at absolutely minimum,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 85 of 202



  81
should be self-funding in terms of the savings.  It
should also be responsible for oversight of savings
delivery and things as well, make sure we're
actually delivering the claimed savings.  

I think it's a huge step forward.  With
regard to transferring the funding for the Public
Works contract administrator, I suspect it's
probably less of a big deal.  By the time we get
somebody in the position here, if we're waiting
until then to transfer the person, you're probably
looking at two to thee months max in the
financial year, so you're probably only talking
about 35-, 40,000 delta or something.  It's probably
less of an issue in terms of that, but I could be
wrong.  

But, yeah, you have my full support on
this.  It's -- I think I first suggested it to the
previous general manager when I was first appointed
to the Audit Committee.  It became glaringly
obvious, anybody and everybody purchasing in the
District, and no contract control, no negotiation or
anything.  We're just price takers.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Can you explain more
what you're trying to do with moving the Public
Works contract administrator too over to the finance

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  82
department?  I'm still a little confused on that,
and the memo doesn't really go into it.

MR. MAGEE:  Yeah, sure.  
The intention is to really establish a

District-wide division that provides services to all
departments.  And right now, that particular
position is filled by an individual that is really
focused on just Public Works items.  And I think
that if the finance department were to take on
District-wide, it would support this person
providing those services on a District-wide basis,
even though she has very, very specific knowledge
with respect to the Public Works department itself.

MS. FEORE:  If I may, I wanted to mention
that if that is a change that will be recommended,
obviously as a reminder, this is a union position,
so it would require some feedback with the union as
well, given the tenure of the employee and the
experience that she has with the Public Works team.
The mechanics of it still need some smoothing.  

Also, Trustee Tulloch, to your point on
the job description, job descriptions are fluid and
they change all the time.  Recommendations are
always welcome and very appreciated, and we can
update as needed.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  83
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I am great with this

position.  I'm a little concerned about item F of
the motion.  I just feel like we need to have gone
through some union negotiations, and maybe that's
something we do later or item 5 of this motion.

And so that's my one concern, but I think
this position will be a great asset to the District.
That's just kind of where I'm sitting right now.

MS. FEORE:  If I may again?
CHAIR DENT:  Go ahead.
MS. FEORE:  The management right afford us

under the contract to move positions to other
departments.  Where my concern would be, if we were
moving the position to become District wide, that
would be a material change to the job description,
and that, in and of itself, just requires some
additional review and evaluation.  Again, this is
separate from the position itself that we're
proposing.  

But with the position moving to the
finance department, obviously there are some
internal things that we would need to look at
because this person does even more than just the
contracts.  There are other things that she does
that provides tremendous value to the team, as she

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  84
has been with the Public Works team for a very long
time.  

Again, want to be very careful in what I'm
saying here, but as to moving the position to
another department under the contract, we would not
have a problem with that.  That said, I always do
try and work cooperatively with the union so we get
ahead of these kinds of questions and concerns.  

That would absolutely be evaluated as
well.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm just looking at the
wall behind me, it's One District/One Team.  I think
it's important if we're basically centralizing a lot
of the procurement leadership and administration.  I
think it makes sense to have some more professional
guidance in terms of that.  No disrespect to Public
Works, but most of them are not procurement
professionals or negotiated professionals and
things.  

I think it could be a huge advantage to
this person to have some real professional support
there.  I think it makes sense moving it across.  I
hear the comments, and obviously that needs to be
gone through.  If the volume of work exists there in
Public Works, it's still going to exists.  It's not

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 86 of 202



  85
going to exist because she's sitting in a different
chair.

CHAIR DENT:  I will entertain a motion on
this item.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll make a motion that
we, the Board of Trustees, accepts the
recommendations as listed here, recommendations 1 to
5, on page 265.

CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made.  Is there
a second?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Second.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion's been made and

seconded.  Any further discussion at this time?  
Seeing none, call for question, all those

in favor, state aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR DENT:  Aye.
Opposed?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  No.
CHAIR DENT:  Motion passes, three to one.  
That will close out item G 3.  Moving on

to item G 4, formerly G 3.  
G 4.  Recruitment Process/General Manager 

CHAIR DENT:  Verbal update on recruitment

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  86
progress of the general manager position.
Discussion of possible direction to staff regarding
contract template and interviews schedule.
Requesting staff member, Director of Human Resources
Erin Feore.  Can be found on pages 271 through 272
of your packet.

MS. FEORE:  Trustees, to get you an
update, we did have a meeting with Bob Hall and
Associates.  They did present to us some additional
candidates.  Of the entirety of list, we have
narrowed down the candidates to four.  We are very
excited to present these candidates to you.  

So a couple of things that I need to get
direction on moving forward, first, we would like to
have the draft template of the contract reviewed
just to kind of get ahead of the game a little bit
so that any questions or conditions can be noted and
that can be updated.  Obviously, I'm working very
closely with legal on this.  And so that is one
decision point that would be helpful to have today.  

And then the second decision point is,
given the mechanics of the interview, which do have
to be done in a public setting, estimating
approximately an hour to an hour and a half for each
candidate, it's going to be a pretty long meeting if

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  87
we try to wrap it into other general business items.
So we are proposing that the Board consider a
special meeting.  It's possible in February.  From
what we're hearing from a couple of trustees, it
sounds like this could be tricky for February, so
worst case scenario is early, early March, would be
our recommendation.  But we are recommending a
meeting so as not keep people working until midnight
or beyond.  

Those are the two things that I wanted to
present.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  What about the first week
of February?  I was wondering if that's -- other
trustees would be amenable to that?  I'd like to
move on this sooner rather than later.

CHAIR DENT:  Erin, how would -- I'll go to
the Board, but how soon could you bring this
forward?  Moving it forward a month rather than back
a month, would that work?

MS. FEORE:  We could make this happen as
early as that timetable.  The folks I'm working with
over at Bob Hall and Associates have notified the
candidates that the Board has an interest in moving
this forward as quickly we can, based on our
schedules.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  88
I would presume, given that it's January

10th, if we came up with a date the first week of
February, they would have no problems making those
scheduled arrangements to be here.

CHAIR DENT:  What's everyone's calendar
look like?  Is this something we handle offline? 

(Inaudible cross talk.) 
CHAIR DENT:  Erin, we will get back to

you, or if you could send the Board an email, and we
will -- through the clerk, and then that way, we can
coordinate something that works for the first week
in February.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Director Feore will not
be surprised by this.  

I'd like to express my extreme
disappointment.  When we talked with the recruitment
consultants about this, we stressed that we're
looking for somebody with deep operations
experience, changed management, not just a lifetime
public, local government public employee.  

I understand none of the candidates have
been put forward have had any private sector
experience, P and L experience, or deep operational
experience.  I think we're just perpetuating,
sticking in the same rut.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 87 of 202



  89
Having spoken with a recruitment

consultant who is supposed to be a recruiter, I was
informed that, basically, his only outreach to the
private sector was sending the job description to
various human resources departments.  That's not my
professional experience how a recruiter works.  As
somebody that probably gets a call probably every
other week from recruiters, normally it's more
targeted.  

It's kind of an ironic situation.  The
General Manager is the Board's only employee, yet we
get no visibility to all the candidates presented.
We've just got to take what's presented to us.  We
have no insight into what we're getting.  And I'm
not sure how we're supposed to be able to move the
District forward to drive the change that we've
committed to when we have no insight to the
candidates.

I've spoken with Sergio and Erin about
this; it's not news to them.  I think the fact that
we're only seeing the list of candidates that staff
feel we're approved to see -- and that's no
condemnation of Erin.  

But I think the whole process, we seemed
to have lost our direction.  The whole idea of this

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  90
was to go out and find the best person available,
not just those that want to continue a steady state
local government job.  

We're distinctly different from counties,
most counties, most local government institutes.  We
have 80 percent of our revenues comes through user
fees through what we claim are commercial
activities.  We need -- we're dependent on that.
This is not just a somewhere you can depend on a tax
base.  The tax base is only a small part of our
revenues that funds our operations.  

I'm deeply disappointed if all we're
seeing is local government employees.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I'm not privy to any of
the qualifications of the four candidates that have
been selected, so I look forward to having the
meeting in early February so that we can vet these
and decide if one of them is the right fit for us
for the job.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I also was not privy to
that information.  

Trustee Tulloch, what is your solution?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think my solution is,

I think there's two possible solutions:  We go ahead
and bring in an interim general manager, appoint an

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  91
interim general manager for a couple of years to
drive some of these things so we're in a position
where a steady state might be more appropriate.
That might be one solution.  I think the other
solution might be to go back out to the market and
perhaps change the recruitment firm.  

If this recruitment firm can only bring us
local government candidates, if that's all their
Rolodex consists of -- again, I may be completely
wrong here.  I can only go by the conversations I've
had.  

I would also stress I'm not privy to the
résumés of the candidates that have been submitted.
I have only asked the broad question, that was all.

I'm deeply disappointed, but I'm also very
keen to get a new general manager in place.  I don't
think -- I do want to also make sure we get the
right person in place, we don't just use expediency
and speed to get, and then make an appointment that
we're going to come to regret.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm in favor of
listening to these four candidates and deciding and
then if we don't feel like there's a qualified
person, then we will have to come up with a backup
plan, which I just -- I don't know anything about

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  92
these four people to make an informed decision.

CHAIR DENT:  I don't think any of us do.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  I guess I'm just

confused by Trustee Tulloch's comments about what
they've done to how they've moved from a government
job to another.  I'm just very confused on how we
know that.

CHAIR DENT:  I think he's asking questions
about the recruiting process.  

And, Sergio, can you comment on the
process and our ability to meet with the candidates
outside of the board meeting prior to, if that's
possible, what that looks like?

MR. RUDIN:  NRS 241.030 says that you're
not allowed to have a closed session meeting to
consider, discuss, or take action to appoint someone
to public office or as a member of a public body.  

241.031 also prohibits having a public
body having any sort of closed session meeting to
discuss the professional competence of anybody that
you may be -- who is appointed and is going to be
serving as your chief executive or administrative
officer.  

So the way that the Nevada AG's Office has
interpreted these rules is basically -- and no

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 88 of 202



  93
public body's allowed to have any sort of
discussions or meetings or actions on appointment of
the agency head, except for in the context of an
open and public meeting.  

That being said, given the way that the
statutes read that prohibit the public body from
taking action, one, the Board could potentially
appoint a liaison, a single board member, to oversee
the process and report back to the Board and
participate in that manner.  

That being said, they're not to be able to
really have any sort of direction from the Board on
that, and they would be only performing an
oversight.

CHAIR DENT:  Let me ask a little bit
more-detailed question:  Can individual trustees
meet with individual candidates prior to interview
process as a meet-and-greet, and to try and expedite
the process a little bit so we're not in here
grilling for an hour and a half, individually, each
one?  

I feel like if you ask some questions, you
get to know that person a little bit, it could speed
up the process.

MR. RUDIN:  It could, but it may raise

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  94
separate concerns about the fairness and the
openness of your hiring process.  

One of the issues is is that typically a
public agency wants to ensure an open and level
playing field when it comes to appointments.  And as
terms of best practice, you want to make sure that
applicants are put the same interview questions,
have the same opportunities.  

With respect to the individualized
meetings, while I don't think they are squarely
illegal, depending on what the context are of those
discussions, et cetera, I have heard in other public
agencies that may significantly increase the risk of
employment-related claims because, again, if you're
having those one-on-one meetings, there's no one
there to sort of vet or check what happens or to
otherwise document what happens.  

And if a trustee says something to a
candidate and that candidate doesn't get hired, now
there's a question of, well, what was it exactly
that was said?  It tends to create a scenario where
you're more likely to have employment discrimination
claims.

And that's sort of my caution with respect
to that.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  95
MS. FEORE:  If there was an opportunity

for a trustee liaison -- and to remind the Board,
we've been talking about this for a while, and I've
have been very open and honest with all of you about
my frustration at not being able kind of -- for lack
of better term, hamstrung with 241, and not being
able to collaborate with the Board on this.  

Obviously, me coming forward and with a
couple of other folks who have provided their
expertise coming forward and saying these are the
four we'd like to present, I'm putting my neck out
there as well.

My question to you, Sergio, which I think
would help me understand as well, if there was an
opportunity for board liaison to review the packets
of information, whether it's the résumé or the
entire packet, résumé, cover letter, all of that
good stuff, would that then preclude that board
member from voting?

MR. RUDIN:  No, I don't think so.  Because
it says a public -- yeah, NRS 241.030 and 241.031
prohibit a public body from having a meeting.  

And an individual trustee has no power to
appoint an executive head, I don't see that as being
a significant concern.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  96
MS. FEORE:  So the trustee -- if it was

possible to have a trustee liaison review the
candidates that we're proposing, review their
information to provide feedback to the HR
director -- I guess I'm trying to figure out how one
trustee, they couldn't provide guidance how to move
forward?  

MR. RUDIN:  I think that that trustee's
role would be to report back to the Board during the
course of the interview process and say the
selection made by staff was reasonable.  If that
makes sense.

CHAIR DENT:  Seems to me that ought to be
the Chair's role.  It's the Chair's job to bring
agenda items like this forward and if -- I mean, the
Chair would need to have enough information to
understand this process to know if that's -- if we
should be bringing this forward to the Board.

So, I think when Chair Schmitz gets back,
this should be something that you guys discuss
during the legal meetings or during your weekly
updates and all of that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm just highlighting
some respects, how convoluted this process is and,
quite frankly, it's almost stupid if it's our only

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 89 of 202



  97
employee but we don't get to see who has applied.  

Sergio, would we be breaking any laws if
we saw redacted résumés, so all personal
information, et cetera, removed, just so we had an
idea what the candidates applied were?

MR. RUDIN:  No.  I think that that would
be fine.  And the Board recently adopted a policy
for review of confidential information by the Board.
I would recommend that you make use of that policy
to the extent you're interested.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Is there not a way that
we can look at all those redacted résumés and make a
shortlist, our own shortlist of what we would pick
as your top five or four?  

MR. RUDIN:  The issue there is that that
whole discussion would need to be in an open
meeting.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah.  So if we were
able to look at it, have a meeting, a meeting that's
agendized, and list our top five or four, I don't
see why -- 

MR. RUDIN:  Yes, you can definitely do
that.  And the Board is entitled by law to decide
who the shortlist is for their evaluation.  

Now, the issue there, which the HR

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  98
director expressed a concern to me about, is that
that may cause folks to potentially want to pull
their name out of the applicant pool, because if
they are being discussed and there's not even a
guarantee for an interview and a lot of these folks
may not have notified employers, that's a concern.

So -- but from a legal perspective, yes,
the Board can decide who it wants to interview and
create its own shortlist.  

That is actually what the statutes
envision as the process is everything is supposed to
be out in the open, and all of the major decisions
should be made in public, to the extent they're
being made by the Board.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Sergio, wouldn't
everyone that's applied for this, for this position,
couldn't that be requested by any member of public
as a public records request?

MR. RUDIN:  I would want to look into
that.  There is likely an interest under the
Bradshaw Balancing Test in redacted this -- or not
providing that information at this particular time,
given the fact that it would likely shrink the
applicant pool and prevent the Board from having a
reasonably successful recruitment process.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  99
But, of course, after the fact, I think

that there would probably be less of an interest,
and potentially those -- that information would be
subject to disclosure at a later date.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Again, just following up
on -- I've never heard of the Bradshaw Balancing
Test.  It seems more like an engineering term, so
maybe I should know it.  

But at the end of day, if we think
candidates are going to pull their application
because it's going to go public, I mean, these
candidates must realize that at some stage it's
going to go public, and if we present, say, four
candidates, three of them are going to have the
information known that they've applied for another
job anyways, so I'm not quite sure -- we may shrink
it slightly, but I'm not quite sure how it changes
the position of any of these applicants.  

Are we then going to select four, and them
some of them say, well, I don't like my employer to
know that I'm applying for this?

MS. FEORE:  If I can speak from the
applicant's point of view, if I were, and I'm not,
let's make this clear, secretly looking for other
work, and I didn't want Mike Bandelin to know, and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 100
an agency was considering me for a position but I
hadn't even made it to the final selection process
for just the interview, I wouldn't want my
background, which can easily tie back to me, I
wouldn't want my background out there because -- for
any member of public to call my employers and start
doing their own digging and so forth and so on, I
wouldn't want that out there with no guarantee of
even an opportunity for interview.  

So it does create a risk to such
candidates who -- yes, Trustee Tulloch, you're one
hundred percent correct.  Ultimately, their
interview is going to be in the public forum, it's
going to be recorded, it's going to be broadcast
online, but at least they got their foot in the door
enough for an interview.

To not even be at that stage and have my
information public would -- I reasonably believe
that people would be less interested in moving
forward with the process.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I don't necessarily
disagree, it is, but the other way of looking at it
is it weeds out those candidates that are just
throwing their hat in the ring just in the off
chance that they might be the one outsider.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 90 of 202



 101
MS. FEORE:  Well, I can assure that the

candidates we've reviewed thus far are very serious
about their interest in this position.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Back to our original
question, Sergio, would it be all right for us to
see redacted résumés?  

MR. RUDIN:  Yes.  
MS. FEORE:  So then I think this changes

my agenda item pretty significantly because my guess
is, outside of the draft template, it sounds like
may not be interested in setting a special meeting
until such time as you've had a chance to review the
redacted applications or the redacted résumés?  Am I
making a presumption?

CHAIR DENT:  Let's just let all the
trustees weigh in first.  Trustee Noble asked for
the question, Trustee Tulloch has brought this up,
there may be an interest from Trustee Tonking, but
the Board has not give any direction yet.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I'm ready to review these
four candidates in early February.  It's been over
eight months, and I think it's time.  And if don't
find a candidate in those days four, then we go
back.  

But I would think that, given the vetting

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 102
process staff has done, we're going to have a viable
candidate.  But if we don't, then we go back and go
with a different firm at that point.  

I would at least like to review and
interview these four candidates.

CHAIR DENT:  I'll just say in discussions
with staff and working through this and when to
bring this back and then to extend the process a
little bit further, last fall when we did that,
the -- my concerns were similar to Trustee Tulloch's
of or not having enough candidates to be bringing
forward.  What if we have only really one good one
and the second and third with are just kind of
there?  That was one of my concerns, and that's why
we extended this process already once.  

And so I do understand your concerns when
it comes to someone that has outside experience
outside of government, and I believe our senior
directors that have been involved in this process,
they understand the Board's concerns with that.  We
did change the job description to allow for that.  

And so I understand your concerns, Trustee
Tulloch, but we have been going through this process
for six, seven months now.  If we get to a point,
and maybe we talk about this in a little bit deeper

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 103
dive when it comes to the overall budget process,
but maybe that person that is heavily involved in,
say, the numbers and the business units that we do
have, maybe that ends up being -- maybe it is in
the, say, director of finance position that we have
out for, maybe it's an assistant general manager
position and they're solely in charge of our
business units and have a business mindset when it
comes to evaluating each and every one of those and
they're the person that's held accountable for that.  

With that, I'll just say I'd be willing to
entertain a motion to move this forward, but I do
understand your concerns as -- that they are mine as
well.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think this is a big
decision.  I think -- this is going to be bad
because it's going to be on public record.  I think
we should also understand that we may not find the
perfect fit for our District in this process, and I
think we should at least give the process a try.  

And I also understand that this may not
work out quite how we want it and may have to
reassess.  But I want to try the process all the way
through to see what happens.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah.  I understand your

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 104
sentiments entirely.  You're very-well aware, having
been through the previous recruitment of a previous
general manager, Pinkerton, when the Board was left
with (inaudible) choice, they were just presented
with two candidates, one of whom was -- turned out
to be ineligible, despite having gone through all
the so-called vetting by the so-call recruitment
firm as well.

I understand your thoughts.  Yes, we could
have another -- we're talking about, well, maybe
recruit somebody that's not right for job, but then
we will bring somebody else in to actually do the
job that should be done.  

A lot of this direction comes from
leadership, and even if you had the same assistant
general manager that was a commericial person, and
if we can't recruit somebody like that for the
general manager's position, I'm not quite sure how
we would be able to recruit that at a lower level.
So I have concerns in terms of that.  

I hear my colleagues.  I'm making my views
known because I think it's important.  I think it's
also important for any general manager to have the
approval of all the Board members.  I'm not sure --
I'll wait and follow the process, but I'll reserve

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 91 of 202



 105
my rights to vote according to my conscious on that.

I do believe I would still like to see the
résumés, I'd like to see the résumés that have been
rejected as well.  I would like to see them redacted
so I have some idea.  At the moment, I have lost
confidence in the process.  I don't think we've
been -- I better not say anything because it's --
obviously we have a vendor that is there.  I am
disappointed with the results that's been offered.
That's all I can say at this stage.

CHAIR DENT:  That's fair.
I'll entertain a motion.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Talk about the draft

template at all?
(Inaudible cross talk.)
CHAIR DENT:  All right.  Who has some

comments, questions for the agreement that is?  And
I have the BBK one over here too. 

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think the item 3,
under essential duties and responsibilities, I don't
believe it's the job of the general manager to
develop policy recommendations for the Board.  It
should be accepting direction from the Board or
making recommendations to the Board, if there's
policy changes required.  I don't think it's the job

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 106
of the general manager to set policies.  I think we
debated that last year.

I think that's the first one.  I don't see
anything about change management -- being
responsible for change management and delivery.  I
think there's a lot of things there.  It still needs
a lot of work.  

MS. FEORE:  I'm sorry to interrupt.  Are
you speaking about the description or the contract?
I'm so sorry.

CHAIR DENT:  Job description, number 3.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'd like to see some

there -- I'd like to see some deliverables, some
accountability for deliverables as well.  I think
there should be some performance basis in this.
This is a pretty highly paid position in local
government.  I think we need to have accountability
and we need to have some very strong deliveries --

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Point of order on this.
We aren't asked to talk about the job description;
it only says to talk about the template of
employment agreement.  

The job description was just added as
supplemental information.  I just don't want us to
get in trouble on that.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 107
MR. RUDIN:  I can get around that issue

because the template incorporates the job
description.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  Perfect.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  They're both G 3.
That's my general comments, and I think

we've increased the remuneration in this, we're
trying to get the person.  I think we need to make
sure that we've also got accountability for
delivery -- there should be accountabilities here
and performance basis in here.  That's a starter.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  This would be question for
Ms. Feore:  With regards to the employment
agreement, all the blanks with regards to annual
leave, sick leave, and then severance and stuff,
those things we are supposed to be discussing now or
is that part of the negotiation process once a
candidate is selected?

MS. FEORE:  Those are generally items that
the candidate themselves will negotiate, so we left
those blank.

CHAIR DENT:  Any additional questions
regarding the job description or the employment
agreement?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think, and this is

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 108
where I'm getting a little confused on how these
perfectly tie, because, for example, section 3 that
Trustee Tulloch mentioned, I reviewed these online,
but my other option is I see that in 8 point -- I
lost it -- it talks about operating policies.  So it
changed that word.  I had, like, a note that said it
changed 3 to operating policy, which I think is
fine.  I think the problem is is if it's -- now I
gotta find it again.  

I guess that is one of my questions.  I
think -- the one thing I think is missing is -- and
maybe that's when we talk about -- in that
performance evaluation area is maybe some form of
like types of, like, KPI ideas or just some form
of -- as Trustee Tulloch mentioned -- deliverable,
but it doesn't have to be, like, explicit
deliverable, what we see as KPI.  

And the other thing I couldn't find in
here was community engagement and management
information.  I didn't see that as part of it, and I
think that's a huge part of this role.

MS. FEORE:  In the job description, you're
talking about the job description?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  No.  I was actually
looking at the agreement part of it.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 92 of 202



 109
Because in the agreement, it talks about a

lot of the duties, and I just was a little confused.
MS. FEORE:  The job description, with the

exception -- I noticed one error where I left the
residency information included and that actually had
been redacted the last time we discussed about the
job description.  

As I mentioned before, the job description
is fluid, so as there are recommended changes, I
don't know if should get those changes noted and
then bring it back to the Board for an updated
approval?  

With typical hiring managers, they will
reach out and say this particular function has
changed and this is what it is and I've collaborated
with the employee and we're good to go.  

And they get to make that decision.  I
don't -- I would love to get some sort of ideas as
to how to incorporate your ideas and suggestions,
but also ensure that the whole of the Board agrees.

CHAIR DENT:  Do we want to send in our --
we've already made changes to the job description.
We did that one before the recruiting process.  

So do we want -- any further tweaks and
changes, do we want to send those in?  I'm just

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 110
trying to think when -- if we're trying to have the
candidates come forward, it'd probably be good to
get this done in a special meeting before the 31st.
Or the 24th?  31st.  Okay.

So, potentially, maybe there's a meeting
the week before, special meeting, just for this, and
maybe it is board training in the beginning or
review of the FlashVote survey, and then we can
finalize the job description and potential changes
to the agreement.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I like that idea.  And
maybe we can throw that legal nonmeeting on the
forensic audit in there too and really just knock
out everything in a nice night.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.
Anything else right now?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Should we send edits we

have to the agreement as well?
CHAIR DENT:  Um-hum.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Perfect.
CHAIR DENT:  And I think it would be good

to have Heidi just kind of incorporate that with
whose changes, then that way we can have a
discussion about it.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can you send us the Word

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 111
version so we could redline it?

MS. FEORE:  Yes.  Absolutely.  The Word
version of both documents?

CHAIR DENT:  Yes.
MR. RUDIN:  Erin, is the idea, then, that

we would be having a subsequent meeting to discuss
and have the Board adopt any further revisions?  

MS. FEORE:  Um-hum.  It sounds like that's
the recommendation for the special meeting that will
include FlashVote and finance budget stuff --
forensic audit.

CHAIR DENT:  Yeah.  Nonmeeting legal
meeting, maybe prior to, and then review of
FlashVote.  And this would be, say, our sole item.
I believe Trustee Schmitz gets back the 24th or
something like that, so it would probably have to be
after that or before the meeting on the 31st.  That
gives us a week.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Do I need to make a
motion on the special meeting calendar date?  And do
I need to make a motion that we're scheduling
another special meeting?

CHAIR DENT:  I think we just do it all on
the long range calendar, if someone wants to take
notes, and that way -- Trustee Schmitz is gone,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 112
she's pretty good about that for us. 

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can I clarify, Sergio?
So we're okay to see the redacted -- review the
redacted résumés under the confidentiality?

MR. RUDIN:  Yes.
CHAIR DENT:  Any further discussion on

this item?  
All right.  We're going to take a

five-minute break.  
(Recess from 8:30 P.M. to 8:35 P.M.)
CHAIR DENT:  Moving on to item G 5.  

G 5.  HDR Engineering 
CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and possibly

approve professional services agreement between
Incline Village General Improvement District and HDR
Engineering, Inc., for an updated water and sewer
rate study for fiscal year 2024, in the amount of
$41,865.  Requesting staff member, interim Director
of Public Works Kate Nelson.  Can be found on page
273 through 299 of your board packet.

MS. NELSON:  This is item is to provide an
update to the water and sewer rate study that was
done the last two years.  This is an update.  

We are asking that the consultant not do
the cost of service analysis that they have done in

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 93 of 202



 113
the last two years that have shown relatively the
same numbers.

So if you have any additional questions
regarding this, I'm here to answer.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would just say I
agree with the recommendation not to do the cost of
service analysis this time.  However, given the
substantial increases to the irrigation customers, I
think it would be helpful to probably do one next
year to see if their usage has changed as a result
of those increases or if they remain the same.
That's the one piece there I can see a cost of
service analysis would be appropriate.  

But not this year because it was two-step
process in raising those rates to align them with
the cost of service analysis from last year, so I
think best to wait until next year to true that up
to make sure things have not gotten out of whack,
for lack of a better word, in the interim.

But I do think it's appropriate to make
sure that -- again, though, that we are recovering
the monies that we need to, and we don't end up --
we can do annual microadjustments, which are a lot
more palatable than if you wait and find out
next year that we didn't capture enough from

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 114
everyone, and we end up having to increase the rates
dramatically.  

The gradualism, I think, is much more
appropriate.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm wondering what we're
actually achieving from this.  We already know to
recommended rates from next year.  We haven't spent
as much capital as we have.  We already have a
fairly large -- it's a large step increase, I think
to eight percent, if I remember correctly, for
next year that's already baked in.

All this is basically doing is updating
the spreadsheet.  By the time we spend 50,000 bucks
on it, I think there's a better way of spending that
money.  Particularly, we're still waiting to see the
multi-year utility plan, to see that.

I think we should -- to my mind, I don't
see any value to us in actually doing this.  You can
save 50,000 bucks here.  We already know what the
recommended rates are based on our expenditures.
We've actually spent slightly less, and we've
already baked in the large increase.  Doing this is
not going to make any really microadjustment.  We
were at ten percent last year, then another 8
percent this year.  We're probably going to have

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 115
more on there.  

I think it's also time -- to Trustee
Noble's point, yes, I think it's time to do a root
and branch review of the allocations, the cost
allocations, the cost of service.  I think I brought
that up twice last year, and it turned out the
consultant had been instructed not to make any
changes.  

I think it's now becoming -- with the
money we've spent on the pipeline, with the likely
huge capital expenditure that is going to come out
of the utility study, I think we need to look very
seriously at how these allocations go going forward.  

My recommendation would be that we don't
do this.  We already know the rates for next year.
By the time this is completed, we would be through
the budget cycle and things as well.  So it doesn't
even take account of that.  

I think we just move forward with the
rates as agreed.  We save the 50,000 here, and when
we see the results of the utility study and we've
gone through budget process, then it's maybe time to
do a root and branch review of how we're doing the
capital allocation and cost of service.

CHAIR DENT:  I would agree with Trustee

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 116
Tulloch on this.  It's a lot of money to be spending
to be updating a model and really updating a
projection is really all we're doing.  We know where
we need to be, where our costs, and I just -- staff
used do this, three years ago this was staff's job,
and then our new Public Works director recommended
going this route.  And we had also not had this one
in a very long time by an outside consultant, so I
thought it was overdue at that time.  

But we've already done this twice in a
row, and I didn't see much value add for what we
went through last year, and so not something I would
be interested in approving for this year.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What concerns do you see
if we don't move forward with doing this this year?

MS. NELSON:  So, any concern we have is if
we were actually to not move forward with some rate
increase.  I think you guys experienced that around
2019/2020.  You saw those large jumps after that.

I think the goal should be to get, like
Trustee Noble said, more incremental, yearly
increases to match the cost of service increases
from, say, our suppliers and that kind of thing.  

So I would not recommend that we not do
anything.  But if it's the Board pleasure to go

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 94 of 202



 117
ahead and institute the recommended rate increase
for year two based on last year's study, then we
know from that study our bottom line that was
included.  As long as we don't drastically change
from that, we should be okay.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  You feel like staff has
the capacity to address any changes from the year
two models that might happen, and, like, direct
that?

MS. NELSON:  Yes.
CHAIR DENT:  Any further discussion on

this item?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I still think moving

forward is appropriate because then we have the
most-accurate rates.  While the projections were
that there was going to be another 80 percent
increase this coming year, things changed and it
could be 8 percent, it could be a little bit higher,
it could be a little bit lower.  I would be looking
for this rate study to give us the most-accurate
rates possible.  

But if the rest of the Board does not want
to move forward, then it is what it is.  But I would
highly recommend that we, at least, do the -- if
we're not going to do the study, we at least go

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 118
along with the recommendation from last year's study
for what the increase should be for this
coming year.

CHAIR DENT:  I'll just say I agree with
using what the recommendation is for year two for
the rate increase for this year.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Agreed.  That was always
my intention, Trustee Noble, was to use the numbers
because we haven't got any major variances from
there.  

I think to save us 50 grand at the moment,
and then use it when we have a much fuller picture
and we need to start looking at multi-year capital
plan and things as well.  It becomes worthwhile.
Then we have more to work with.  

But, yes, my intention was I assumed these
rates projections, I thought we had agreed to them
last year for next year.

MS. NELSON:  My recollection is that the
Board only approved year one.  So, yeah.

CHAIR DENT:  Okay.  That's fair.
You're not going to see any surprises or

hiccups when you bring back the proposed rate is
what -- on the record.

Any further discussion on this item?  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 119
Okay.  That will close out item G 5.

Moving on to item G 6, formerly G 5. 
G 6.  Best, Best, and Krieger LLP 

CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and possibly
approve the contract with Best, best, Krieger, LLP
for legal services for a period of January 1, 2024
through December 31, 2026.  Requesting trustee, Sara
Schmitz, Chair.  Can be found on page 300 through
311 of your board packet.

Chair Schmitz is not here, but I will open
this up for discussion.  Any questions or concerns,
we can have Sergio just give a brief overview.  I
believe you sent out an email on Sunday.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Point of order.
Shouldn't Sergio be recusing himself?

CHAIR DENT:  I know there were certain
things that were asked of him in his proposal.  

Go ahead, Sergio.
MR. RUDIN:  I had emailed the clerk,

asking to forward this information to the Board.
In general, the main terms are that BBK is

asking for an inflationary increase.  The current
rates in the expired agreement were 265 for basic
legal services, 170 for paralegals and law clerks.
And BBK's requesting rates to be set at 285 for

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 120
attorneys for basic legal services.  This covers all
of your general counsel work.  

This is a 7.5 percent rate increase since
rates were set in 2020.  The actual CPI for the west
region, which includes Nevada, was 12.5 percent over
the same time period, so this is actually below the
rate of inflation.  

For special legal services, the rates that
were set in 2020 were 295 for attorneys, 185 for
paralegals, law clerks, analysts.  Again, BBK's
requesting that rates be set for 320 for attorneys.  

Primarily, this is the sort of work that
would be litigation based, this is does not cover
attendance at meetings or similar types of routine
legal work.

The prior expired agreement had a flat-fee
rate of 750 per board meeting or committee meeting,
regardless of the length of the meeting.  That is
not workable for the law firm.  So we're suggesting
that meetings be billed at the regular basic legal
services rate.  

Additionally, there is an annual CPI
adjustment that is proposed that would be timed to
coincide with your budgetary cycle.

Beyond that, the contract would provide

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 95 of 202



 121
that I would be serving as your general counsel and
primary legal point of contact.  Josh Nelson, of
course, is going to be available, since he is a
partner in the firm, to assist with any other work.
And, additionally, we would maintain Anne, who has
been assisting staff with contract review and other
things on an as-needed basis.  

So that would be your legal team.
CHAIR DENT:  Thank you for the overview.
Questions?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have questions more

for the Board and my thoughts on it.  I enjoy
working with BBK.  

I'm hoping that we could think about this
-- and I don't know if BBK is amenable to this -- as
a year.  I know that we had had this whole plan of
going out to RFP.  We talked about hiring different
types of lawyers, we had this whole discussion, and
then -- I understand timing and all the things that
are going on, all the changes in the District, I get
it, but I'm wondering if in a year we can get some
of our ducks in a row.  

Not to say that we wouldn't just want to
keep BBK, but I'm just thinking about the decisions
we made as a prior board.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 122
My other concern is -- I totally

understand why they got rid of the $750 flat rate.
But when I looked back on a bunch of our board
meeting lengths, some of those could come up to
almost $1,700 per meeting, which is a lot.  So we
either need to become proficient or just be aware
that we're going to have an increased amount of our
legal fees allocated into the budget.  

Those are my two concerns and thoughts,
and I just wanted to bring those up to the Board.

CHAIR DENT:  Just a comment on one of the
things you said, potentially proposing a different
set fee for the Board meeting rather than an hourly
could be a negotiation we go back -- 

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah, I think that would
be a good negotiation.  Maybe even talking about the
length of the agreement and another set fee.  And I
know our meetings -- and I get why they do it.
Hundred percent understood 750 is a great deal for
how long our meetings are, but it also gets really
expensive for us too, otherwise.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Color me confused.  Is
it four months, five months since BBK came to us and
said they didn't want to continue service, and now
they're proposing a two-, three-year contract?  Two

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 123
now, originally it was three.  

We also -- the Board also directed General
Manager, I think at the September meeting, to start
preparing an RFP so we weren't left high and dry
with specific instructions about it.  

We're now in January, and understand
this -- we do need to -- got to agree with Trustee
Tonking, I would modify it further.  I would say the
contract would be up to a year.  I think we need to
change the -- we can't have 30 days termination.
While it would be nice for us to have that, we can't
afford to have a 30-day termination clause by our
lawyers who could potentially -- I'm not suggesting
they would, but it could be if we want out of the
contract and BBK learned that they weren't
successful, and I'm assuming the fact that they've
put this forward they would bid in a competitive
bidding situation.  We can't have a situation where
they decide that maybe they are not going to win the
contract and just pull out with 30 days' notice and
just leave us high and dry.  

I think that would need to be 90-day
notice, and obviously that puts the onus on us as
well.  It's only fair that it's a mutual term.  I
think we both need some security there.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 124
As I recall, I wasn't on the board at the

time, I don't think BBK ever competed in a
competitive solicitation for this role.  Did that go
out to RFP or just a proposal that came from BBK?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I wasn't on the board,
but I'm pretty sure it -- they were, like, we just
talked to them and they -- but I'm --

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I don't think we had any
other bidders at the time, as I recall.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Which is -- I mean,
there's a risk of not wanting to work for us as
well.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I don't think there's
competitive solicitation.  I think, to my mind, it's
time that, yeah, I think we move forward with this
with some changes.  I would say for a period for up
to a year to make sure both parties have some
security.  

But I think we should be moving forward
with a competitive -- going out to bid on it.  And
I'm sure BBK would be -- they're obviously keen, the
fact that they've put this proposal together means
despite their previous advice, they're now
interested in actually working with us again.  And I
think it's good practice to go -- move forward with

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 96 of 202



 125
an RFP on the next few months on that basis.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm really not
comfortable doing an up to, because I think it does
open a lot of issues.  I think it makes BBK not feel
as invested, it think it make us open to a lot of
liability of losing them, and I think we can leave
the 30 day and leave one year and one year gives us
a whole year from right now to get ourselves
organized and decide what we want to do, rather than
six months.

CHAIR DENT:  There's a huge, say,
bandwidth component of all this too.  We talk about
getting organized, but staff has a lot of things
that they're trying to get done.  I'd say priority
number one is getting a replacement for the general
manager so our interim General Manager can go back
to skiing every day.

It's definitely a huge priority when --
I'm not opposed to a 90 day.  I don't see a negative
that comes from doing a 90 day.  A year, I would say
this process takes nine months at a minimum with how
slow government is to go out to RFP, go through this
process.  All of a sudden, we're half way through
this year, and it's going to take a few months even
for a transition if BBK weren't our continued

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 126
counsel.  

I would say that at a minimum, this thing
would be a year.  And I'm open to the 90 day -- 

Trustee Tulloch, where are you at with
the -- what would you propose when it comes to the
$750 prior fee and the potential $1,700 proposed
fee?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would think we don't
make any changes to the agreement apart from the
rate rise, the 750, should be baked in.  We're
basically continuing the previous contract in terms
of that.  

To Trustee Tonking's point, there's no
point in saying the contract's for a year when
there's 30 days termination for convenience, because
that means we're only getting a 30-day contract.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm fine if we want to
go to 90 days.  I was just saying that I don't feel
comfortable saying up to -- then why don't you just
put a 30-day contract out there?  It seems like then
we're renewing it every 30 days, if that's what
you're trying to make that argument.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  No, I don't want a
30-day contract.  That leaves both sides -- 

TRUSTEE TONKING:  You want to leave 90

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 127
day, you'd be okay keeping it at a year?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah.  Because it's --
you can still cancel beforehand.  Then if we move
heaven and earth and got the proposal out and move
forward, a year basis gives you enough stability.  

I think to Chair Dent's remarks, I think
it is going to take a six-month period go through
it.  It shouldn't -- hopefully we get a new
procurement person on board.  These things will
start moving much more quickly.  

I could live with a year, but I think it
needs to be -- the 90 days, there's a potential for
protection on both sides.

CHAIR DENT:  One other thing I wanted to
touch on.  It was the fact that BBK did give us
notice six months prior to the contract being up,
and the situation changed.  Situation changed, and
within a month their situation changed, and Sergio
was coming into the mix probably before most of you
guys knew that.  I talked to Josh about it.  We knew
things were kind of shifting around a little bit,
and there was potential, we're talking about the
contract.  

I do want to thank BBK for continuing to
work with us, even though they are out of their

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 128
contract right now, showing good faith in that
process.  And they have assured us they will
continue to do that even if at some point when we do
go out to RFP, and let's just say BBK weren't
selected or decided not to put their name in, they
said they would work with us through that transition
process.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I'm fine with doing a
one year.  I'd like the 90 days because, like has
already been said, 30 days leaves us high and dry if
something happens; 90 days, we can turn it around
and get somebody else, but in 30 days that would not
happen.  

I would hope that BBK, given their past
actions in giving us more than adequate notice with
the six months that -- I just -- 90 days gives me
more assurance that we don't have a problem.  

With regards to the hourly for the
meetings, I'm fine with that, because another
incentive for us to actually move expeditiously
through our meetings and be prepared and succinct
and get it done.  I'm fine with that.  

I understand why 750 flat rate for a
meeting is not workable when were especially going
into budget meetings.  If last year was any

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 97 of 202



 129
indication, we were going to midnight or 1:00 in the
morning, and that's -- that 750 doesn't cover their
costs.

CHAIR DENT:  I've heard hourly rate
increase is fine with the meetings, I've heard keep
it the same, and potentially let's negotiate. 

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah, my negotiation
idea would even be on both ends, like we have
an hourly rate -- or we have a flat rate up to
X hours, that's a little bit at a discounted rate,
and then if we were going over that, we get
that hourly rate, and that incentivizes us not to
hit that mark too, to be more efficient, because we
do need to be more efficient.

CHAIR DENT:  I can get on board with that.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I like that idea.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, I think the

original hourly rate, the flat rate was based on
in-person attendance as well.  There's a big
difference between charging 280 or 320 bucks an hour
for remote attendance, as opposed to charging 320 an
hour for in-person attendance.  

I think -- I take the point that the 750
may be unrealistic.  I think a flat fee of 1,000
bucks or something may be there, and potentially if

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 130
it goes over, say five hours or something, then
there is there.  I think I would prefer to see
something along these lines.  

I think another issue -- I've only heard
this unofficially and I may be totally wrong, is BBK
guaranteeing us that they will provide resources
when required now?  I heard somewhere that
there's -- and this may just be hearsay, but I heard
there's an issue with resources not being available
at some stage recently.  

I'm sure that's maybe just hearsay, but
I'm assuming this contract guarantee's availability
of resources.

MR. RUDIN:  I'm not exactly sure what you
mean by "resources."

CHAIR DENT:  You guys want to talk about
that offline?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, we can take it
offline.  I may be totally offbeat here, but I just
want to make sure that we always -- when we need
legal guidance, it's available.

CHAIR DENT:  In Chair Schmitz' absence, do
we want to have a liaison go back and work with
Sergio and see what we can settle on in the
negotiation?  Who wants to volunteer for that?

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 131
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah.  And I can kind of

talk through the rate idea I was thinking.  
CHAIR DENT:  Trustee Tonking, everyone on

board with that?
Okay.  All right.  Sergio, we're in a

holding pattern on the existing contract, and we
will in touch on that.  And the Board has directed
Trustee Tonking to get with you and work through
some of these differences.

Anything else on this topic?  
Nope.  All right.  That will close out

item G 6, formerly G 5.  Moving on to item G 7. 
G 7.  Board Liaisons 

CHAIR DENT:  Review, discuss, and appoint
board liaisons to various functions/organizations
for 2024.  Requesting trustee, Chair Schmitz, page
312 of your board packet.  

So I believe these are all of the liaisons
that we started with, and I'd say approved as a
board or were potentially -- looks like slightly
modified.  I think the pickleball is the only change
in here.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  That should change to
Parks and Recreation, so it's all of Parks and Rec,
just minus the one pickleball.  It get's confusing

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 132
when it's called recreation and tennis.

CHAIR DENT:  Oh, Parks and Rec, yep.
Understood.  It's Parks and Rec minus pickleball.
Understood.  This is where we started, this how we
got through the year.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  And Trustee Schmitz had
reached out to me asking which -- if I had been a
liaison to any.  She sent that December 28th when I
was out of the country.  And so did not respond in
time to her for it to get in here.  I was the
designated liaison for Diamond Peak and would like
to continue that in 2024.  

CHAIR DENT:  As of right now, no changes
needed, is that how we stand?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I feel good with them,
unless anyone has concerns with theirs.  I'm fine
with mine.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I like the continuity.
CHAIR DENT:  Then for the next, say,

few months until, say, a new contract is approved
with FlashVote, if there is a survey you guys want
to have sent out, reach out to me if you have
questions.  I've worked with Trustee Noble on one.
I've worked with Trustee Schmitz on another.

Because I'm the liaison doesn't mean

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 98 of 202



 133
anything.  You guys can ask whatever questions you
want or any ideas you have.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Makes sense these are
two years.

CHAIR DENT:  All right.  That will close
out item -- 

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think there's another
area here.  I think the objective of this, when I
remember a board meeting on why she brought this
forward, and I am now speaking for her, but my
understanding is that she wanted to figure out if
anyone wanted to do outside, external agencies.  I
think that was the main question.  

But I agree, two years on these is great,
because it takes a lot to figure out what the hell's
going on.

CHAIR DENT:  Let's all weigh in on that.
Do we want to have an outside liaison?  

Is there a specific area that we feel the
need for today?  And it doesn't mean that we need to
have an answer for this today, but we know this is
an option at least.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think it makes sense.
I think we need to boil down what these external
agencies are, which the important ones are.  I think

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 134
it does make sense that there's some board oversight
and things in these areas.  

I was going to vote since I worked in
Hawaii anyway, I thought I might volunteer for
outreach there.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Just if there is a trustee
that's got an interest in one of these, I think that
would probably be most appropriate.  I wouldn't want
to assign somebody to monitor an agency and they
have no interest in the subject matter whatsoever.

So it would be something I think if a
trustee has a desire to, I think let's consider it
and talk about it.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Do you think we can just
get a list of the major agencies that we work with,
interim GM Bandelin?  And then maybe walk through it
and decide if we have a role in them or not.  And
then we can bring whatever we have and go from
there.

CHAIR DENT:  That's a great starting
point.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  We might want to add NV
Energy to that list, given the recent history.  I'm
happy to volunteer there.

CHAIR DENT:  Any further discussion on

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 135
this item?

All right.  Seeing none, that closes out
item G 7.  Next up we have long rang calendar. 
I.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

CHAIR DENT:  313 through 317 of your board
packet.  Interim Director Mr. Bandelin.

MR. BANDELIN:  I will note to the Board
that we have worked with Chair Schmitz on -- we
invited her to come to a meeting, and our intention
with staff and the Chair is to do the best we can to
fill out any known dates within the long range
calendar.  You'll note a longer long range calendar,
if you will, that we're going to keep working on to
be able to fill in specific items in there.  

For tonight's meeting, the notes that I
have would be the last week in January, a special
meeting to review FlashVote survey results.  And
also at that same meeting would be to approve an
amendment to the job description and contract for
the general manager.

And, again, in the last week in February,
we had talked about a special meeting with
interviews for potential general manager of the
District candidates.  

And then other items that we would add to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 136
the long range calendar would be an IVGID Magazine,
staff would come with potential recommendations and
discussion for content of the magazine.  

We talked about a legal nonmeeting to
agendize a discussion on agreements and contracts
with the forensic due diligence audit.  

And just what I'll tell the Board is that
we'll have our District Clerk reach out and set
dates for that last week in January, first week in
February, and just come to some conclusion where we
can put it on the calendar to be able to hold those
meetings.

CHAIR DENT:  I believe Trustee Schmitz
returns on 24th.  I would check to confirm that.
Maybe the meetings on the 25th would be the next
time we have it.  

And depending on how well Trustee Tonking
can shake down Sergio, maybe we bring back that
contract for approval at that meeting as well.  I
don't want that to linger for too long.  I think we
owe it to BBK.

Anything else?  What did we miss in that?
Legal meeting nonmeeting FlashVote, there was the -- 

MR. BANDELIN:  Approve the amendment to
the GM job description and contract.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 99 of 202



 137
CHAIR DENT:  Yep.  
And then the February meeting, we talked

about IVGID Magazine and purpose.  Any other long
rang calendar items?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  General Manager
Bandelin, you can perhaps get me up to date.  As of
yesterday, we still have no signed agreement, and NV
Energy has not yet signed the Diamond Peak
agreement.  I knew the community's getting very
concerned.  This extends the uncertainty even
further.  

Can we put that on the agenda for the
January 31st meeting if it's not been signed by
Diamond Peak?  Maybe it's time we just pull out of
the agreement altogether.  We can't leave the
community still hanging on the hook there with all
the issues overhanging in terms of house values.

MR. BANDELIN:  Yes, I can answer that
question.  I supposed you missed it in my GM update
when I verbally stated that we do -- from the
approved Amendment and Restated Site License
Agreement that was approved by the Board on December
13th, I just spoke this evening to how we have the
signed agreement in hand, and we will be -- I'll
restate the fact that District counsel and myself

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 138
will make it available to the public for their
access through public records request.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I heard the NV Energy,
but I missed the second part of it.  Thank you.  I'm
glad that is signed.  

I have another thing I'd like to put on
the Board agenda.  We've been looking at the fate of
this building and what needs to be done in this
building for a long time.  We're starting to see
pressures on space, office space and things.
There's areas where we're out of compliance with
various regulations, ADA, and all sorts of things.  

We're all very well aware this building is
near the end of its life.  I think it's way past
time we start doing a space analysis, what we
actually need, what we can use from our existing
buildings, where we have potential space.  

We have the Public Works building, we've
got the Parks and Rec building, we've got The
Chateau.  I think I would like you and Finance
Director Magee to look at engaging somebody to do a
quick -- first, a quick and dirty study to see what
we could potentially do, what our requirements
actually are, particularly given some staff work
remotely now, whether we need so much actual

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 139
individual office space or whether we can start
doing some hot desking and things, better use the
facilities we have, and potentially then put an end
of life on this building.  

I would like to suggest that potentially
you and Finance Director Magee get your heads
together and look at that.  It would be very useful
to have a quick and dirty analysis so we can look at
if we're going to have to do any construction or
reconfiguration so we can have that in advance of
the budget time.  

I think it's time we made a move on some
of these things instead of just always sticking
Band-Aids on.  I would certainly like to see the
best use of the facilities we already have.

MR. BANDELIN:  Noted.
CHAIR DENT:  Any other agenda items, long

range calendar?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have on here the

consolidation of advisory meeting minutes for our
advisory boards.  Because we also have the court
reporter attending all those meetings, writing word
for word, and I'm not sure that's as useful as it is
for these.  And also a huge cost.  

So I'm hoping we can bring that up to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 140
discuss, meeting minutes price and costs at those
advisory committees soon.

CHAIR DENT:  Discussing it as the board
level; correct?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah.  So that can --
because we gave direction to have a court reporter
--

CHAIR DENT:  That's something we can
potentially put on the agenda.  That doesn't seem
like it would take very long for that discussion.
That could be something we could do at end of the
month, potentially, or early February.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  It could be done really
quickly.  

CHAIR DENT:  Yeah.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Could we start just

doing direct voice transcription or something?
CHAIR DENT:  I think you guys already get

that via Zoom.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  If we did voice to type.
CHAIR DENT:  Zoom already does that for

you.  And it even gives you your highlights and it
gives you your direction or next steps that you need
to take.  It's just not as good for the public.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  It doesn't work as well,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 100 of 202



 141
probably, for these meetings because there's an
editing issue, but in the same mic, yeah.  

But since we're on Zoom for those ones,
it's much cleaner.

CHAIR DENT:  So, yes, we could do that.
Let's put it on the agenda and get Board approval.  

Anything else?
All right.  That closes out item I.

Moving on to Board of Trustee updates, item J.
J.  BOARD OF TRUSTEE UPDATES 

CHAIR DENT:  Any updates?  
Okay.  Seeing one, that moves us to final

public comment.  
K.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 

CHAIR DENT:  Any final public comment in
the room?

Matt, can we go to public comment via
Zoom, please.

MS. KNAAK:  Hi.  Yolanda Knaack.  
Happy new year to everyone.  That was a

good meeting.  I do have some concerns about Linda
Car's report, so I will look into that and get back
to you at the next meeting.  

Thank you.
MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright, Crystal Bay.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 142
As far as Linda Cars is concerned, I've

had enough of Linda Cars.  I think our whole
community has had enough of Linda Cars.  

The Registrar of Voters vetted all the
signatures.  The irregularities that were signatures
that were not acceptable, that not the Registrar of
Votes, the Secretary of State's job.  That is the
people that are running the recall.  They screwed
up, so be it.  

But, you know, this has been nothing but a
disaster in our community.  People outside this
community has look at this community as being
criminal, corrupt, disorganized.  Maybe why we can't
find a qualified person to to come in here and be a
general manager.  

Enough of these people.  Enough of their
garbage.  Enough.  Enough.  Enough.  Go way.  Go
back to wherever you came from.  You don't need to
be here doing what you're doing.  

We're trying to run a community, we're
trying to make the most out of it.  We're trying to
give the best deal to our citizens who are living
here.  And quit stealing from us quit.  Quit trying
to invoke your silly mentalities into our community.
It's just not working.  And you're not acceptable.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 143
All your little compatriots, they've kind of gone
away, just Cars is still hanging on for some reason.  

You're not going to have a recall in the
next three months no matter what in the hell
happens.  You're not going to get an election in the
next three months no matter what happens.  

We have a primary coming up.  Why would
you waste so much time and energy doing what you're
doing and hiring legal counsel who used work for the
Board.  I mean, conflicts of interest ruing
everywhere.  

You know what?  These people have been our
problem.  These people are still somewhat of a
problem.  If they just catch on to what's going on
and see that we're trying to fix a very bad
situation here and run this District like a district
should be run.

As far as the legal counsel, I did some
checking around, Sun Valley pays their legal counsel
a $1,000 month.  They're as big as we are.  Why is
it so expensive for us?  Are we something special
here?  We have so many problems?  

And I believe the legal counsel only works
for the Board, that represents the Board.  I don't
know why employees are going to legal counsel to get

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 144
advice.  Hire your own attorney.  

We have a problem here, and it's starting
to work its way out.  I believe a new culture is
starting to emerge, and I believe we're starting to
see that these people that are causing all these
problems are disappearing like rats off a ship.  

Let's just keep going forward and keep
doing what we're doing and hopefully Mrs. Cars will
find something else to do with her life.  This is
pathetic.  

Anyway, thank you.  Good night, guys.
CHAIR DENT:  Thank you.  It looks like

that was our final public comment.  Thank you, Matt.
L.  ADJOURNMENT 

CHAIR DENT:  I want that say that will do
it.  We are going to be adjourned.  It is 9:18.  I
want to thank staff and my colleagues.

(Meeting ended at 9:18 P.M.)
 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 101 of 202



 145
STATE OF NEVADA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

 
I, BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH, do hereby 

certify: 
That I was present on January 10, 2024, at 

the Board of Trustees meeting, via Zoom, and took 
stenotype notes of the proceedings entitled herein, 
and thereafter transcribed the same into typewriting 
as herein appears. 

That the foregoing transcript is a full, 
true, and correct transcription of my stenotype 
notes of said proceedings consisting of pages 145, 
inclusive. 

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this day of 20th 
day of January, 2024. 
 

    /s/ Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
 

 
___________________________ 
BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 102 of 202



INVOICE
BAVS SM-LLC

brandiavsmith@gmail.com
United States

BILL TO
Incline Village General Improvement
District
Susan Herron / Heidi White

775-832-1218
AP@ivgid.org

Invoice Number: IVGID 17

Invoice Date: January 21, 2024

Payment Due: February 10, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $1,220.00

Items Quantity Price Amount

Base fee
January 10, 2024 BOT meeting

1 $350.00 $350.00

Per page fee
January 10, 2024 BOT meeting

145 $6.00 $870.00

Subtotal: $1,220.00

Total: $1,220.00

Amount Due (USD): $1,220.00

Page 103 of 202



From: indra winquest
To: Matthew Dent; Sara Schmitz; Michaela Tonking; Mike L. Bandelin; Ray Tulloch; Dave Noble; Heidi White
Subject: Correspondence
Date: Thursday, January 11, 2024 11:16:09 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Interim GM Mike Bandelin and members of the Board of Trustees- 
    
    I am providing written correspondence in response to agenda item F.1 from the January 10th, 2024
Board of Trustees Meeting. Several members of the community contacted me regarding this item, so I
took the time to review. I am referencing page 104 question 3, and page 117 question 82. Both of these
responses are inaccurate. I would request the record reflect that my separation from the district never had
anything to do with the requirement to go through a public evaluation process. I stated publicly that in the
event that I were to continue on with the District, I had no issue going through the full evaluation process.
As I stated publicly, the request to consider separation was based on the existing circumstances at the
time which included several factors, most importantly what was best for myself and my family and my
overall health and wellness. I am copying the District Clerk as I want this included as correspondence as
mentioned in reference to agenda item F.1 from the January 10th, 2024 Board of Trustees Meeting.
Thank you for your understanding and cooperation and Happy New Year. 

Indra Winquest

Page 104 of 202

mailto:iwinquest@yahoo.com
mailto:dent_trustee@ivgid.org
mailto:trustee_schmitz@ivgid.org
mailto:tonking_trustee@ivgid.org
mailto:MLB@ivgid.org
mailto:Tulloch_Trustee@ivgid.org
mailto:noble_trustee@ivgid.org
mailto:hhw@ivgid.org


From: Info IVGID
To: Heidi White
Cc: Mike L. Bandelin; Erin Feore
Subject: FW: January 10, 2024 Board Meeting, Agenda item G.5 BBK Agreement
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 1:34:49 PM

 
*Please remember: Using the “reply all” feature in this email could constitute a violation of the
Nevada Open Meeting Law.
 
 
Good Afternoon All, (Trustees Bcc’ed)
Please review the emailed Public Comment for the Board meeting tonight, below.
 
 
From: Diane Heirshberg <dbheirshberg@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 2:51 PM
To: Info IVGID <info@ivgid.org>
Subject: January 10, 2024 Board Meeting, Agenda item G.5 BBK Agreement
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Re:  January 10, 2024 Board Meeting, Agenda item G.5 BBK
Agreement
Dear IVGID,
Please make this email which is my public comment, a part of the public
record of the meeting of January 10, 2024, and deliver a copy to each of
the Trustees.  Thank you, Diane Becker
 
Dear Trustees Dent, Tulloch, Tonking, Noble, and Schmitz,
I am writing to suggest revisions to the proposed BBK Contract, and to
recommend that if the Board is going to proceed to contract with BBK,
that the Board hire an attorney to represent and protect the interests of
IVGID. 
Please note that I make these suggestions based on 23 years of
experience as both a former Chief Legal Officer and a former inhouse
and outside General Council (and before that 20 years as a litigator). 
During the later part of my practice, I was chairperson of the Corporate
Law Department of the then largest law firm in Ventura County
California and we represented many the public entities in the County
during my tenure.  As such I reviewed and approved the retainer
agreements with clients on non-litigation matters, including the public

Page 105 of 202

mailto:info@ivgid.org
mailto:hhw@ivgid.org
mailto:MLB@ivgid.org
mailto:ekf@ivgid.org


law clients, and I do not believe that the proposed BBK agreement
adequately protects IVGID.  I no longer practice law and have never
practiced law in Nevada, and I make these comments as a citizen, but a
citizen knowledgeable in reviewing attorney retainer fee agreements.

1.   While the contract purports to have a term through December
31, 2026, it is terminable upon 30 days prior written notice from
either party, with or without cause under Section 3.11.  Please
consider if 30 days’ notice from BBK would be too short a time for
IVGID as a public agency to solicit new representation and
approve it.  This should be considered by the Board. 

2.   Under the proposed BBK contract, IVGID is not contracting to
have Sergio himself do the legal work.  Because of the low hourly
rate of $285.00 per hour for all attorneys at any level, this will
incentivize the law firm to put in less experienced attorneys to do
the actual work, as the only commitment is that  under paragraph
3.6:

“attorney Sergio Rudin will be personally involved in the
representation of the Client and the delivery of services
under this Agreement.”

Being “personally involved” does not mean that he will do the work
or give IVGID any control or approval of the attorneys who perform
services for IVGID.  Paragraph 3.3 provides only that Sergio is
responsible for “supervision of all services” and there should be a
negotiation of some language  describing under what
circumstances Sergio will personally perform the services.  Would
it be “as and when requested by IVGID in writing that Sergio
personally perform specific services”?  As in-house Chief Legal
Officer and General Counsel for two different companies, I found
that in the case of blended rate contracts, the senior counsel
rarely performed much of the services.  This needs to be
discussed and negotiated with Sergio, IVGID needs to understand
what it is getting, and then this needs to be appropriately drafted.

3.   I am aware of several concerns with the performance of
services by BBK in the past, which are not addressed in the
agreement, and there should be language in the agreement which
 remedies these issues.  The four main deficiencies which I recall
were: (i) repeated typographical errors remained in contracts that
were approved by the Board, which were approved earlier by BBK
without making the corrections; (ii) failure of BBK to meet
deadlines set by the Board and by IVGID employees for
completion of projects, resulting in delays in IVGID’s ability to

Page 106 of 202



complete its projects; (iii) failure of BBK to follow up on items
directed by the Board; and (iv) failing to clearly follow and comply
with policies set by the Governing Board and its directions, and
instead following directions of IVGID senior management. 
Instead, there are very general commitments.  For example.
Paragraph 3.4 only if services would be performed “expeditiously
in the time frames and as directed by the Client.  Instead, it should
provide that BBK shall meet the deadlines set by Client.” There
needs to be some commitment to accuracy in review of contracts
before submission to the Board.  There needs to be a commitment
to be knowledgeable with and to follow Board policies and votes,
and to advise the Board as to circumstances observed where
senior management and IVGID are not following Board policies.

4.   Under paragraph 3.6, “Client shall have no choice in the
selection, discharge, supervision or control of BB&K
employees…”    It is critical that Client be able to get the level of
expertise, service, and experience necessary to properly perform
services, and that Client be able to decline to have specific
individuals work on their matters.  Also, Client needs to be able to
specify when Sergio will himself handle the representation of
Client on specific matters.

5.   Under paragraph 3.7 Client should have the ability to limited
computerized research on lexis or Westlaw, courier and overnight
services, library research services and travel expenses. 
Computerized legal research can run into thousands of
unanticipated dollars.  It is common to set a cap on the amount of
expenses that can be incurred without pre-authorization and then
the attorney gets Client approval.  Also travel expenses should be
in compliance with IVGID’s travel expense reimbursement policy,
if there is one. 

6.   I suggest that you get a copy of BBK’s e & o insurance
schedule listed in paragraph 3.9  to see what BBK’s insurance
limits are.

7.  Consider whether you want to add a Section 3.2.9 which
reserves to IVGID the right to hire Special Counsel to handle any
of the items under Sections 3.2.1 - 3.2.9.

I am available to discuss any issues raised in this email with Board
member directly and can be reached at 805-2909-2779.
Respectfully submitted
Diane Becker Heirshberg,full time Incline Village resident

Page 107 of 202



Page 108 of 202



Page 109 of 202



Page 110 of 202



Page 111 of 202



Page 112 of 202



Page 113 of 202



Page 114 of 202



Page 115 of 202



Page 116 of 202



Page 117 of 202



Page 118 of 202



Page 119 of 202



Page 120 of 202



Page 121 of 202



Page 122 of 202



Page 123 of 202



Page 124 of 202



Page 125 of 202



Page 126 of 202



Page 127 of 202



Page 128 of 202



Page 129 of 202



Page 130 of 202



Page 131 of 202



Page 132 of 202



Page 133 of 202



Page 134 of 202



Page 135 of 202



Page 136 of 202



Page 137 of 202



Page 138 of 202



Page 139 of 202



Page 140 of 202



Page 141 of 202



Page 142 of 202



Page 143 of 202



Page 144 of 202



Page 145 of 202



  Item H.1.  
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 
 
THROUGH: Mike Bandelin 
 Interim General Manager 
 
FROM: Bobby Magee 
 Interim Director of Finance 
 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Augmenting Budget and Appropriating 
General Fund Reserves in the amount of $1,512,949 and Recreational 
Services Reserves, Beach Utility Reserves, Internal Services 
Reserves in the cumulative amount of $3,956,700. 

 
DATE: January 31, 2024 
 
 
I. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Board of Trustees: 
 

Adopt a Resolution Augmenting Budget and Appropriating General Fund 
Reserves in the amount of $1,512,949 and Recreational Services Reserves, 
Beach Utility Reserves, Internal Services Reserves in the cumulative 
amount of $3,956,700. 
 

II. DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
This action supports Long Range Principle #3, Finance; “The District will ensure 
fiscal responsibility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining effective 
financial polices for operating budgets, fund balances, capital improvement and 
debt management.” 
 

• Comply with State and Federal regulations. 
• Develop and maintain a long term plan to sustain financial resources.  

 
III. BACKGROUND 
 
Overview 
 
Each fiscal year Incline Village General Improvement District sets a budget based 
on estimated revenue and projected expenditures.  The fiscal year 2023-24 budget 
was approved by the Board on May 25, 2023. (Items G.7, G.8, and G.9)  In July 
and August of 2023, the Finance Department began conducting a self-evaluation 
of its operations and reported its findings back to the Board at multiple meetings.  
Several recommendations were made, and approved by the Board using existing 

Page 146 of 202



available appropriations.  With each item, the Board directed staff return at a later 
date to augment the Finance Department budget, and related appropriations, to 
ensure the rightsizing of the overall Districtwide budget and accomplish all of the 
Board’s goals within the 2023/24 expenditure plan.  A listing of the previously-
approved items is below: 
 
Item  Date(s) 

Approved 
One Time / Ongoing Cost 

Contract with Baker Tilly 8/9/23 and 
8/24/23 

One Time 

Internal Auditor 8/9/23 Ongoing 
Contract with Tyler 
Technologies 

8/24/23 One Time 

Forensic Due Diligence 
Financial Audit 

8/24/23 One Time 

Asst Director of Finance 8/24/23 
(Conceptual) and 
9/19/23 (Ratified) 

Ongoing 

Management Analyst 8/24/23 
(Conceptual) and 
9/19/23 (Ratified) 

Ongoing 

A/P Tech Funding N/A  Ongoing 
Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (ACFR) 
Preparation 

Identified by Staff One Time 

 
The Finance Department recently conducted a budgetary check based on previous 
Board direction to add the items above, and to review its ongoing needs in 
completing all accounting and financial reporting duties, both past and present.  
Below is a list of the enhanced staffing levels and other items previously approved 
by the Board, along with related contracts and other identified projects, with 
recommended funding levels.   
 
Description Estimated Cost for Remainder of FY 2023/24 
Assistant Director Of Finance                                                 $148,200.00  
A/P Tech / Accountant                                                 132,800.00  
Revenue Manager                                                 115,600.00  
Management Analyst                                                   63,800.00  
Central Purchasing Contracts Manager                                                   63,200.00  
Internal Auditor                                                   75,000.00  
Temporary Staffing                                                  151,200.00  
General Fund Salary Totals                                                 $749,800.00  
    
Baker Tilly Contract                                                 $265,000.00  
Forensic Due Diligence Audit                                                 350,000.00  
TYLER Enterprise (Munis) Additional 
Support                                                   16,000.00  
ACFR Prep                                                   10,000.00  

Page 147 of 202



Information Technology 2022/23 Carry 
Forward (Capital)                                                   89,387.00  
Information Technology 2022/23 Carry 
Forward (Expense)                                                   32,762.00  
General Fund Expense Totals                                                 $763,149.00  
General Fund Totals                                             $1,512,949.00  
    
Tennis Court Reconstruction Project                                              $3,000,000.00  
Point of Sale Update                                                 290,000.00  
Recreation Services Total                                             $3,290,000.00  
    
Cost Allocation to Other Funds:   
Utility                                                 $208,800.00  
Championship Golf                                                   81,200.00  
Mountain Golf                                                   25,800.00  
Facilities                                                   35,200.00  
Ski                                                 166,200.00  
Recreation Center                                                   43,400.00  
Tennis                                                     7,000.00  
Community Services Admin                                                     5,200.00  
Beach                                                   41,200.00  
Internal Services                                                   52,700.00  
Cost Allocation Total                                                  $666,700.00  
    
Grand Total                                             $5,469,649.00  
  

 
Notes: 
 

• In a separate item on today’s agenda, it is recommended to increase the 
value of the Baker Tilly contract for general accounting assistance by 
$100,000.  The previously-approved amount of $165,000, combined with the 
recommended contract amendment, brings the total value of this contract to 
$265,000.   

• The Forensic Due Diligence Audit, if approved by the Board as a separate 
item on today’s agenda, is for a not-to-exceed amount of $350,000.  It is 
recommended to budget and appropriate the full amount at this time so that 
the Board can consider the adoption of the item further down the agenda.   

• On October 25, 2023 the Board approved the 2022/23 carry-forward 
appropriations for the entire budget with the exception of the General Fund 
which required a Public Hearing.  (Item G.4)  With today’s Public Hearing it 
is recommended that the final carry-forward amounts be approved.   

• The Finance Department has been working with Community Services, 
Public Works, and the Tennis Committee on the Tennis Court 
Reconstruction Project.  The estimated full cost for the project is $3 million, 
which is recommended now in order to begin the design phase work.    

Page 148 of 202



• Working with the Information Technology Department, the Point of Sale 
Upgrade Project is recommended to be funded from the Recreation Services 
Fund.   

• In accordance with Board direction for the Districtwide cost allocation plan 
(CAP), items that will be appropriated to the General Fund are further 
recommended for cost recovery through the CAP as identified in the table 
above.  Appropriations are needed to fully fund the CAP.   

 
VI. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET 
 
The recommended actions will increase appropriations to the identified funds: 

• General Fund - $1,512,949 
• Recreational Services Fund - $3,654,000 
• Beach Fund - $41,200 
• Utility Fund - $208,800 
• Internal Services Funds (ISF) – $52,700 

 
The appropriated amounts will be funded through a reduction of $1,512,949 in 
General Fund Reserves, $3,904,000 in Recreation Services Reserves, and 
$52,700 from the ISF Reserves.   
 
V. ALTERNATIVES 
 
If the Board chooses to not appropriate any portion of the recommended funds, 
projects and staffing identified above will need to be re-evaluated with future 
recommendations brought back for Board consideration.   
 

Page 149 of 202



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1907 

A RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2023-2024 BUDGET OF INCLINE 
VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, the total resources of the General Fund, Incline Village General 
Improvement District were budgeted to be $10,076,699 on July 1, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $2,628,245.  
 
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows: 
Salaries and Benefits     $749,800 
Information Technology FY22-23 Carry Forward $122,149 
Services and Contracts     $641,000 
 
                                                                         Total: $1,512,949

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the General Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that Incline Village General 
Improvement District shall augment its 

2023-2024 budget by appropriating $1,512,949.00 for use in the General Fund, thereby 
increasing its appropriations from $10,076,699 to $11,589,648. A detailed schedule is 
attached to this Resolution and by reference is made part thereof. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk shall forward the necessary documents to 
the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada. 

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly 
passed and adopted at a Special held meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 
Incline Village General Improvement District on the 31st day of January, 2024, by 
the following vote: 

 

 

Page 150 of 202



 
 

 

AYES:  NAYS: 

 

 

 

 

ABSENT: 

  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  

  
Sergio Rudin 
Legal Counsel 
  
 

By:  ATTEST: 

Sara Schmitz                                                               District Clerk 
Chair, IVGID Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151 of 202



 
 

 

SCHEDULE 

 

Description Estimated Cost for Remainder of FY 2023/24 

Assistant Director Of Finance                                                 $148,200.00  

A/P Tech / Accountant                                                 132,800.00  

Revenue Manager                                                 115,600.00  

Management Analyst                                                   63,800.00  

Central Purchasing Contracts Manager                                                   63,200.00  

Internal Auditor                                                   75,000.00  

Temporary Staffing                                                  151,200.00  

General Fund Salary Totals                                                 $749,800.00  

    

Baker Tilly Contract                                                 $265,000.00  

Forensic Due Diligence Audit                                                 350,000.00  

TYLER Enterprise (Munis) Additional 
Support                                                   16,000.00  

ACFR Prep                                                   10,000.00  

Services and Contracts Total                                                     $641,000 

Information Technology 2022/23 Carry 
Forward (Capital)                                                   89,387.00  

Information Technology 2022/23 Carry 
Forward (Expense)                                                   32,762.00  

General Fund Carry Forward Totals                                                 $122,149.00  

General Fund Totals                                             $1,512,949.00  

 

Page 152 of 202



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

IVGID is proposing a budget augmentation including a General Fund appropriation increase. 
The proposed augmentation would increase the total IVGID budget by $5,469,649 which includes a General Fund increase of 
$1,512,949. 

The proposed budget increases are due to the following factors: 
- Funding of the Tennis Court rehabilitation project
- Funding the Finance Department for additional accounting resources 
- Carryforward of the Information Technology General Fund items from Fiscal Year 2022-23 
- Funding of the recommended Forensic Due Diligence Audit contract 
- Funding of the recommended Point of Sale system
- Funding of the Finance Department staffing additions The 
unanticipated revenue sources are:
- General Fund Reserves in the amount of $1,512,949
- Recreational Services Reserves, Beach Utility Reserves, Internal Services Reserves in the cumulative amount of

$3,956,700. 
- 

Copies of the proposed documents are available at 893 
Southwood Blvd., Incline Village, NV 89451 

The public hearing will be held: 
Wednesday, January 31, 2024 not earlier than 6:00 pm and as soon thereafter as practicable at 

893 Southwood Blvd, Incline Village, Nevada 
Please check the posted Board of Trustees Notice of Meeting for any changes. 

The 2023 Budget, which were presented to the Board of Trustees on May 25, 2023, is available on the website: 
https://www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/archived-agendas-and-packets-2023-january-june 

If you have comments about the proposed changes to the budget augmentation, please contact the IVGID Clerk. 

By mail: 893 Southwood Boulevard Incline 
Village, Nevada 89451 Attn: 
Department Of Finance 

Phone: (775) 832-1100 
Fax: (775) 832-1331 
E-mail: info@ivgid.org 

Page 153 of 202

https://www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/archived-agendas-and-packets-2023-january-june
mailto:info@ivgid.org


1/26/24, 11:13 AM Tahoe Daily Tribune

https://epaper.tahoedailytribune.com/html5/reader/production/print.aspx?edid=45579ada-a9f5-4505-a8e6-d47fea53cceb&type=clipping&clippingurls=… 1/2Page 154 of 202



1/26/24, 11:13 AM Tahoe Daily Tribune

https://epaper.tahoedailytribune.com/html5/reader/production/print.aspx?edid=45579ada-a9f5-4505-a8e6-d47fea53cceb&type=clipping&clippingurls=… 2/2Page 155 of 202



  Item H.2. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 
 
THROUGH: Mike Bandelin 
 Interim General Manager 
 
FROM: Bobby Magee 
 Interim Director of Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Provide Direction to Staff on the Updated 

Finance Active and Special Project List 
 

DATE: January 31, 2024 
 
 
I. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Board of Trustees: 
 

Discuss the Updated Finance Active and Special Project List and Provide 
Further Direction as Appropriate.   

 
II. DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
This action supports Long Range Principle #3, Finance; “The District will ensure 
fiscal responsibility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining effective 
financial policies for operating budgets, fund balances, capital improvement and 
debt management.” 
 

• Comply with State and Federal regulations. 
• Develop and maintain a long term plan to sustain financial resources.  

 
III. BACKGROUND 
 
Overview 
 
On August 24, 2023 the Board of Trustees held a Special Meeting to discuss 
issues within the Finance Department, provide direction on the Board’s priorities 
as it related to the Finance active and special projects, and actions necessary for 
creating a plan to address the issues.  (Item C.3)  A portion of the Board’s actions 
included adding full-time, permanent personnel to the Finance Department based 
on identified needs to meet the current and expected future workload; and, to 
evaluate any consulting resources required support the active and special projects 
list as prioritized by the Board.   
 

Page 156 of 202



Finance Active and Special Project List -2- 
January 31, 2024 
 
Since July 2023 the Department of Finance has been conducting a self-
assessment on daily, weekly, monthly, annual, and special projects that it believes 
need to be completed.  Since the August 24th Board meeting, the Finance 
department has been able to recruit and hire a Controller and an Assistant Director.  
The Finance leadership team has continued to assess the operations of the 
department, pivoting quickly to address a number of new issues that have been 
discovered recently.     
 
The items listed in the tables below represent the Interim Finance Director’s Active 
and Special Project list, and include a “Board Priority” column.  The Board Priority 
is a number identified by staff as the Board’s priorities of each item, based on 
comments and direction received by the Board during the August 24, 2023 Special 
Board meeting.  Priority one was deemed by the Board to be the items of greatest 
immediate concern.  Items marked as “NA” were not previously specifically 
weighed in by the Board, but staff subsequently determined that corrections and 
adjustments were immediately needed.   
 
Prioritized Active and Special Project List 
 
Completed Items 
 

Projects Status Notes Board 
Priority 

Bank Reconciliations 
July 2022 – June 2023 

Completed Team effort between Baker Tilly and IVGID Finance 
staff.  Project has moved on to July 2023 – 
December 2023.    

NA 

Enterprise (Munis) 
Innoprise Data 
Reconciliation Project 

Completed Independent teams completed a reconciliation of 
Innoprise end-of-life to the IVGID ACFR to the 
Enterprise beginning balance.  Numbers from both 
teams tied exactly the same; project is completed 
with confidence in the accuracy of the starting 
financial data in the Enterprise ERP system.   

1 

Enterprise Journal 
Entry Auto-Approval 
Project 

Completed Controls and setup issue in Enterprise.  The 
Accounting team worked with Tyler to find a solution; 
the ERP system is no longer auto-approving journal 
entries.   

1 

Treasurer's Report 
Redesign 

Completed Created a new Treasurer’s Report for Board and 
public viewing as of October 2023.   

2 

Tyler Invoicing Module Canceled  Still in development by Tyler; decision was made to 
not pursue this module.   

4 

Investments Review Completed  Main checking account began earning interest in 
October 2023.  Interest earned is shown on the 
Treasurer’s Reports.   

1 

Transparent Nevada 
(Nothing Since 2019) 

Completed    2019, 2020, and 2021 completed and sent to 
Transparent Nevada in the format they requested.   

1 

PO's - no T's and C's  Completed Terms and Conditions now shown on all new 
Purchase Orders.   

NA 

Page 157 of 202



Finance Active and Special Project List -3- 
January 31, 2024 
 

Last 3 Quarterly 
Economic Survey for 
the 2nd, 3rd and 4th 
quarters due to the 
State.  

Completed QES’s had not been submitted to the State in over a 
year; all QES’s researched, filled out and completed. 
11.28.23   

NA 

Payroll Transfer to 
Finance 

Completed Completed as part of the Internal Controls Project.  
Responsibility for the Districtwide Payroll function 
has been transferred from HR to Finance.  11.28.23 

NA 

Rec Fee - Dwelling Unit 
Issue 

Completed Completed by others prior to Finance's involvement.   4 

Daily Cash Sheet Completed Process for active cash management is now in 
place, with daily monitoring of transactions and 
reconciliations, and weekly reports to the Finance 
Director.  Daily not needed; weekly is fine.   

2 

Change Contact on 
SRF Loan 

Completed Finance Director now actively involved in the Loan / 
Bond process.   

NA 

OpenGov - Not clear 
and up to date 

Completed   Appears to be working correctly; data pulling from 
Tyler still in final reconciliation phase, which will then 
roll into OpenGov.  Data pulling correctly into 
OpenGov.  Project completed.   

2 

Tennis Center - CIP 
Reallocation 

Completed Currently under budget review.  Pending final 
recommendations to Board.  UPDATE: This item will 
go up for Board consideration in January 2024.  
1.18.24 

2 

Punch Card Contra 
Revenue Accounting 

Completed 
Transition 
in 
Progress 

The practice of contra-revenue accounting has been 
reviewed by the internal Finance team; agreement 
has been reached to end this practice wherever 
possible.  Accounting changes currently in progress.  
1.17.24 
 

4 

Events Deposits Completed July 2023 completed; expect to be caught up in Dec 
2023 with all months.  11.28.23  Completed 1.18.24 

1 

Error on posted April 
financial reports (golf 
pages and utility main 
summary appears to 
show $2M in transfer - 
only $1M) 

Completed On the staff radar; pending reconciliations and 
updates from previous months’ books.  UPDATE: 
This was a calculation error on an excel spreadsheet 
and did not hit the GL.  Corrected and uploaded to 
website.  1.19.24 

1 

 
 
Projects in Process:  
 

Projects Status Notes Board 
Priority 

Audit Late A request for extension pursuant to 
NRS 354 was filed to the Dept of 
Taxation.  Extension granted for 30 
days, making audit now due on 
January 31, 2024.  11.13.23  Second 
extension submitted to DOT; 
requesting extension to Feb 28.  
1.17.24  UPDATE: Approved by the 
DOT 1.17.24 
 

1 

Page 158 of 202



Finance Active and Special Project List -4- 
January 31, 2024 
 

Enterprise (Munis) 
Workflow Redesign 

Assigned to 
Assistant Director 

Process is active; module 
assessment and training with Tyler is 
nearly complete.  Finance is building 
“draft” workflow processes and 
improving internal controls within the 
system.  Rollout in the test 
environment to commence soon, 
gathering input from end users and 
department heads prior to moving to 
the live system.   

1 

Internal Controls Review Pending Sr. 
Accountant Hire 

Audit Committee Request.  Senior 
Accountant has not been hired as of 
12.4.23; however, Controller has 
already begun to identify items that 
should be looked at in the next few 
months.  Project active; however, 
with Sr. Accountant hire still pending 
work has been transferred to Baker 
Tilly.  1.10.24 

1 

Food and Beverage 
Deep Dive - Financials 
and Operations 

Delayed  Delayed - Pending new Golf Director 
/ F&B Manager 11.28.23 

1 

Budget Presentation 
Redesign 

Assigned to 
Director / Assistant 
Director 

Actively in process.   2 

Facility Fees shown as 
revenues on financial 
reports - needs to be 
excluded 

 
Not currently assigned; pending 
Senior Accountant hire and workload 
considerations.   

3 

Long Range Financial 
Plan 

Assigned to 
Director / Assistant 
Director 

Not currently in progress.   3 

CIP Study Session / 
Strategic Budget 
Planning Retreat 

Assigned to 
Director / Assistant 
Director 

Actively in progress.  Current plan is 
to bring this item to the Board in 
February 2024.   

3 

Budget - Cash Flow 
Statement to State 

Assigned to 
Controller / Director 

Updated - needs to be filed.  Director 
and Controller met with State 
Department of Taxation to discuss 
specifics; finalized forms pending 
other workload considerations.  
UPDATE: Still pending with budget 
augmentations in progress.  1.18.24 

3 

Cost Allocation Plan 
Review 

 
Not currently in progress.  Plan is to 
include a recommendation to the 
Board for funding in the next budget 
process for hiring a professional 
consultant to handle this Districtwide 
item.   

3 

Development of a 
“Popular Annual 
Financial Report” (PAFR) 

Assigned to 
Director / Controller 
/ Sr. Accountant 

More of a ‘nice to have’ item, but plan 
is to develop and release after 
completion of the annual audit.   

3 

Purchasing Program 
Review 

 
Not currently in progress.  Pending 
Purchasing and Contracts Manager 
hiring.  1.18.24 

4 

Punch Card System 
Review 

Assigned to 
Controller / Director 

Not currently in progress.   4 

Page 159 of 202



Finance Active and Special Project List -5- 
January 31, 2024 
 

P-cards - running to local 
businesses 

 
Pending start of overall Purchasing 
Program Review.  UPDATE: Pending 
Purchasing and Contracts Manager 
hiring.  1.18.24 

4 

Munis - PO Rollover 
Process 

Assigned to 
Controller   

Approximately 300 PO’s need to be 
researched in the legacy ERP 
system, reconciled with invoices in 
the system, then manually close out 
each PO, and finally re-opened in the 
Tyler system.  Currently in progress.  
1.15.24    

4 

Month End Accounting 
Checklists 

Consultant Day 
coordinating with 
Finance staff 
assistance.  
12.29.23 

Currently in progress.  While a 
checklist exists, it has not been 
followed in some time and staff is 
reviewing and creating new 
processes for adherence to the 
requirements.  1.17.24 

NA 

Food and Beverage 
Inventory Reconciliations 

Pending 
Assignment to Staff 

Reconciliations have not been 
completed in over a year. 

NA 

Accounts Receivable 
Reconciliations 

Pending 
Assignment to Staff 

Several reconciliations have not been 
completed in multiple months. 

NA 

Golf Revenue 
Reconciliations 

Pending 
Assignment to Staff 

Reconciliations have not been 
completed in multiple months. 

NA 

 
VI. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET 
 
There is no financial impact to discussing the Active and Special Project list.   
 
V. ALTERNATIVES 
 
None.   
 

Page 160 of 202



   Item H.3. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 
 
THROUGH: Mike Bandelin 
 Interim General Manager 
 
FROM: Bobby Magee 
 Interim Director of Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Approve the Scope of Work and Related 

Contract Pricing for Forensic Due Diligence Auditing Services and 
Direct the General Manager to Execute the Agreement with 
RubinBrown 

 
DATE: January 31, 2023 
 
 
I. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Board of Trustees: 
 

1. Discuss the Contract, Related Scope of Work, and Related Pricing for 
Forensic Auditing Services and Provide Further Direction to Staff as 
Appropriate; and, 
 

2. Direct the General Manager to execute the contract with RubinBrown.     
 

II. DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
This action supports Long Range Principle #2, Finance; “The District will ensure 
fiscal responsibility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining effective 
financial polices for operating budgets, fund balances, capital improvement and 
debt management.” 
 

• Comply with State and Federal regulations. 
• Develop and maintain a long term plan to sustain financial resources.  

 
III. BACKGROUND 
 
Overview 
 
On November 8, 2023 the Board of Trustees (Board) approved the award of a 
contract with RubinBrown, LLP for Forensic Due Diligence Auditing Services.  
(Item G.3) As part of the actions approved by the Board, staff was also directed to 
work with the IVGID Treasurer and the Chair of the Audit Committee to develop 

Page 161 of 202



Discussion of Contract with RubinBrown for Forensic Auditing Services 
        January 31, 2024 

-2- 
 
the final scope of work for the contract; and, the Board provided the Treasurer with 
authority to negotiate final terms and conditions, along with related contract pricing. 
 
As the scope and price were negotiated with RubinBrown, it became apparent that 
their firm may not have priced the contract appropriately based on IVGID’s needs.  
The final scoring for award of contract would not have changed if RubinBrown’s 
response to the Request for Proposal (RFP) had been closer to pricing proposals 
of the other firms; the RFP Review Committee had still scored RubinBrown as the 
most qualified firm by a wide margin, and the Committee did not see the pricing 
proposals until after the scoring had been completed.  The initial prices received 
from all firms in response to the RFP are as follows: 
 

RubinBrown $117,450 
Baker Tilly $368,625 

Moss Adams $382,934 
Grassi $750,000 

   
Since the information related to the final negotiated Scope of Work and related 
contract pricing has become public, a number of interested stakeholders has 
reached out to staff requesting that this item be considered by the full Board, 
despite the Board’s previous direction to staff.   
 
VI. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET 
 
The RubinBrown price proposal, based only on their understanding of IVGID’s 
needs, was a total fixed price of $110,000 (discounts applied) for three fiscal years’ 
review.  As identified in the staff report on November 8, 2023 this was intended to 
be a starting point for contract negotiations, with final pricing dependent upon 
successful completion of the finalized contract.  In a separate item on today’s 
Agenda, the Board is scheduled to consider appropriating funds for this contract, 
with a recommended not-to-exceed amount of $350,000.     
 
V. ALTERNATIVES 
 
If the Board does not direct staff to sign the contract with available appropriations, 
the Forensic Due Diligence Audit will not commence.   
 

Page 162 of 202



 1  

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED  
ON A TASK ORDER BASIS 

 
1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____ day of January, 2024, by and between 
the Incline Village General Improvement District, a Nevada general improvement district 
(“District”) and RubinBrown LLP, a limited liability partnership with its principal place of 
business at 10801 W Charleston Blvd, Suite 300, Las Vegas, NV, 89135 (“Consultant”).  The 
District and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as 
“Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 District.  District is a general improvement district organized under the laws of the 
State of Nevada, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose. 

2.2 Consultant.  Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the 
provision of certain professional services required by the District on the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing forensic 
accounting services to public clients, is licensed in the State of Nevada, and is familiar with the 
plans of District. 

2.3 Project.  District desires to engage Consultant to render professional services on a 
task order basis for various projects within the District.  The term “Project”, as used herein, shall 
mean the project(s) described in the Task Orders (defined below in Section 3.1.1). 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to 
the District, on a task order basis, all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental 
and customary work necessary to fully and adequately supply the forensic accounting services 
necessary for the Project (“Services”).  The types of services to be provided are more particularly 
described in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
No Services shall be performed unless authorized by a task order executed by the District 
and Consultant (“Task Order”) in such form and content as set forth on Exhibit B, attached 
hereto and by this reference incorporated into this Agreement.  All Services shall be subject 
to, and performed in accordance with this Agreement, the relevant Task Order, the exhibits 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal 
laws, rules and regulations. 

Page 163 of 202



 2  

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from January 8, 2024 to June 5, 
2024, unless earlier terminated or extended as provided herein.  Consultant shall use best efforts 
to complete the Scope set forth in Exhibit A within 75 days of Consultant’s receipt of a Notice to 
Proceed from the District and will keep IVGID apprised of its progress during the term of this 
Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines set forth in the Task 
Order.   

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of 
Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The Services shall be performed by Consultant or under 
its supervision.  Consultant will determine the means, methods and details of performing the 
Services subject to the requirements of this Agreement and such directions and amendments from 
District as herein provided.  The District retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and 
not as an employee.  No employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of District.  
Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant 
shall also not be employees of the District and shall at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive 
direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due such 
personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as required 
by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such additional 
personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, 
unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services expeditiously, 
within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the specific schedule that shall be set 
forth in the Task Order (“Schedule of Services”).  Consultant will be required to commence 
work within five days of receiving a fully executed Task Order.  Consultant represents that it 
has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance with 
such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance with each Schedule, the District 
shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon the District’s request, 
Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the relevant 
Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the District’s approval. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to the District 
that certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 
at least equal competence subject to the District’s written approval.  In the event that the District 
and Consultant cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, the District shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to 
perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the District, or who are determined by the District 
to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 
Consultant at the request of the District.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement 
are as follows: Thomas Zetlmeisl. 

Page 164 of 202



 3  

3.2.5 District’s Representative.  The District hereby designates Bobby Magee, or 
his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“District’s 
Representative”).  The District’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the District 
for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from any 
person other than the District’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Thomas 
Zetlmeisl, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to represent 
and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Consultant’s 
Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall 
be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 
satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with the 
District staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to the District’s staff, consultants 
and other staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform all 
Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 
generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 
Nevada.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary 
to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall have 
sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Consultant 
represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a Washoe 
County Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the 
term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, 
Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the District, 
any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure 
to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Consultant or its 
sub-consultants who is determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any 
employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the District, shall 
be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall not be re-employed to perform 
any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in 
compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 
performance of the Project or the Services, and shall give all notices required by law.  If required, 
Consultant shall assist District, as requested, in obtaining and maintaining all permits required of 
Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory agencies.  Consultant shall be liable for all 
violations of local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in connection with the Project and 
the Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules 
and regulations and without giving written notice to the District, Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant agrees to the indemnification provisions in 
Section 3.5.6 of this Agreement. 

Page 165 of 202



 4  

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence the 
Services under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the District that it has 
secured all insurance required under this Section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to 
the District that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this Section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance meeting the requirements set 
forth herein.  Consultant shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the 
same insurance for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following 
minimum levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain 
limits no less than: (1) General Liability: $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with general 
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) 
Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit (each accident) for bodily injury and 
property damage; and (3) Industrial Insurance: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the 
Labor Code of the State of Nevada.  Employer’s Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury or disease; and (4) Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions: Consultant shall 
procure and maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five 
(5) years following completion of the Services, professional liability/errors and omissions liability 
insurance appropriate to their profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim.  “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the Professional 
Liability/Errors and Omissions policy must specifically include the type of work performed under 
this Agreement. 

Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this Section are not intended as a 
limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of any coverage normally provided 
by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall be provided to the parties required to be named as 
additional insured pursuant to this Agreement.   

3.2.10.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 
approved by the District to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) Commercial General Liability.  The commercial general 
liability policy shall be endorsed to provide the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds; (2) the 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of 
coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute 
with it in any way; and (3) the insurance coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide waiver 

Page 166 of 202



 5  

of subrogation in favor of the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant to waive its right of recovery prior to a loss. 
Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against District, and shall require similar 
written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its subconsultants. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 
be endorsed to provide the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, 
operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed 
by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; (2) the insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Industrial (Workers’ Compensation and Employers 
Liability) Insurance. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District, 
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers for losses paid under the terms 
of the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 
or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been given to the District; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 
the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 
insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In 
addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles 
or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District.   

3.2.10.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers duly licensed or authorized to do business in the state of Nevada and with an “A.M. Best” 
rating of not less than A-VII.  The District in no way warrants that the above-required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Consultant from potential insurer insolvency. 

3.2.10.7 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the 
District with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by 
this Agreement on forms satisfactory to the District.  The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the District if requested.  All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by the District before work commences.  The District 

Page 167 of 202



 6  

reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 

3.2.10.8 Subconsultants.  Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractors or subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract until they have provided 
evidence satisfactory to the District that they have secured all insurance required under this 
Section.  Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors or 
subconsultants shall be endorsed to name the District as an additional insured using ISO form CG 
20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by Consultant, 
District may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subcontractors 
or subconsultants. 

3.2.10.9 Compliance with Coverage Requirements.  If at any time 
during the life of the Agreement, any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not 
comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, District has the right but not the 
duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by District will be promptly 
reimbursed by Consultant or District will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from 
Consultant payments. In the alternative, District may terminate this Agreement for cause. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 
or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at all times 
be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 
exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the work 
and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.   

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation including 
reimbursements to be provided under this Agreement shall not exceed Three Hundred Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($350,000) without written approval of District’s Board Chair.  The total 
compensation per Task Order shall be set forth in the Task Order, and shall not exceed such 
amount without written approval of the District’s Representative.  Extra Work may be 
authorized, as described below; and if authorized, said Extra Work will be compensated at the rates 
and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to District a monthly 
itemized invoice which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Consultant.  
The invoice shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 
commencement date of Services under this Agreement, and since the start of the subsequent billing 
periods, through the date of the invoice.  Invoices shall be sent to ap@ivgid.org, with attention to 
the Director of Finance.  Consultant shall include a Project Task Tracking Sheet with each invoice 
submitted.  District shall, within thirty (30) days of receiving such invoice and Project Task 
Tracking Sheet, review the invoice and pay all approved charges thereon.  

Page 168 of 202

mailto:ap@ivgid.org


 7  

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 
expenses unless authorized under this Agreement, including its Exhibits, in a Task Order, or 
otherwise in writing by the District. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, the District 
may request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 
which is determined by the District to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but 
which the Parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written 
authorization from the District’s Representative.    Where Extra Work is deemed merited by the 
District, an amendment to this Agreement shall be prepared by the District and executed by both 
Parties before performance of such Extra Work, or the District will not be required to pay for the 
changes in the scope of work.  Such amendment shall include the change in fee and/or time 
schedule associated with the Extra Work.  Amendments for Extra Work shall not render ineffective 
or invalidate unaffected portions of this Agreement 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

  3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain accurate and 
complete books, documents, accounting records and other records pertaining to the Services for 
six (6) years (or longer as required by applicable law) from the date of final payment under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall make such records available to the District for inspection, audit, 
examination, reproduction, and copying at Consultant’s offices at all reasonable times. However, 
if requested, Consultant shall furnish copies of said records at its expense to the District, within 
seven (7) business days of the request. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  The District may, by written notice to 
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 
giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 
at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant 
shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to the District, 
and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may terminate this 
Agreement or any Task Order immediately for cause or decline to perform certain tasks if 
information comes to Consultant’s attention indicating that performing such tasks could cause 
Consultant to be in violation of any applicable law, regulations or standards, or to be in a conflict 
of interest.  Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for unperformed Services, and shall not be 
entitled to damages or compensation for termination of this Agreement with or without cause by 
District except for the amounts authorized herein. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, the District may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and 
Data (defined below) and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with 
the performance of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such 
documents and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

Page 169 of 202



 8  

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 
whole or in part as provided herein, the District may procure, upon such terms and in such manner 
as it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 
shall be given to the respective Parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 
respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

District 
Incline Village General Improvement 
District 
893 Southwood Blvd. 
Incline Village, NV 89451 
Attn: Director of Finance 

Consultant 
RubinBrown LLP 
7676 Forsyth Blvd., Suite 2100 
St. Louis, MO 63105 
Attn: Thomas Zetlmeisl 

 
 Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, 

forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to 
the Party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date 
actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & 
Data.  All source code, reports, programs, manuals, disks, tapes, and any other material prepared 
by or worked upon by Consultant for the Services shall be the exclusive property of the District, 
and the District shall have the right to obtain from Consultant and to hold in District’s name 
copyrights, trademark registrations, patents, or whatever protection Consultant may appropriate to 
the subject matter.  Consultant shall provide District with all assistance reasonably required to 
perfect the rights in this subsection. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to Consultant’s 
record retention policy, at the conclusion of this Agreement or any Task Order, Consultant may 
retain copies of files created by Consultant (collectively “Work Papers”) and Consultant will 
destroy all pertinent Work Papers after a retention period of seven (7) years, after which time these 
items will no longer be available (“Record Retention Period”).  Consultant’s email retention policy 
is eighteen (18) months, after which time emails will no longer be available (“Email Retention 
Period”).  

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 
procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written information, 
and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  Such materials shall not, 
without the prior written consent of the District, be used by Consultant for any purposes other than 
the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed to any person or entity not 
connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing furnished to Consultant 
which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become known, to the related 
industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use the District’s name or insignia, 
photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the Project in any 
magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without 
the prior written consent of the District. At any time during or after termination or expiration of 

Page 170 of 202



 9  

this Agreement or any Task Order, should Consultant receive a subpoena or other legal order from 
a third party seeking production of the District’s records, documents, or Confidential Information, 
or testimony relating to Consultant’s Services, Consultant will, to the extent permitted by law, 
notify the District as soon as practicable. Upon such notification, should the District wish to take 
action to protect its records and/or its information from production in compliance with the 
subpoena, the District agrees to notify Consultant of the District’s intent to take action to protect 
its records and/or its information from production. The District agrees that Consultant has the right 
to produce any and all records Consultant deems appropriate in compliance with the subpoena and 
law. The District shall reimburse Consultant, upon receipt of an appropriate invoice, for all of 
Consultant’s internal and external costs and expenses in responding to any subpoena for the 
District’s records, and/or providing testimony pursuant to such subpoena, including Consultant’s 
reasonable and customary fees for such services, as well as reasonable attorneys’ fees.  For the 
avoidance of doubt, this provision survives any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either Party commences an action against the other 
Party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 
reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and 
harmless from any and all costs, expenses, liability, loss, witness fees, reasonable attorney fees, 
damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death (collectively, 
“Losses”) to the extent such Losses are adjudicated by a third-party trier of fact including any 
federal or state regulatory agency or body to, in any manner arise out of, pertain to, or relate to any 
negligence or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Services, 
the Project, this Agreement, or any Task Order.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, 
award or decree that may be rendered against District or its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant shall reimburse 
District and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all 
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the 
indemnity herein provided, including correction of errors and omissions.  Consultant's total 
maximum obligation to indemnify shall be limited to the amount of fees paid by the District to 
Consultant in the prior 12 months pursuant to this Agreement or any applicable Task Order up 
through the date the District provides proper notice and indemnity demand to Consultant 
(“Indemnity Cap”), except such Indemnity Cap shall not apply to bodily injury or death and 
damage or destruction to property that in any manner arise out of, pertain to, or relate to any 
negligence or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Services, 
the Project, this Agreement, or any Task Order. 

3.5.6.1 Design Professional.  To the extent required by NRS 338.155, 
Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold District, its officials, officers, employees, 

Page 171 of 202



 10  

volunteers, and agents free and harmless shall not include any liability, damage, loss, claim, action 
or proceeding caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct 
of the employees, officers or agents of the District.  Moreover, Consultant’s obligation to defend, 
indemnify, and hold District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and 
harmless from any liability, damage, loss, claim, action or proceeding caused by the negligence, 
errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of the Consultant or the employees or 
agents of the Consultant which are based upon or arising out of the professional services of the 
Consultant.  If the Consultant is adjudicated to be liable by a trier of fact, the trier of fact shall 
award reasonable attorney’s fees and costs to be paid to the District, as reimbursement for the 
attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the District in defending the action, by the Consultant in an 
amount which is proportionate to the liability of the Consultant.  This Section shall only apply to 
the extent required by NRS 338.155 and shall not otherwise limit Consultant’s obligation to 
defend, indemnify and hold the District harmless as required under Section 3.5.6. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 
Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 
Parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of Nevada.  Venue shall be in Washoe County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 
this Agreement. 

3.5.10 District’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  The District reserves right 
to employ other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure 
to the benefit of the successors in interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each Party. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 
prior written consent of the District.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Subcontracting.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the work 
required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of 
District.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 
stipulated in this Agreement. 

3.5.14 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any term 
referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work days.  
All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 
Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to the District include 
its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 

Page 172 of 202



 11  

Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this 
Agreement. 

3.5.15 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification, or amendment 
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.16 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 
contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

3.5.17 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.18 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.22 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.23 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original. 

3.5.24 Limitation of Liability.   

a) For the District. The District does not and will not waive and expressly 
reserves all available defenses and limitations contained in Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes.  Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. 

 
b) For Consultant. The liability of Consultant (including its partners, 

employees, agents and affiliated companies) to the District (and any purported third-party 
beneficiaries) for any claim or damages (including but not limited to incidental, special, 
exemplary, punitive, economic, or consequential, and attorney fees and costs), whether in contract, 
strict liability, tort (including but not limited to Consultant’s negligence or fault, except that this 
provision does not purport to limit liability for Consultant’s intentional/willful torts or for any 
other liabilities for which a limitation of liability is prohibited by Nevada law), or otherwise, 
arising out of, connected with, or resulting from Consultant’s Services or the Agreement generally, 
shall not exceed all fees related to the Task Order giving rise to such claim paid by the District to 
Consultant, even if Consultant has been advised of the possibility of such claims or damages. 

3.5.25 Non-Appropriations.  The District may terminate this Agreement, effective 
immediately upon receipt of written notice on any date specified if for any reason the District’s 
funding source is not appropriated or is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

Page 173 of 202



 12  

3.5.26 Compliance with Laws.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and 
in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 
the performance of the Project or the Services.  Consultant shall not discriminate against any 
person on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
gender expression, age, disability, national origin or any other status protected under any 
applicable law.  Consultant is not currently engaged in, and during the duration of the Agreement 
shall not engage in, a Boycott of Israel. The term “Boycott of Israel” has the meaning ascribed to 
that term in NRS 332.065. Consultant shall be responsible for all fines, penalties, and repayment 
of any State of Nevada or federal funds (including those that the District pays, becomes liable to 
pay, or becomes liable to repay) that may arise as a direct result of the Consultant’s non-
compliance with this subsection. 

3.5.27 Whistleblower Provisions. This Agreement is not intended to and will not 
preclude Consultant’s employees from exercising available rights under the District’s 
Whistleblower Policy and associated procedures for reporting suspected misconduct, as that term 
is defined in the Whistleblower Policy. All reports of suspected misconduct will be handled by the 
District in accordance with the Whistleblower Policy. 

[Signatures on Following Page]

Page 174 of 202



 13  

SIGNATURE PAGE 
TO 

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED  
ON A TASK ORDER BASIS 

 

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
Approved By: 
 
       
Mike Bandelin 
Interim General Manager 
 
       
Date 
 
 
 
 

RubinBrown LLP 

       
Signature 

Tom Zetlmeisl     
Name 
 
Partner      
Title 
 
       
Date 

 
Reviewed as to Form:  
 
       
Sergio Rudin 
District General Counsel 
 
       
Date 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 175 of 202



 

 Exhibit A  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (TASK ORDER BASIS) 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Covers three fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, 2022 and 2023 

1. Interview 20 individuals including the IVGID Trustees, IVGID General Manager, IVGID 
Department Heads, and two at-large Audit Committee Members. 
 

2. Search three years of emails, for the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023, for up to 
12 individuals as determined by RubinBrown looking for indications of inappropriate 
financial activity.   
 

3. Vendor Disbursements Analysis – Perform analysis of the vendor disbursements using 
the underlying accounting system data for three years to understand trends and identify 
irregularities and/or errors. Perform tests to verify the validity of the vendors to whom 
disbursements are made to assess whether or not any vendor disbursements are to 
“dummy” (e.g. fake) or related party vendors.  

 
4. Vendor Award (Procure to Pay) Process - RubinBrown will review the process for 

awarding contracts to vendors and specifically review the award of contracts over a 
certain dollar threshold ($500,000 as a starting point), up to 10 per fiscal year, for the 
period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023.  This will include: 

a. Determining who was in consideration for certain contracts.  
b. The cost associated with the various bidders. 
c. The rationale for awarding the contract to the chosen bidder. 
d. Approvals in line with established DOA. 
e. Show bid comparisons and % difference from awardee to lowest bid. 

NOTE: This will also include review of change orders and contract modifications. 
 

5. Credit Cards - RubinBrown will analyze credit card activity for three years for up to 8 
members of the IVGID team, as determined by RubinBrown in consultation with the 
Interim Director of Finance and the Chair of the Audit Committee.  As part of this, 
RubinBrown will: 

a. Analyze the data at a transaction level and, where possible, tie those transactions 
to supporting documentation (i.e. receipts). 

b. Review that charges are in line with any established policies, if applicable. 
c. Determine how charges are paid/reimbursed to ensure they were not paid twice 

(i.e. AP and expense report). 
d. Review for separation of duties for review/approval. 

 

Page 176 of 202



 

 Exhibit A  

6. Financial Reporting – Specifically review the accounting for the following areas: 
a. Capital accounting for land and equipment. 

i. Capex project approval process (initial and overruns). 
ii. Review capital projects for potential bid splitting. 

b. Review capitalization vs. expensing of repairs and maintenance costs against 
established policies. 

c. Cash  
i. Physical access to vault and schedule of deposits. 

ii. Policy on petty cash on hand. 
iii. Review bank reconciliations prepared for all bank accounts during three 

year period to determine nature of reconciling items and appropriate 
disposition.  Assess impact of bank accounts that remain unreconciled. 

d. Review client provided list of whistle blower activity related to financial reporting 
and follow up procedures to be agreed upon with the client. 
 

7. Financial Statement Analysis – Using the underlying data from accounting system 
exports, perform analysis of the detailed profit and loss statements and detailed balance 
sheets for three years to understand trends and identify irregularities and/or errors. We 
will also analyze the underlying transaction data from a GL export to investigate for any 
irregularities. 
 

8. Review the existing written cash handling procedures, and make recommendations for 
improving them including: 

a. Physical access and chain of custody at three locations with the largest cash 
transactions. 

b. Reconciliation of cash drawers to transaction logs. 
c. Review samples of cash handling for compliance with policy. 

 
9. Fraud Risk Assessment – RubinBrown will perform a fraud risk assessment using the 

template included in our proposal. Based on RubinBrown’s review of documentation, 
interviews and analysis, their firm will customize this risk assessment to IVGID’s needs. 
The completed assessment along with RubinBrown’s recommendations deriving 
therefrom will serve as one of the deliverables on this project. 
 

10. Investigation into up to 12 whistleblower complaints, as identified by the Chair of the 
Audit Committee.  

 
11. Investigation into up to 7 specific complaints, as identified by the Interim Director of 

Finance, based on information received from the forensic auditor, internal staff, the Chair 
of the Audit Committee, and/or members of the community. 

 

Page 177 of 202



 

 Exhibit A  

12. Reporting – There are two deliverables as part of this engagement.  The first is a report 
reflecting RubinBrown’s findings resulting from the review of materials and related 
analysis.  The second is RubinBrown’s fraud risk assessment and related 
recommendations derived from it. 

Page 178 of 202



 

 Exhibit B  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (TASK ORDER BASIS) 

EXHIBIT B 

TASK ORDER 

Task Order No. ______ 

Agreement: [INSERT NAME OF AGREEMENT] 

Consultant: RubinBrown LLP 

The Consultant is hereby authorized to perform the following work subject to the provisions 
of the Agreement identified above: 

The work set forth in the Scope of Services as detailed in Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

List any attachments:  

Dollar Amount of Task Order: Not to exceed $350,000 Completion Date:
 ____________, 20___ 

The undersigned Consultant hereby agrees that it will provide all equipment, furnish all materials, 
except as may be otherwise noted above, and perform all services for the work above specified in 
accordance with the Agreement identified above and will accept as full payment therefore the 
amount shown above. 

Incline Village GID   RubinBrown LLP 

Dated:        Dated:       

By:         By:        

Page 179 of 202



 

 Exhibit C  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (TASK ORDER BASIS) 

EXHIBIT C 

COMPENSATION 

RubinBrown is to be compensated on an hourly basis for the services described in the Agreement 
above. The hourly rates for the various levels of personnel are as set forth below.  RubinBrown 
will not exceed the amount of fees, including reimbursements,  set forth in the Agreement above 
without the approval of the District’s Board. 

Partner -  $400-$600/hr 

Manager -  $250-$400/hr 

Staff -   $175-$250/hr 

In addition to the fees set forth above, RubinBrown will be reimbursed the cost of reasonable out 
of pocket expenses including travel expenses as incurred. 

 

Page 180 of 202



    Item H.4. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 
 
THROUGH: Mike Bandelin 
 Interim General Manager 
 
FROM: Bobby Magee 
 Interim Director of Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment 

Increasing the Baker Tilly Contract by $100,000 for Additional 
Accounting Resources Required to Support Continued Work on Daily 
Operational Activities and Special Projects as Previously Prioritized 
by the Board 

 
DATE: January 31, 2024 
 
 
I. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Board of Trustees make a motion to: 
 

1. Direct Staff to Increase the Baker Tilly Contract by $100,000 for Additional 
Accounting Resources Required to Support Continued Work on Daily 
Operational Activities and Special Projects as Previously Prioritized by the 
Board, Contingent Upon Approval of the Budget Augmentation Request. 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Contract Amendment.   

 
II. DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
This action supports Long Range Principle #3, Finance; “The District will ensure 
fiscal responsibility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining effective 
financial polices for operating budgets, fund balances, capital improvement and 
debt management.” 
 

• Comply with State and Federal regulations. 
• Develop and maintain a long term plan to sustain financial resources.  

 
III. BACKGROUND 
 
Overview 
 
On August 9th (Item F.5) and August 24th (Item C.3) the Department of Finance 
presented recommendations related to the department’s vacancy and recruitment 
efforts, current status of annual audits, current status of various financial special 

Page 181 of 202



Approvals: Baker Tilly Contract Amendment  
        January 31, 2024 

-2- 
 
projects, and the day-to-day operational aspects of the organization.  As a result 
of these presentations, the Board directed staff to take a number of actions to 
address the workload to staffing imbalance.  One of those items was to enter into 
a contract with Baker Tilly for general accounting and finance assistance.  To date, 
the total value of the Baker Tilly contract is $165,000.  Their firm has assisted 
IVGID with bank reconciliations from July 2022 through December 2023; provided 
significant assistance with various items required by the independent Auditors; 
reconciled the capital assets ledger for the previous fiscal year; assisted with the 
development of the capital improvement plan which will be presented to the Board 
at a later date; and currently their firm is assisting with the Internal Controls Project.    
 
While many of the projects that were initially discussed at the August 24, 2024 
Board meeting have been completed, a significant backlog of daily operational 
work and special projects continues to need to be addressed.  Given the previous 
Board direction, and with vacancies still occurring in the Finance Department, staff 
has addressed the shortfall by utilizing multiple individuals as temporary part-time 
help.  The extra help is authorized by Resolution 1898 – Personnel Management, 
items B & C, which delegates authority to hire to the General Manager.  In addition, 
the contract with Baker Tilly for additional accounting assistance has been 
invaluable in expediting a significant amount of the daily operational work that was 
in arrears.  As of January 2024, Finance staff has begun to work on the monthly 
accounting processes dating back to July 2023.  With a vacancy still occurring at 
the Senior Accountant position, the recommended action includes adding an 
additional $100,000 to the Baker Tilly contract for continued accounting assistance 
to address both operational issues and special projects.  Some of the anticipated 
items that Baker Tilly will be working on with these additional funds include current 
and future bank reconciliations until the Sr. Accountant position has been filled; 
continued Audit support for the 2023/24 and 2024/25 audits; reconciliations of 
various revenue and accounts receivable accounts; and other general accounting 
items to be determined by staff.   
 
VI. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET 
 
If approved, the fiscal impact to the budget would include an additional $100,000 
for the Baker Tilly contract.  In a separate item on tonight’s agenda, this amount 
has been recommended as part of the budget augmentation request.  If the Board 
approves the budget augmentation request, staff will execute the contract 
amendment; if the Board does not approve the budget augmentation request the 
contract amendment would not be executed.   
 
V. ALTERNATIVES 
 
The recommended action is for the Board to add $100,000 to the Baker Tilly 
contract for continued additional accounting and general finance assistance.  If the 

Page 182 of 202



Approvals: Baker Tilly Contract Amendment  
        January 31, 2024 

-3- 
 
Board were to reject the Baker Tilly contract amendment the work will still be 
completed but at a much slower pace, putting a timely 2023/24 Audit in accordance 
with State law in jeopardy.   

Page 183 of 202



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Mr. Mike Bandelin, Acting General Manager 
 Incline Village General Improvement District 
 
From: Carol Jacobs, Managing Director 

Subject: Accounting Assistance - Amendment 2 

Date: January 25, 2024 

 

As Interim General Manager of the Incline Village General Improvement District, you signed an agreement 
with Baker Tilly to provide interim accounting assistance.  This was based on the proposal dated July 31, 
2023, for hourly assistance not to exceed $125,000. 

On August 24, 2023, Amendment 1 allowed for an additional $40,000 for immediate accounting assistance 
with a new not to exceed amount of $165,000.   

On January 25, 2024, it is the District’s desire to amend the agreement again to add an additional $100,000 
to the existing contract for a new total of $265,000.  We will continue to bill using the following hourly rates 
as stated in our original proposal dated July 31, 2023. 

If this meets with your approval, please sign below. 

Team Member Hourly Rate 

Carol Jacobs $295 

Chris Bigham $175 

Noemi Barter $225 

Andrew Gill $225 

 

Accepted by: 

 

____________________________________ 
Incline Village General Improvement District 
 

_______________________________ 
Date 

Baker Tilly US, LLP 
267 E. Campbell Ave., Ste 200 
Campbell, California  95008 
+1 (408) 385-3400 
bakertilly.com 

Page 184 of 202



Item H.5.

M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Sara Schmitz, Chair

SUBJECT: Review, discuss and identify the board’s goals for 
2024

DATE: January 1, 2024

In December of 2023, the board received governance training and discussed the 
provided, and attached, Guide to Decision Making. The first step is to clearly 
define the problem(s) to be solved followed by generating ideas on possible 
solutions to the identified problem(s). By using this approach, the board has tools 
and a framework to help define the problems to be addressed over the year. The 
clearly defined problems faced by the district, when prioritized, help the board 
define what it would like to accomplish, in other words the Board’s goals for the 
year. Beginning our new year with goals, the board may more clearly and 
precisely provide direction for staff and sets the board and staff up for a 
successful year. 

The ideas presented below, for the board’s discussion and consideration, have 
been reviewed with the Interim General Manager and the Interim Director of 
Finance. The feedback from them both was that they felt this approach would be 
helpful for staff and bring clarity to the issues the board wants to address this 
coming year. The “problems” and “potential solutions” are not an exhaustive list, 
but are for the board to discuss and modify, as they see fit. 

The board may choose to:
1. Prioritize based upon the impact each problem has on the broader 

community and the ease or difficulty to solve the problem. 
2. Identify how success would be measured. What would solving the problem 

look like? 

The desired outcome is for the board to agree upon “problems” observed 
along with potential solutions (steps 1 and 2 of the Decision Making 
process). The possible solutions will be the roadmap for our year of 
working together as a board. 

Page 185 of 202



2024 Board Goals

OVERALL GUIDE TO DECISION MAKING (from Governance Science Group, Inc.)

Decision Stages:

1. What’s the problem to be solved? How many are impacted by this 
problem and how easy is it to solve?

a. We have an Interim General Manager. Other senior management 
positions will be filled by the Interim General Manager/General 
Manager and the Senior Staff. The board’s focus is to fill the role of 
General Manager since the General Manager is the only employee 
of the board.

b. The District’s contract with legal counsel expired as of 12/31/2023.
c. Board packet materials are at times too vague and don’t lead to 

quick decision making.
d. Lack of community engagement and knowledge of board activities.
e. The District’s annual audits have consistently identified material and 

substantial weaknesses in our annual audit report. Most frequently 
have been issues related to internal controls.

f. Punchcards have been an ongoing challenge for accounting, 
confusing for our constituents and have an impact on our point-of-
sale systems (anticipated to be replaced beginning in 2025).

g. Tension and concerns between the board, the various golf 
committees, and the community.

h. There continues to be a lack of understanding of the board’s 
direction related to maintaining our infrastructure/venues and the 
pricing policy for services.

i. Policy and Procedure Number 136 (AKA as the free speech policy) 
created conflict and complaints from constituents. Emails received 
by the board included complaints of being an involuntary audience 
and having a negative impact on the enjoyment of recreation 
facilities, both violating the policy. 

j. Board priority projects have not been advanced as anticipated. The 
Incline Beach project and the Skate Park improvements are two 
examples from 2022.

k. Contracts and project management to contracts continue to be areas 
for improvement.

l. The District is without a current strategic plan.

2. Possible Solutions - Prioritize it – Why now?
a. Ideas for consideration each identified problem include:

i. We have an Interim General Manager. 
1. Develop an employment contract and hire a General 

Manager.

Page 186 of 202



2024 Board Goals

ii. The District’s contract with legal counsel expired as of 
12/31/2023.

1. It is anticipated the board will approve an extension 
of the contract, with a mutually agreed upon 
termination clause. That action, if taken, will allow 
the board to work with the new General Manager 
and determine if an RFP is to be solicited.

iii. Board packet materials are at times too vague and don’t lead 
to quick decision making.

1. Implement a new format for board memos that 
answer the decision-making questions to allow the 
board to make quicker decisions. This stems from 
the board’s training with FlashVote.

iv. Lack of community engagement and knowledge of board 
activities.

1. Conduct quarterly town hall meetings.
2. Produce a board synopsis in a timely manner.
3. Continue to strive for improved financial 

transparency. OpenGov, reporting, etc.

v. The District’s annual audits have consistently identified 
material and substantial weaknesses in our annual audit 
report. Most frequently have been issues related to internal 
controls.

1. The DOF is to complete the necessary staffing to 
address the long-standing issues related to 
accurate and timely financial reports, the 
development and adherence to Internal Controls 
and management to Standard Operating 
Procedures. 

2. The DOF to identify the items in the Moss Adams 
report (dated August 25, 2022) to be addressed in 
the 2024-25 fiscal year. 

vi. Punchcards have been an ongoing challenge for accounting, 
confusing for our constituents and have an impact on our 
point-of-sale systems (anticipated to be replaced beginning in 
2025).

1. The board and staff work together to find a better 
solution for the constituents and the District. This 
will require identifying all of the problems with 
punchcards and identifying proposed solutions and 
an implementation plan.

Page 187 of 202



2024 Board Goals

vii. Tension and concerns between the board, the various golf 
committees, and the community.

1. The board and the golf clubs develop and execute 
MOU’s for transparency and clear understanding.

viii. There continues to be a lack of understanding of the board’s 
direction related to maintaining our infrastructure/venues and 
the pricing policy for services.

1. Affirm the board desires the water infrastructure, 
sewer infrastructure, Community Services venues, 
our beaches and our parks are being adequately 
maintained. Maintenance includes both expenses as 
well as periodic capital improvement projects to 
extend the life of District assets.

2. During the budgeting process, for staff to present to 
the Board the current state of District-wide 
maintenance, deferred maintenance, and ongoing 
maintenance needs.

3. During the budgeting process, for staff to clarify in 
the pricing policy and pricing pyramid how rates for 
programs, services, charges for services are 
determined. 

4. Set rates for water and sewer that ensure fund 
balance is on a trajectory to comply with Board 
Policy.

ix. Policy and Procedure Number 136 (AKA as the free speech 
policy) created conflict and complaints from constituents. 
Emails received by the board included complaints of being an 
involuntary audience and having a negative impact on the 
enjoyment of recreation facilities, both violating the policy. 

1. Update Policy and Procedure Number 136 to 
specifically identify areas at each venue for free 
speech.

x. Board priority projects have not been advanced as anticipated. 
The Incline Beach project and the Skate Park improvements 
are two examples from 2022.

1. The District Project Manager provides quarterly 
updates on the status of all projects to ensure the 
board is informed of the progress of prioritized, 
budgeted projects.

2. Select design with cost estimates for the Incline 
Beach house that include improved ingress and 

Page 188 of 202



2024 Board Goals

egress for cars and pedestrians. Construction to be 
completed in 2025.

3. Complete the Skate Park improvements in 
compliance with the $250,000 ARPA Grant from 
Washoe County.

4. Complete a comprehensive 5-year Capital 
Improvement plan with a planned deliverable 
schedule and high-level cost estimates for each 
project to be completed in the 5 years. Ideas for 
inclusion on the plan include, but are not limited to 
the following:

a. The effluent pipeline project is on schedule.
b. Complete the installation of the effluent storage 

tank.
c. Priorities identified in the FlashVote survey 

include improvements at Snowflake Lodge and 
expansion of the Recreation Center. These two 
were significantly the highest of importance to our 
community.

d. Plan for implementation of a new Point-of-Sale 
system (this is a staff priority).

e. Others?
f.

xi. Contracts and project management to contracts continue to be 
areas for improvement.

1. The Interim General Manager/General Manager and 
senior staff to set expectations and accountability.

2. The Interim General Manager/General Manager set 
expectations and accountability to ensure all 
contracts and MOU’s are up to date and 
incompliance for periodic board review (on the long 
range calendar to comply with the contract/MOU).

xii. The District is without a current strategic plan.
1. Based upon the Moss Adams report (dated August 

25, 2022), for the board to determine how best to 
move this effort forward. It may include hiring a 
consultant to facilitate the process and draft a plan 
for possible board approval.

3. Evaluate and Compare - What are the possible solutions? Generate 
ideas and evaluate solutions. What are the benefits of each possible 
solution? What are the trade-offs of the potential solutions? How do 
people value the trade-offs?

Page 189 of 202



2024 Board Goals

a. What are the board’s 2024 priorities? What in the list above are 
selected and/or what others are to be added?

The following steps of the decision-making process, per our board training, 
will be addressed as we move initiatives forward. This agenda item is to 
discuss and agree upon 2024 goals.

4. Choose the BEST – Which solution is best for the public? Agree upon a 
common goal. What is the expected outcome? When will it be achieved? 
What resources are needed? Resources such as time and money are 
limited. What are the trade-offs of the solution’s resources? Do other 
activities need to have resources reduced to provide this solution?   

5. Evaluate the Results – Did the solution solve the problems identified? 
What were the surprises? Do changes need to be made? What are the 
impacts to resources to resolve? File an after adoption (project closure) 
report. Efficient - Did we do it right? Equitable - Did we do right by 
everyone in our District? Effective – Did we do the right thing? 

Page 190 of 202



Page 191 of 202



Page 192 of 202



Item H.6.

M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Trustee Matthew Dent

SUBJECT: Review, discuss and possibly approve the agreement for FlashVote 
Services in the not to exceed amount of $7,900.00 (Requesting Trustee: Trustee 
Matthew Dent)

DATE: January 25, 2024

I. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Board of Trustees move to approve the FlashVote 
Services agreement in the not to exceed amount of $7,900.

II. BACKGROUND

FlashVote Services have been beneficial to the Board of Trustees during this 
calendar year. They have conducted multiple board training sessions and 
circulated multiple surveys to inform the board of the community’s interests.

III. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET

There is a $7,900 cost for this service; from General Fund or Trustee line item.

IV. ALTERNATIVES

Do nothing or modify the scope of the FlashVote contract.

Page 193 of 202



               

1 

 

  

PROPOSAL TO IVGID - NV 

FlashVote is the scientific way to survey and engage communities. Get statistically valid 

public input in 48 hours. Solve important problems and serve your whole community better 

all year, with data-driven decisions. Enclosed please find our proposal to work with you. 

“Our City Council is addicted to FlashVote” 

– City Staff in Oklahoma 

 
FlashVote is a unique and essential data tool. Nothing else offers you these 5 key things 

Professionally Drafted – Custom questions for the exact data you need 

Statistically valid – True decision-quality community input 

Fast Results – Just 48 hours from survey launch to reporting 

Fully Inclusive – Participation by email, text, and phone call plus multilingual 

Highly Affordable – Easily pays for itself with your first survey 

 

SHORT, AUTOMATED, SCIENTIFIC COMMUNITY 

SURVEYS 

FlashVote has modernized scientific community surveys to make them short, fun, and inclusive 

for residents – and super useful and affordable for governments. Even your busiest residents 

have one minute a month to help you by taking FlashVote surveys. 

DO MORE WITH LESS AND PREVENT MISTAKES 

We help you deliver more value with less money. We’ve helped customers increase revenues 

by building public trust. Most importantly, we help our customers cut through the noise and see 

when traditional unscientific public input is steering them towards big mistakes. 

 “Fast, simple, reliable surveys we can trust”  

Page 194 of 202

https://www.flashvote.com/government


SERVE THE MANY, NOT JUST THE NOISY 

Just imagine. No more guessing or hoping. No more issues hijacked in public meetings. No 

more governing based on social media posts. No more distorted data from ‘free’ online surveys 

or online engagement. Now you can hear the true voice of your community, especially when 

you need to overcome the influence of the noisy and unrepresentative few. 

SOME COMMON PROBLEMS WE HELP SOLVE 

 ARPA  

 Housing 

 Service Satisfaction 

 Finances 

 Economic Development 

 Transportation  

 Land Use 

 Plan Updates 

 Other Important/Contentious Issues: https://www.flashvote.com/mini-case-studies  

 

WE EVEN DO ALL THE WORK 

You know what you want to know. We handle everything else. From drafting to launching to 

reporting, we’re a service, not just software. There has never been an easier or better way to 

get the right data, right when you need it.  

TRUSTED BY THE BEST LOCAL GOVERNMENTS  

We work with the best communicators, managers and elected officials at leading, award 

winning local governments across the country, including: 

 Town of Oro Valley, Arizona  

 City of Roseville, California 

Page 195 of 202

https://www.flashvote.com/mini-case-studies


 Placer County, California 

 Town of Sudbury, Massachusetts 

 City of Plymouth, Minnesota 

 City of Ferguson, Missouri 

 Town of Chapel Hill, North Carolina 

 City of Arlington, Texas 

 City of Syracuse City, Utah 

 And many more, in 25+ states so far! 

 

In 2020 FlashVote was named one of the Top 10 “best companies working with local 

governments” by ELGL: https://elgl.org/9-flashvote/  

 

The more you know about data, the more you’ll appreciate FlashVote: 

https://www.flashvote.com/government#data-quality  

 

“Really worth it, so simple too.” 

 

PROPOSAL DETAILS 

Our proposal includes the following items: 

FlashVote Services Order Form 

Statement of Work 

Terms & Conditions 

 

Please don’t hesitate to contact us with questions.  References and sole-source justification 

letters are available upon request. We look forward to working with you!  

 

Sincerely, 

Kevin Lyons  

CEO & Co-Founder 

Page 196 of 202

https://elgl.org/9-flashvote/
https://www.flashvote.com/government#data-quality


                    FLASHVOTE SERVICES ORDER FORM 

Customer: Incline Village General Improvement District Contact: Trustee Matthew Dent 

Address:  893 Southwood Blvd 

Incline Village, NV 89451 

Phone:  (775) 832-1100 

E-Mail: dent_trustee@ivgid.org  

 

Services: Governance Sciences Group, Inc (“the Company”) will provide the Standard Tier of annual FlashVote 

services (the “Service(s)”). This is a program of up to 6 Custom FlashVote Surveys per year. 

 

Launch services, additional Custom FlashVote Surveys and other Premium features are available as options for 

additional and separate fees. 

    

Services Fees:  $7,900.00 (plus any other options), payable 

in advance annually, subject to the terms of Section 4 

herein. 

Initial Service Term:  One Year (January 31, 2024 

to January 30, 2025) OR Two Years (January 31, 

2024 to January 30, 2026) 

Implementation Services:  Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Customer the services 

described in the Statement of Work (“SOW”) attached as Exhibit A hereto (“Implementation Services”), and 

Customer shall pay Company the Implementation Fee in accordance with the terms herein. 

Implementation Fee (one-time):  $3,000 (WAIVED WITH RENEWAL) 

 

 

 

SAAS SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This SaaS Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the 31
st
 day of January 2024 (the “Effective 

Date”) between Governance Sciences Group, Inc. with a place of business in Incline Village, Nevada (“Company”), 

and the Customer listed above (“Customer”).  This Agreement includes and incorporates the above Order Form, as 

well as the attached Terms and Conditions and contains, among other things, warranty disclaimers, liability 

limitations and use limitations.  There shall be no force or effect to any different terms of any related purchase order 

or similar form unless signed by both parties hereto.   

 

Governance Sciences Group, Inc.:    Customer: 

 

By: _/s/Kevin Lyons/s/______   By/Date:       

Name: Kevin Lyons    Name: Mathew Dent            

Title: CEO     Title:  Trustee     

Page 197 of 202

mailto:dent_trustee@ivgid.org


               

5 
   

EXHIBIT A: STATEMENT OF WORK 

FLASHVOTE SERVICE PRICE PRODUCT DESCRIPTION 

CUSTOMER SETUP  INCLUDED  

User Provisioning & Basic Customer Setup  
Review setup and invitation processes and customer provisioning 
in FlashVote system with geographical areas. Custom web link 
and co-branded signup page.  

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES  
 ($3,000 
WAIVED) 

Build Scientific Panel 
Review overall invitation and promotion strategy given existing 
communication channels. Work with customer to develop the 
most cost-effective outreach strategy. Provide recommended 
messaging samples and examples of online and offline invitation 
materials. Review drafts and recommend edits to cobranded 
customer promotion materials (Examples – emails, mailer inserts, 
social media channels). Create customized promotion video. Send 
invitations and reminders to customer email lists if desired. 
Review initial and ongoing panel results and analyze possible 
invitation retargeting. 

FLASHVOTE SURVEYS 
$7,900 per 
year 
 

Create and Launch Surveys 
Review data and decision support needs of customer. Expert 
survey design and quality control of all questions. Create up to 6 
custom community surveys for unique customer data needs each 
year. Emails, text messages and phone calls to collect data in 48 
hours.  

FLASHVOTE REPORTING INCLUDED 

Calculate and Report Results 
Results calculation and integrity checking. Results summary 
sharing by email. Interactive results dashboard with participation 
data and selectable demographic filters. Custom geographic 
overlays for filtering results by location.  

FLASHVOTE SUPPORT INCLUDED All technical and user support issues handled by FlashVote.  

EQUITABLE PANEL BALANCING 
(EPB) 

INCLUDED 

Initial demographic analysis of community. Analysis of panel 
demographics as invitations are accepted. Initial and annual 
demographic comparisons and supplemental invitations using 
local SMS numbers to increase numbers and improve balance. 

MULTILINGUAL – SPANISH ETC 
(OPTIONAL) 

OPTIONAL 
$3,000/yr 
each 

Professionally translated end-to-end Spanish (and/or Other 
Languages) experience for signup, emails, surveys and results. 

 

GRAND TOTAL $7,900/yr + Any Options 

 

 

Page 198 of 202



 

EXHIBIT B: SUPPORT TERMS 

Company will provide Technical Support to Customer and Customer’s users via both telephone and electronic mail on weekdays 

during the hours of 7:00 am through 5:00 pm Pacific time, with the exclusion of Federal Holidays (“Support Hours”).  

Customer may initiate a helpdesk ticket during Support Hours by calling 775-235-2240 or any time by emailing 

support@flashvote.com. Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond to all Helpdesk tickets within one (1) 

business day. 

Page 199 of 202

mailto:support@flashvote.com


 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SAAS SERVICES AND SUPPORT 

1.1 Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Company will 

use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Customer the 

Services.  

1.2 Subject to the terms hereof, Company will provide 

Customer with reasonable technical support services in 

accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit B.  

2. RESTRICTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.1 Customer will not, directly or indirectly: reverse 

engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise attempt to 

discover the source code, object code or underlying structure, 

ideas, know-how or algorithms relevant to the Services or any 

software, documentation or data related to the Services 

(“Software”); modify, translate, or create derivative works based 

on the Services or any Software (except to the extent expressly 

permitted by Company or authorized within the Services); use 

the Services or any Software for timesharing or service bureau 

purposes or otherwise for the benefit of a third; or remove any 

proprietary notices or labels 

2.2 Further, Customer may not remove or export from the 

United States or allow the export or re-export of the Services, 

Software or anything related thereto, or any direct product 

thereof in violation of any restrictions, laws or regulations of the 

United States Department of Commerce, the United States 

Department of Treasury Office of Foreign Assets Control, or any 

other United States or foreign agency or authority.  As defined in 

FAR section 2.101, the Software and documentation are 

“commercial items” and according to DFAR section 

252.227-7014(a)(1) and (5) are deemed to be “commercial 

computer software” and “commercial computer software 

documentation.”  Consistent with DFAR section 227.7202 and 

FAR section 12.212, any use modification, reproduction, release, 

performance, display, or disclosure of such commercial software 

or commercial software documentation by the U.S. Government 

will be governed solely by the terms of this Agreement and will 

be prohibited except to the extent expressly permitted by the 

terms of this Agreement.  

2.3 Customer represents, covenants, and warrants that 

Customer will use the Services only in compliance with 

Company’s standard published policies then in effect (the 

“Policy”) and all applicable laws and regulations. Although 

Company has no obligation to monitor Customer’s use of the 

Services, Company may do so and may prohibit any use of the 

Services it believes may be (or alleged to be) in violation of the 

foregoing. 

2.4 Customer shall be responsible for obtaining and 

maintaining any equipment and ancillary services needed to 

connect to, access or otherwise use the Services, including, 

without limitation, phones, modems, hardware, servers, software, 

operating systems, networking, web servers and the like 

(collectively, “Equipment”).  Customer shall also be responsible 

for maintaining the security of the Equipment, Customer account, 

passwords (including but not limited to administrative and user 

passwords) and files, and for all uses of Customer account or the 

Equipment with or without Customer’s knowledge or consent. 

3. CONFIDENTIALITY; PROPRIETARY RIGHTS 

3.1 Each party (the “Receiving Party”) understands that the 

other party (the “Disclosing Party”) has disclosed or may 

disclose business, technical or financial information relating to 

the Disclosing Party’s business (hereinafter referred to as 

“Proprietary Information” of the Disclosing Party).  Proprietary 

Information of Company includes non-public information 

regarding features, functionality and performance of the Service.  

Proprietary Information of Customer includes non-public data 

provided by Customer to Company to enable the provision of the 

Services (“Customer Data”) such as non-public citizen email 

addresses or other non-public citizen data. The Receiving Party 

agrees: (i) to take reasonable precautions to protect such 

Proprietary Information, and (ii) not to use (except in 

performance of the Services or as otherwise permitted herein) or 

divulge to any third person any such Proprietary Information.  

The Disclosing Party agrees that the foregoing shall not apply 

with respect to any information that the Receiving Party can 

document (a) is or becomes generally available to the public, or 

(b) was in its possession or known by it prior to receipt from the 

Disclosing Party, or (c) was rightfully disclosed to it without 

restriction by a third party, or (d) was independently developed 

without use of any Proprietary Information of the Disclosing 

Party or (e) is required to be disclosed by law.   

3.2 Customer shall own all right, title and interest in and to 

the Customer Data. Company shall own and retain all right, title 

and interest in and to (a) the Services and Software, all 

improvements, enhancements or modifications thereto, (b) any 

software, applications, inventions or other technology developed 

in connection with Implementation Services or support, and (c) 

all intellectual property rights related to any of the foregoing. 

3.3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Company 

shall have the right to collect and analyze data and other 

information relating to the provision, use and performance of 

various aspects of the Services and related systems and 

technologies (including, without limitation, information 

concerning Customer Data and data derived therefrom), and  

Company will be free (during and after the term hereof) to (i) use 

such information and data to improve and enhance the Services 

and for other development, diagnostic and corrective purposes in 

connection with the Services and other Company offerings, and 

(ii) disclose such data solely in aggregate or other de-identified 

form in connection with its business. No rights or licenses are 

granted except as expressly set forth herein.    

 

 

4. PAYMENT OF FEES 

Page 200 of 202



 

4.1 Customer will pay Company the then applicable fees 

described in the Order Form for the Services and Implementation 

Services in accordance with the terms therein (the “Fees”).  If 

Customer’s use of the Services requires the payment of 

additional fees (per the terms of this Agreement), Customer shall 

be billed for such usage and Customer agrees to pay the 

additional fees in the manner provided herein.  Company 

reserves the right to change the Fees or applicable charges and to 

institute new charges and Fees at the end of the Initial Service 

Term or then-current renewal term, upon thirty (30) days prior 

notice to Customer (which may be sent by email). If Customer 

believes that Company has billed Customer incorrectly, 

Customer must contact Company no later than 60 days after the 

closing date on the first billing statement in which the error or 

problem appeared, in order to receive an adjustment or credit.  

Inquiries should be directed to Company’s customer support 

department. 

4.2 Company may choose to bill through an invoice, in 

which case, full payment for invoices issued in any given month 

must be received by Company thirty (30) days after the mailing 

date of the invoice.  Unpaid amounts are subject to a finance 

charge of 1.5% per month on any outstanding balance, or the 

maximum permitted by law, whichever is lower, plus all 

expenses of collection and may result in immediate termination 

of Service. Customer shall be responsible for all taxes associated 

with Services other than U.S. taxes based on Company’s net 

income.   

5. TERM AND TERMINATION 

5.1 Subject to earlier termination as provided below, this 

Agreement is for the Initial Service Term as specified in the 

Order Form, and shall be automatically renewed for additional 

periods of the Initial Service Term (collectively, the “Term”), 

unless either party requests termination at least thirty (30) days 

prior to the end of the then-current term. 

5.2 In addition to any other remedies it may have, either 

party may also terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ 

notice (or without notice in the case of nonpayment), if the other 

party materially breaches any of the terms or conditions of this 

Agreement.  Customer will pay in full for the Services up to and 

including the last day on which the Services are provided. All 

sections of this Agreement which by their nature should survive 

termination will survive termination, including, without 

limitation, accrued rights to payment, confidentiality obligations, 

warranty disclaimers, and limitations of liability.  

6. WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER 

Company shall use reasonable efforts consistent with 

prevailing industry standards to maintain the Services in a 

manner which minimizes errors and interruptions in the Services 

and shall perform the Implementation Services in a professional 

and workmanlike manner.  Services may be temporarily 

unavailable for scheduled maintenance or for unscheduled 

emergency maintenance, either by Company or by third-party 

providers, or because of other causes beyond Company’s 

reasonable control, but Company shall use reasonable efforts to 

provide advance notice in writing or by e-mail of any scheduled 

service disruption.  HOWEVER, COMPANY DOES NOT 

WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES WILL BE 

UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE; NOR DOES IT MAKE 

ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS THAT MAY BE 

OBTAINED FROM USE OF THE SERVICES.  EXCEPT AS 

EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE 

SERVICES AND IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES ARE 

PROVIDED “AS IS” AND COMPANY DISCLAIMS ALL 

WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 

MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 

PURPOSE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. 

 

7. INDEMNITY  

Company shall hold Customer harmless from liability to 

third parties resulting from infringement by the Service of any 

United States patent or any copyright or misappropriation of any 

trade secret, provided Company is promptly notified of any and 

all threats, claims and proceedings related thereto and given 

reasonable assistance and the opportunity to assume sole control 

over defense and settlement; Company will not be responsible 

for any settlement it does not approve in writing.  The foregoing 

obligations do not apply with respect to portions or components 

of the Service (i) not supplied by Company, (ii) made in whole or 

in part in accordance with Customer specifications, (iii) that are 

modified after delivery by Company, (iv) combined with other 

products, processes or materials where the alleged infringement 

relates to such combination, (v) where Customer continues 

allegedly infringing activity after being notified thereof or after 

being informed of modifications that would have avoided the 

alleged infringement, or (vi) where Customer’s use of the Service 

is not strictly in accordance with this Agreement.  If, due to a 

claim of infringement, the Services are held by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be or are believed by Company to be 

infringing, Company may, at its option and expense (a) replace 

or modify the Service to be non-infringing provided that such 

modification or replacement contains substantially similar 

features and functionality, (b) obtain for Customer a license to 

continue using the Service, or (c) if neither of the foregoing is 

commercially practicable, terminate this Agreement and 

Customer’s rights hereunder and provide Customer a refund of 

any prepaid, unused fees for the Service. 

   

8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE 

CONTRARY, EXCEPT FOR BODILY INJURY OF A 

PERSON, COMPANY AND ITS SUPPLIERS (INCLUDING 

BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL EQUIPMENT AND 

TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIERS), OFFICERS, AFFILIATES, 

REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES 

SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WITH 

RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS 

AGREEMENT OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATED 

THERETO UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, 

STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER THEORY: (A) FOR ERROR 

Page 201 of 202



 

OR INTERRUPTION OF USE OR FOR LOSS OR 

INACCURACY OR CORRUPTION OF DATA OR COST OF 

PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES OR 

TECHNOLOGY OR LOSS OF BUSINESS; (B) FOR ANY 

INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR 

CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; (C) FOR ANY MATTER 

BEYOND COMPANY’S REASONABLE CONTROL; OR (D) 

FOR ANY AMOUNTS THAT, TOGETHER WITH 

AMOUNTS ASSOCIATED WITH ALL OTHER CLAIMS, 

EXCEED THE FEES PAID BY CUSTOMER TO COMPANY 

FOR THE SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 

12 MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ACT THAT GAVE RISE TO 

THE LIABILITY, IN EACH CASE, WHETHER OR NOT 

COMPANY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF 

SUCH DAMAGES. 

9. MISCELLANEOUS 

If any provision of this Agreement is found to be 

unenforceable or invalid, that provision will be limited or 

eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this 

Agreement will otherwise remain in full force and effect and 

enforceable.  This Agreement is not assignable, transferable or 

sublicensable by Customer except with Company’s prior written 

consent.  Company may transfer and assign any of its rights and 

obligations under this Agreement without consent.  This 

Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the mutual 

understanding of the parties and supersedes and cancels all 

previous written and oral agreements, communications and other 

understandings relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, 

and all waivers and modifications must be in a writing signed by 

both parties, except as otherwise provided herein.  No agency, 

partnership, joint venture, or employment is created as a result of 

this Agreement and Customer does not have any authority of any 

kind to bind Company in any respect whatsoever.  In any action 

or proceeding to enforce rights under this Agreement, the 

prevailing party will be entitled to recover costs and attorneys’ 

fees.  All notices under this Agreement will be in writing and 

will be deemed to have been duly given when received, if 

personally delivered; when receipt is electronically confirmed, if 

transmitted by facsimile or e-mail; the day after it is sent, if sent 

for next day delivery by recognized overnight delivery service; 

and upon receipt, if sent by certified or registered mail, return 

receipt requested.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws 

of the State of Nevada without regard to its conflict of laws 

provision. 

 

Page 202 of 202


	A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE*
	B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES*
	C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS
	D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	E. GENERAL MANAGER SELECTION -  Interview of Candidates to begin at 4:30 or soon there after. 
	1. Discussion and possible action to consider the fol
	Item E.1. - Board Memo GM Candidate Selection
	Dion, Mitchell - Resume Information
	Field, Robert - Resume Information
	Marshall, Beverli - Resume Information
	A. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three (3


	F. REPORTS TO THE BOARD - Reports are intended to inform the Board and/or the public.
	1. Treasurers Report - December 2023 Activities Distr
	Item F.1.  - Dec 2023 Treasurer Report Scan final

	2. Verbal report and update on the Director of Golf R
	Golf Org Chart
	3101A-Director-of-Golf
	PGSDirectorOfGolf
	GolfGMjob descriptions

	3. Verbal Report and Update on the Contract Review Pr
	Item F.3. - ContractReview


	G. CONSENT CALENDAR (for possible action)	
	1. Approval of the Meeting Minutes for January 10, 20
	2024-01-31-ItemG1_IVGID-Meetin_Minutes
	Invoice_IVGID 17_2024-02-10
	Correspondence - Indra Winquest
	Public Comment email
	01102024 Public comment


	H. GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action)	
	1. PUBLIC HEARING (not earlier than 6:00 P.M. and as 
	Item H.1. Memo Budget Augmentation 
	RESOLUTION NO. 1907 - A RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2023-24 Budget
	2024_01_31_BOT_Notice of Public Hearing  Budget_Augmentation_Final
	Tahoe Daily Tribune Page 9

	2. Receive a report and update on the Finance Active 
	Item H.2. Active_Special_Projects_List_Memo_Update

	3. Review, Discuss, and Approve the Scope of Work and
	Item H.3. - Forensic Audit Services Memo
	2024-01-04 RT IVGID PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TASK ORDER TEMPLATE AGREEMENT FINAL

	4. Authorize General Manager to Execute Contract Amen
	Item H.4. - Memo Baker Tilly  contract amendment
	Incline Village GID Amendment 2

	5. Review, discuss and identify the board’s goals for
	Item H.5. - 2024 Board Goals Memo
	decisionmaking1of2
	decisionmaking2of2

	6. Review, discuss and possibly approve the agreement
	Item H.6 - FlashVote Memorandum
	Flashvote Quote IVGID 2024-01-02


	I. REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS (for possible action)
	J. LONG RANGE CALENDAR
	K. BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE
	L. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in duration.
	M. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)	



